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Combined Management Report for 
the 2019 Financial Year

This management report combines the Group management 
report and the separate management report of SIMONA 
Aktiengesellschaft, Kirn (referred to also as SIMONA AG, 
SIMONA or company) (Section 315(3) in conjunction with 
Section 298(3) of the German Commercial Code – HGB).

This combined management report has been published 
instead of a Group management report in the annual report 
of the SIMONA Group. 

It includes details relating to the course of business, including 
performance, as well as the position and expected develop-
ment of the Group and SIMONA AG. Information pertaining to 
SIMONA AG has been included in the business review that 
can be found in a separate section with details presented in 
accordance with provisions set out in the German 
Commercial Code (Handelsgesetzbuch – HGB).
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 1.  Fundamental information about the group

1.1 THE BUSINESS MODEL OF THE GROUP

The SIMONA Group develops, manufactures and markets a range of 
semi-finished thermoplastics, pipes and fittings as well as profiles. The 
materials used include polyethylene (PE), polypropylene (PP), polyvinyl 
chloride (PVC), polyethylene terephthalate (PETG), polyvinylidene fluo-
ride (PVDF), ethylene-chlorotrifluoroethylene (E-CTFE), perfluoroalkoxy 
(PFA), thermoplastic olefins (TPO), acrylonitrile butadiene styrene (ABS) 
and various specialist materials. The production methods applied within 
this area range from extrusion, pressing and injection moulding to CNC 
manufacturing. SIMONA also maintains its own plastics workshop for 
the production of customised fittings.

Key sales markets
Semi-finished parts are deployed mainly within the area of chemical 
tank and equipment construction, mechanical engineering, the trans-
port industry, the construction sector, the exhibition and display sector 
as well as the automotive and aviation industry. Pipes and fittings are 
used primarily for drinking-water supply, sewage disposal and industrial 
piping systems, including the chemical process industry. 

The SIMONA Group markets its products worldwide. Categorised geo-
graphically according to the regions

 � Europe,
 � Americas, 
 � Asia and Pacific,

the business segments comprise the product areas
 � Semi-Finished Parts, 
 � Pipes and Fittings.

Production and sales locations
Sales activities at Group level are conducted by SIMONA AG and subsid-
iaries in the United Kingdom, Italy, France, Spain, Poland, the Czech 
Republic, Russia, Hong Kong, China, India and the United States, both 

directly and via trading partners. Beyond this, SIMONA AG operates a 
sales office in Möhlin, Switzerland. It contributes around 3 per cent to 
Group sales revenue. The parent company, SIMONA AG, has its regis-
tered office in 55606 Kirn (Germany). In the period under review, the 
SIMONA Group operated three manufacturing facilities in Germany and 
four plants located abroad. Semi-finished parts (sheets, rods, welding 
rods) are manufactured at two plants in Kirn (Rhineland-Palatinate), 
while pipes, fittings and customised parts are produced at a facility in 
Ringsheim (Baden-Württemberg). The plant in Litvinov (Czech Republic) 
produces pipes and sheets, while the site in Jiangmen (China) manufac-
tures sheets. The facility operated by SIMONA AMERICA Industries LLC 
in Archbald (Pennsylvania, USA) mainly produces sheet products. 
SIMONA Boltaron Inc. (formerly Boltaron Inc.) produces thermoplastic 
sheet products at its plant in Newcomerstown (Ohio, USA), which are 
primarily used for aircraft interiors and in the building sector. Addition-
ally, SIMONA PMC, LLC manufactures sheet products at its facility in 
Findlay (Ohio, USA). Made primarily from thermoplastic olefins (TPO) and 
acrylonitrile butadiene styrene (ABS), they are used in thermoforming 
applications.

Management and supervision at SIMONA AG
In the financial year under review, the Management Board consisted of 
the following members: Wolfgang Moyses (Chairman, until 14 August 
2019, member of the Management Board until 30 September 2019), 
Dirk Möller (Deputy Chairman, until 30 June 2019), Dr. Jochen Hauck 
(since 1 January 2019), Matthias Schönberg (Chairman, since 15 August 
2019) and Michael Schmitz (since 15 August 2019). SIMONA has 
established a Global Management Team (GMT) that consists of the 
Management Board of SIMONA AG as well as the CEOs of SIMONA in the 
United States, Larry Schorr, and Asia, Y.K. Wong. The GMT is intended to 
facilitate a regular global exchange relating to strategy, in addition to 
managing global projects and promoting the internationalisation of the 
company.
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 1. Fundamental information about the group

The Supervisory Board included the following members in the financial 
year under review: Dr. Rolf Goessler (Chairman), Roland Frobel (Deputy 
Chairman), Dr. Roland Reber and Martin Bücher as well as Andy Hohlre-
iter and Markus Stein as employee representatives.

1.2 OBJECTIVES AND STRATEGIES

The SIMONA Group conducted an in-depth analysis of its strategic orien-
tation in 2019 and redefined it accordingly. The primary goal remains 
the generation of profitable growth, which is to be achieved organically 
and through company acquisitions. In this context, the focus is on ther-
moplastic sheets, pipes and fittings, which SIMONA supplies to indus-
tries undergoing global growth. Group revenue is to be increased further, 
with the EBIT margin standing at 6-8 per cent. SIMONA is looking to 
become the company with the highest degree of end-consumer orienta-
tion within its industry. The HR motto “A company like a friend” under-
scores the aspiration of a close and trusting relationship with all 
stakeholders. This is promoted by well-trained employees, open commu-
nication and a culture of feedback. 

SIMONA has introduced strategic initiatives in pursuit of these goals. 

 � Process orientation: processes are to be further refined and 
continuous process orientation is to be implemented in support of 
excellence. To this end, SIMONA will invest heavily in the regular 
training and development of its employees, as well as promoting and 
encouraging a culture of open communication and feedback.

 � Application orientation: SIMONA will focus on core markets and 
align its structural and process organisation with the requirements 
of end customers. This provides the foundation for developing a 
deep understanding of the fields of application relating to the 
products. New areas of application are to be cultivated selectively 
according to this principle. 

 � Agile partner to industry: SIMONA wants to think in a market- and 
applications-driven way, while acting in a product-based manner. A 
close dialogue with our end customers and a thorough understand-
ing of the challenges they face are essential, regardless of the sales 
channel of the products in question.

 � Global profitability: each and every region is to make a consistently 
profitable contribution to the company’s success.

 � Sustainable added value for society and the environment: the 
intelligent use of plastics, for example, can help to reduce energy 
consumption and emissions, facilitate water treatment or ensure the 
transport of energy from renewable sources. 

1.3 INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEM

SIMONA uses the Balanced Scorecard (BSC) as a strategic management 
and monitoring instrument. Within this context, the Management Board 
is responsible for the BSC-related corporate goals, as well as being 
accountable for regularly reviewing the efficacy of the BSC process as 
part of an overall assessment of the management system and initiating 
adjustments to the BSC process and the BSC-related corporate goals. 
The BSC cascades down to the company’s other management levels. 
The BSC process was reviewed in 2019. As regions, the United States 
and Asia were systematically included in the BSC process and the effi-
ciency of the process was examined. Measures were introduced to 
ensure faster target agreement and better controlling with regard to 
target achievement.

The analysis and assessment of earnings performance by SIMONA are 
conducted primarily with the help of sales revenue as well as the two 
financial indicators EBIT and EBITDA. EBIT represents the operating 
result before interest and taxes as well as income from investments. 
EBITDA (earnings before interest, taxes, depreciation and amortisation 
as well as investment income) represents an approximation for cash 
flow from operating activities, as non-cash depreciation/write-downs of 
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 1. Fundamental information about the group

property, plant and equipment as well as amortisation/write-downs of 
intangible assets are added to the EBIT figure.

Additionally, the return on operating assets is reviewed annually within 
the Group as part of the forecasting process and serves as an important 
criterion when it comes to managing the investment budget. ROCE, 
which stands for return on capital employed, is used as a profitability 
indicator (capital employed is calculated as follows: intangible assets, 
property, plant and equipment, financial assets, inventories and trade 
receivables less trade payables).

The principal non-financial indicators employed by the company include 
customer satisfaction, number of staff and their qualifications as well as 
quality management.

1.4 RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT

Research and development is subdivided into the areas of Formula 
Development, New Products & Applications and Process Development. 
Innovation Circles apply the Stage-Gate process to evaluate and priori-
tise new product ideas, before pursuing market roll-out. The indicator 
used in this area is the share of recent products (no older than three 
years) in total sales revenue, which was lower in 2019. 

As regards process and material development of semi-finished parts, 
the focus in Germany was primarily on research into products with spe-
cial requirements relating to fire behaviour and the use of recycled 
materials in PVC production as well as on the roll-out of systems for 
quality improvement and monitoring. A new extruder was purchased for 
the manufacture of transparent products and the industrialisation of 
new products. Process technology was optimised with regard to lami-
nated products and fully fluorinated materials. 

An extensive investment programme was implemented at the pipe and 
fittings plant in Ringsheim as part of the FutuRo100 strategy. Among 
other things, it includes new injection moulding machines for the produc-
tion of stub flanges and large fittings. In addition, investments were 
made in extrusion technology for large-diameter protective-jacket pipes. 
At the plant in Litvinov, Czech Republic, investments were directed at the 
production of the new generation of SPC protective-jacket pipes. A CNC 
milling machine, which is also designed for large-sized milled parts, was 
put into operation at the plastics workshop. In addition, the production 
of SIMOFUSE integral electrofusion components was automated in the 
period under review. 

Within the multifunctional plant in Litvinov, the plastics workshop was 
expanded for the production of customised components. 

At the North American plants, capacity within the SIMONA Boltaron 
subsidiary was expanded by two new extrusion lines capable of handling 
products for aviation as well as other applications. Furthermore, the 
focus was on implementing continuous improvement and lean produc-
tion projects. At the US subsidiary SIMONA PMC, technical integration 
into the SIMONA Group was driven forward in the period under review. 
Additionally, so-called “formable masking” was further refined. Invest-
ments were made at the plant of the US subsidiary SIMONA AMERICA 
Industries with the express purpose of achieving higher levels of produc-
tivity and efficiency. This included the modernisation of high-purity pro-
duction by partially renewing components to optimise the extrusion of 
fluoropolymers. 

At the plant in Jiangmen, China, the production of welding rods was 
successfully launched in 2019. The foundation for capacity expansion 
was laid with the approval of the investment in a second line for the 
production of PVC sheets.
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 1. Fundamental information about the group

In the product area of Semi-Finished Parts, the range of SIMOPOR PVC 
foam sheets for printing, construction and advertising applications was 
realigned in Europe and successfully launched onto the market with new 
products. The range of fully fluorinated sheet products was supple-
mented by a laminated variant made of FEP with glass fibre and aramid 
fibre backing. The portfolio of twin-wall sheets developed by SIMONA 
was extended to include a UV-stable version made of white PE 100. The 
company’s proprietary software for the calculation of tanks was 
extended to include a module for the computation of twin-wall sheets, 
and new features were presented at the K trade fair in Düsseldorf. For 
railway interior applications, an international team has been pressing 
ahead with product development and new products are to be rolled out 
in 2020. In the United States, 2019 saw the introduction of Boltaron 
9815 True Pearl, a product for high-end decorative trims in aircraft 
interiors. Within the area of exterior applications, the new SIMONA® 
Boat Board®  Lightweight was launched within the market, enabling a 
weight reduction of 20 per cent compared with conventional polymers. 
This material offers a long service life for boat applications, outdoor 
furniture and displays. SIMONA AMERICA Industries has been awarded 
NFPA 286 certification for products that are used in the fabrication of 
partition walls in sanitary applications. In the period under review, 
SIMONA PMC launched “OneStep”, a vinyl/ABS-based range of sheet 
products in a high-quality leather look for marine applications. 

Within the area of pipes and fittings, investments were directed at 
extrusion technology for the purpose of enhancing the properties of the 
product group of protective-jacket pipes and extending the dimensional 
range up to 1,000 mm in diameter. As part of the FutuRo100 strategy, 
the focus was also on material and product developments in future-ori-
ented fields such as high-voltage cable conduits, rehabilitation and wear 
protection applications.

Expenses attributable to research and development within the Group 
amounted to €4,356 thousand in the period under review (previous 
year: €4,023 thousand). Expenses are mainly comprised of staff costs, 
material costs and depreciation of property, plant and equipment.
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

2.1  MACROECONOMIC AND SECTOR-SPECIFIC 
 ENVIRONMENT

At an estimated 2.9 per cent in 2019 (2018: 3.6 per cent), the world 
economy grew at the slowest rate in ten years. In this context, the 
International Monetary Fund (IMF) cites geopolitical conflicts and the 
trade dispute between China and the United States as the main rea-
sons. As a result, both industrial production and global trade lost their 
momentum in the period under review. 

While the German economy managed to expand for the tenth year in 
succession, growth proved much less dynamic in 2019 than in the past. 
The country’s gross domestic product (GDP) rose by 0.6 per cent, after 
1.5 per cent in the previous year. Growth was underpinned primarily by 
domestic demand. Investment spending also increased, but the main 
focus here was on buildings and research and development. By con-
trast, capital expenditure on machinery and equipment, an aspect that 
is of particular importance to SIMONA’s business activities, rose at a 
below-average rate of just 0.4 per cent.

According to projections by the European Commission regarding annual 
growth for 2019, GDP within the euro area rose by 1.2 per cent, i.e. at a 
noticeably slower rate than in 2018, when GDP had been up by 1.8 per 
cent.

The US economy grew significantly, by 2.3 per cent in 2019, although it 
too, as the world’s largest economy, experienced a loss in forward 
momentum (2018: 2.9 per cent). Domestic consumption and a histori-
cally low unemployment rate were again the main economic drivers.

According to the National Bureau of Statistics, the Chinese economy 
grew by 6.1 per cent last year – the lowest rate since 1990. In 2018, 
China had recorded economic growth of 6.6 per cent. The slowdown in 

domestic demand and the trade conflict with the USA, lasting for almost 
two years, are the main reasons for the decline in growth. 

According to the industry association GKV, revenue generated by the 
plastics processing industry in Germany fell by 1.2 per cent to €65.1 
billion in 2019. Revenue generated from domestic sales fell more 
sharply than exports. As reasons, the GKV cited the difficult economic 
conditions currently seen within key customer industries, among them 
the automotive and mechanical engineering sectors, as well as the 
debate surrounding plastics and their effects on humans and the envi-
ronment. The sharpest declines were recorded for consumer products 
and technical parts, while business relating to plastic products for con-
struction applications expanded. 

According to the German chemical industry association VCI, 2019 was a 
difficult year for the chemical and pharmaceutical industry. Revenue 
generated from sales within this area declined by 5 per cent to €193 
billion. The industry’s non-domestic business overseas and in Europe 
suffered from the global economic downturn and the trade disputes 
between China and the United States. At the same time, domestic 
demand for chemical products from industrial customers declined, 
according to the VCI.

The export-oriented mechanical engineering industry in Germany is 
expected to record a 2 per cent drop in production in 2019. The industry 
association VDMA attributes this to the trade dispute between China 
and the United States, more pronounced protectionism around the 
world, a global economic downturn, Brexit and the process of structural 
transition in key customer groups. 

For 2019, the association of the building industry and the federation 
representing Germany’s principal construction industry expect real 
(price-adjusted) revenue growth of 3 per cent in the principal construc-
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

tion industry. Both residential, commercial and public-sector construc-
tion contributed to the increase.

The global market for aircraft interiors is expanding by 5 per cent per 
annum, according to the market intelligence agency Counterpoint. The 
agency thus forecasts weaker growth than a year ago (5.6 per cent 
annual growth). 

2.2 COURSE OF BUSINESS – SIMONA GROUP

Sales revenue totalled €432.5 million in the 2019 financial year (previ-
ous year: €417.9 million), which corresponds to an increase of 3.5 per 
cent. In regional terms, the Americas made the largest contribution to 
growth in the period under review. Revenues were up slightly in Asia. By 
contrast, revenue generated from sales in Europe declined due to eco-
nomic factors. Competition remained intense in all regions and product 
groups. Therefore, the Group fell just short of the revenue guidance of 
€435 to 450 million for the 2019 financial year, as presented in the 
previous year’s Group management report and 2019 interim report for 
the first half.

Group earnings before interest and taxes (EBIT) totalled €29.4 million, 
down from the figure of €33.2 million reported in the previous financial 
year. The EBIT margin stood at 6.8 per cent (previous year: 8.0 per cent). 
The Group therefore managed to achieve its projected EBIT margin of 
between 6 and 8 per cent. EBITDA fell from €48.4 million a year ago to 
€46.8 million at the end of the reporting period. This corresponds to an 
EBITDA margin of 10.8 per cent (previous year: 11.6 per cent), which is 
within the projected EBITDA margin range (10 to 12 per cent).

At 9.6 per cent, Group ROCE was at the upper end of the range targeted 
(8 to 10 per cent), but down on the prior-year figure of 10.9 per cent.

Europe
The region comprising Europe saw sales revenue decline by 1.5 per cent 
to €269.7 million in total (previous year: €273.5 million). While the 
Group’s Semi-Finished Parts business remained stable in Central 
Europe, its business centred around Pipes and Fittings was down slightly 
in the same region. In Eastern Europe, meanwhile, strong growth in the 
area of Pipes and Fittings compensated for a decline within the 
Semi-Finished Parts business. Western Europe saw a downturn in reve-
nue due to sluggish Semi-Finished Products business, which the Group 
was unable to offset despite growth in its Pipes and Fittings business. 
Owing to the expansion in revenue from sales in the Americas, the share 
of total revenue attributable to Europe fell further in the period under 
review, down from 65.4 per cent to 62.4 per cent. EBIT within the seg-
ment covering Europe fell noticeably from €14.8 million in the previous 
year to €9.8 million in the period under review.

29.433.2
31.1

2017 20192018

7.9

6.8

8.0
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REVENUE BY PRODUCT AREA (in €m)

432.5
394.1

417.9

2017 2018 2019

79.6 %
Semi-Finished 
Parts
€344.1m

20.4 %
Pipes and 
 Fittings
€88.4m

Americas
The region comprising the Americas saw sales revenue increase by a 
significant 15.7 per cent in total, taking the figure to €131.9 million 
(previous year: €114.2 million). This was driven primarily by a solid per-
formance in the Aviation and Industrial Products business as well as the 
first-time inclusion of the acquiree SIMONA PMC for a full annual period. 
The share of total revenues attributable to this region rose yet again, 
from 27.4 per cent to 30.5 per cent. The Americas segment generated 
EBIT of €19.0 million (previous year: €17.9 million). 

Asia and Pacific
The region covering Asia and Pacific recorded a slight increase in reve-
nue, taking the figure to €30.9 million (previous year: €30.2 million). 
While business in China was stable thanks to solid demand in the 
automotive sector, sales in South-East Asia were sluggish due to prob-
lems within the semiconductor industry and a general lack of pipe-re-
lated projects. The share of total revenues attributable to this region fell 
from 7.2 per cent to 7.1 per cent. The Asia and Pacific segment recorded 
EBIT of €0.4 million (previous year: €0.8 million).

Sales revenue by product area
The product area comprising Semi-Finished Parts generated revenue of 
€344.1 million (previous year: €333.7 million). The growth in revenue of 
3.1 per cent in total was attributable mainly to buoyancy within the 
Industrial Products business in the United States, consistently dynamic 
Aviation business and the first-time inclusion of SIMONA PMC for a full 
annual period. Business centred around PVC foam sheets for applica-
tions in the fields of printing and construction trended lower in the 
period under review, while business relating to fluoropolymers was 
adversely affected by waning investment spending at a global level. 

The product area comprising Pipes and Fittings achieved revenue 
growth of 5.0 per cent, taking the total to €88.4 million (previous year: 
€84.2 million), thereby meeting its growth targets. The strategic reengi-
neering programme initiated in 2018 is taking effect. Gains were 
recorded in particular with regard to business centred around protec-
tive-jacket pipes as well as products used in rehabilitation projects. With 
the exception of Asia, project-driven industrial products business grew 
worldwide in the period under review.
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Allocated acc. to place of registered office of revenue-generating business unit

REVENUE BY REGION (in per cent)

7.1 %
Asia and Pacific
€30.9m
+2.3 %

30.5 %
Americas
€131.9m
+15.7 %

62.4 %
Europe 
€269.7m
–1.5 %

€432.5
million

  Consolidated Financial Statements 2019 – SIMONA AG 9

Contents
COMBINED MANAGEMENT 
REPORT
Fundamental information  
about the group 3
Business review 7
Report on opportunities  
and risks 19
Report on expected  
developments 24
Other information 26
Non-financial statement  
in accordance with section  
289 b)-e) HGB 29

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL 
STATEMENTS
Group Income Statement 34
Group Statement of 
Comprehensive Income 35
Group Statement of 
Financial Position 36
Group Statement of 
Cash Flows 38
Group Statement of  
Changes in Equity 39
Notes to Consolidated  
Financial Statements 40
Reproduction of the  
Auditor’s Report 88
Other Information 95







ZUSAMMENGEFASSTER  LAGEBERICHT

  Annual Report 2019 48

Content
Introduction 2
SIMONA Key Financials 3

TO OUR SHAREHOLDERS

COMBINED MANAGEMENT 
REPORT
Fundamental information 
about the group 41
Business review 45
Report on opportunities 
and risks 57
Report on expected 
 developments 62
Other information 64
Non-financial statement 
in accordance with section 
289 b)-e) HGB 67

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL 
STATEMENTS

OTHER DETAILS

 2. Business review

Orders
Order backlog within the Group stood at €47.2 million (previous year: 
€51.0 million); of this total, a figure of €22.6 million (previous year: €24.1 
million) is attributable to SIMONA AG.

2.3 FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE 

Earnings
Group EBIT (earnings before taxes, interest and investment income) fell 
by 12.3 per cent, down from €33.2 million to €29.4 million. At 6.8 per 
cent, the EBIT margin was down on the figure of 8.0 per cent recorded 
in the previous financial year.

In total, gross profit (revenue, other income, change in inventories of 
finished goods and work in progress less cost of materials) improved to 
€208.5 million in the period under review (previous year: €197.1 million). 
The margin improved by 1.1 percentage points year on year to 48.2 per 
cent. Adjusted for the effect of the EEG levy exemption in the amount of 
EUR 4.7 million, the gross profit margin was 47.2 per cent, which was 
unchanged year on year (previous year: 47.2 per cent). 

A decrease in inventories of €2.1 million was accounted for in the 
income statement (previous year: increase in inventories of €7.3 million).

Other income totalled €4.6 million (previous year: €4.9 million).

Commodity prices rose during the first half of 2019, before trending 
lower again in the period from July to the end of the year. Cost of mate-
rials amounted to €226.5 million in the financial year under review 
(previous year: €233.0 million). The energy costs included in the cost of 
materials were down by a total of around €3.0 million compared with the 
previous year. Of this figure, EEG levy exemption produced savings of 

€4.7 million, while higher energy procurement prices had an accretive 
effect of €1.2 million.

Staff costs stood at €85.7 million (previous year: €78.8 million), up 8.8 
per cent on last year’s figure. The year-on-year change is mainly the 
result of collective wage increases and the increase in personnel at the 
Ringsheim production facility and at the US companies. 

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment and amortisation of 
intangible assets, including write-downs, amounted to €17.4 million 
(previous year: €15.1 million). Following the first-time application of the 
new IFRS 16 Leases, this figure includes depreciation of EUR 0.8 million 
on right-of-use assets under lease arrangements.

Other expenses increased year on year, up by 8.6 per cent to €76.0 
million (previous year: €70.0 million). The increase was attributable 
mainly to higher expenses for maintenance work (+€1.2 million), distri-
bution (+€1.3 million) and packaging (+€0.5 million) as well as higher 
costs relating to legal and consulting fees (+€1.5 million).

In line with the reduction in earnings before taxes (EBT), taxes on income 
fell from €8.0 million to €7.4 million. The Group tax rate in the year under 
review is 26.4 per cent (previous year: 24.9 per cent) and is slightly 
higher than in the previous year due to the effects of the scheduled tax 
audit completed at the end of 2019.

Segment-specific disclosures
The individual sales companies operating within the segment encom-
passing Europe recorded positive earnings in the period under review. In 
particular, the earnings contributions made by the subsidiaries in the 
United Kingdom and Poland were, in part, substantially higher year on 
year. Earnings generated by the production company in the Czech 
Republic were slightly down on the prior-year figure. The cost of materi-
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als was €151.8 million (previous year: €165.6 million), i.e. this item fell 
at a more pronounced rate compared to the decline in revenue. Both raw 
material and energy costs decreased in the period under review. At 
€57.2 million, staff costs were up 2.4 per cent on the figure posted in 
the previous year. Other expenses totalled €50.5 million (previous year: 
€46.0 million).

In total, the subsidiaries operating within the Americas segment saw 
their contributions to earnings expand substantially in the financial year 
under review. The cost of materials amounting to €60.7 million (previous 
year: €53.6 million) rose mainly in line with the increase in sales vol-
umes. Staff costs stood at €24.8 million (previous year: €19.7 million). 
At €23.2 million, other expenses were up by €3.8 million compared to 
the previous year.

Earnings within the Asia and Pacific segment amounted to €0.4 million, 
which is down on the prior-year figure (previous year: €0.8 million) due to 
a lower margin. While staff costs were up, other expenses were lower in 
the period under review. The sales companies operating within the Asia 
and Pacific segment saw their earnings decline year on year.

2.4 FINANCIAL POSITION

Total Group assets amounted to €430.2 million as at 31 December 
2019, which was considerably higher than in the previous year (€400.9 
million) due to an increase in provisions for pensions.

Changes to assets
Intangible assets totalled €38.0 million (previous year: €39.1 million) 
and mainly consisted of goodwill from the US acquisitions. 

Property, plant and equipment amounted to €138.7 million (previous 
year: €129.1 million). Group capital expenditure on property, plant and 
equipment amounted to €23.5 million (previous year: €16.9 million). 
Depreciation and write-downs of property, plant and equipment stood at 
€14.6 million (previous year: €13.5 million).

The right-of-use assets relating to leases, which were recognised for the 
first time in the period under review, amounted to €2.0 million.

Inventories totalled €89.7 million (previous year: €92.4 million). Invento-
ries of raw materials, consumables and supplies remained unchanged 
at €34.0 million. Finished goods and merchandise fell from €56.5 mil-
lion to €54.7 million.

Trade payables were down by €4.3 million year on year to €59.7 million.

Current and non-current other assets and tax assets totalled €10.4 
million (previous year: €10.7 million).

Other financial assets totalled €2.0 million (previous year: €1.3 million).

Changes to equity and liabilities
At the end of the reporting period, non-current and current liabilities 
were up year on year, while equity was slightly below the previous year’s 
level.

Group equity amounted to €216.3 million (previous year: €220.7 mil-
lion), down €4.4 million on the previous year. This figure includes annual 
profit of €20.6 million for 2019 and the dividend payment of €8.4 million 
in the 2019 financial year. Group equity was diluted by €19.1 million, 
without affecting profit or loss, as a result of the remeasurement of 
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pension provisions. This was due to a significant reduction in the IFRS 
actuarial interest rate. The equity ratio for the Group fell from 55 per 
cent to 50 per cent.

Current and non-current provisions for pensions were substantially 
higher at €137.9 million (previous year: €106.1 million). Due to the much 
lower IFRS interest rate, which fell to 0.91 per cent (previous year: 1.90 
per cent), pension provisions were up markedly year on year.

At €18.7 million, trade payables were lower than in the previous financial 
year (€21.0 million). 

Current and non-current other financial liabilities totalled €3.1 million 
(previous year: €2.2 million).

Other liabilities stood at €18.9 million in the period under review, i.e. up 
on the prior-year figure of €15.7 million; they were attributable primarily 
to management and staff bonus payments as well as deferrals/accruals 
relating to invoices and credit notes yet to be received.

In total, non-current (€4.5 million) and current (€1.1 million) other provi-
sions were comparable to the figures recorded in the previous financial 
year.

Investments
Group capital expenditure on property, plant and equipment amounted 
to €23.5 million (previous year: €16.9 million). This mainly relates to 
investments in technical equipment as well as operating and office 
equipment at the production sites in Germany, the United States and 
Asia. In total, net investments in property, plant and equipment 
amounted to €8.8 million at Group level (previous year: €3.4 million).

2.5 CASH FLOWS

Principles and aims of financial management
Safeguarding the financial strength of the SIMONA Group is the primary 
goal of financial management. In this context, the most important 
aspect is to meet, to a sufficient degree, the Group’s financial require-
ments relating to its operational business and its investing activities. 
Financial management is centrally organised within the parent company. 
To a large extent, SIMONA covers the liquidity required worldwide within 
the Group by means of intragroup funding via loans or similar arrange-
ments. Additionally, firmly agreed lines of credit are in place. Excess 
cash resources are invested in the money or capital markets, either in 
euro or a foreign currency, by applying an approach that is optimised in 
terms of both risk and returns.

Financing analysis
Non-current financial liabilities relate to KfW loans and fell by €3.4 mil-
lion to €11.9 million due to scheduled repayments. Current financial 
liabilities were unchanged at €3.4 million at the end of the reporting 
period and encompass the short-term proportion of KfW loans.

EQUITY (in €m)

216.3
202.3

220.7

2017 2018 2019
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As in the previous year, no derivative financial instruments were recog-
nised at the end of the reporting period.

At the end of the reporting period the Group had undrawn lines of credit 
totalling €19.0 million (previous year: €17.0 million).

Cash flows
In the period under review the inflow of cash from operating activities 
(gross cash flow) was €51.6 million (previous year: €34.8 million). The 
increase in cash inflows was attributable primarily to the reduction in 
inventories and cash relating to trade receivables. The cash outflow 
from investing activities was €-23.2 million (previous year: €-39.8 mil-
lion; of which attributable to the acquisition of subsidiaries €-25.2 mil-
lion) and mainly included investments in property, plant and equipment. 
Net cash used in financing activities was €-12.9 million (previous year: 
€-10.9 million) and mainly consisted of the outflow in connection with 
dividend payments and the scheduled repayment of KfW loans.

Cash and cash equivalents
The Group’s cash and cash equivalents totalling €68.4 million (previous 
year: €52.5 million) mainly consist of short-term bank deposits. The 
year-on-year swing of €15.9 million (previous year: €-15.5 million) was 
attributable to net cash from operating activities as well as, primarily, 
net cash used for investments in property, plant and equipment and net 
cash used in financing activities. These changes are presented in detail 
in the statement of cash flows.

Financial obligations
Current obligations included €9.4 million (previous year: €14.3 million) 
for contracts already awarded in connection with investment projects 
and €13.2 million (previous year: €12.1 million) in respect of purchase 
orders for raw materials. 

Due to the first-time application of IFRS 16 Leases, the disclosure of 
financial obligations from operating rental and lease relationships is no 
longer required as from the 2019 financial year. In the previous year, 
financial obligations amounted to €2.8 million from operating rental and 
lease agreements; of this total, €0.9 million was due within one year.

Net finance cost
Based on finance income of €1.0 million and finance cost of €2.7 mil-
lion, net finance cost amounted to €-1.7 million in the period under 
review (previous year: €-1.4 million). This includes the result from cur-
rency translation, which remained unchanged at €0.6 million.

2.6 COURSE OF BUSINESS – SIMONA AG

Sales performance at SIMONA AG was influenced mainly by an upturn in 
business within the area of Pipes and Fittings on the one hand and a 
decline in the market for Semi-Finished and Finished Parts on the other.

Sales revenue totalled €289.0 million (previous year: €300.6 million). 
This corresponds to a decline in revenue by 3.8 per cent. Revenue  
presented in the previous year’s combined management report (EUR 
271.5 million) was still based on revenue before separation. The change 
to €300.6 million is mainly attributable to revenues after separation 
attributable to goods deliveries, energy transfer and services between 
SIMONA AG and the separated production units.

Germany
Sales revenue in Germany fell by 7.8 per cent to €116.7 million (previous 
year: €126.6 million), primarily as a result of a downturn in business 
within the area of Semi-Finished Parts.
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Rest of Europe and Africa
The region comprising the Rest of Europe and Africa saw sales revenue 
decline slightly to €150.4 million (previous year: €151.6 million).

Americas
Revenue from sales in the Americas region increased to €7.4 million 
(previous year: €6.1 million).

Asia and Pacific
The Asia & Pacific region recorded a slight reduction in revenue, down 
by 11.3 per cent to €14.5 million.

Sales revenue by product area
In the product area comprising Semi-Finished Parts sales revenue 
decreased by 4.7 per cent to €182.4 million (previous year: €191.4 mil-
lion). By contrast, revenue from the product group comprising Pipes and 
Fittings rose by 1.9 per cent, up from €84.7 million to €86.3 million. The 
area of business relating to Service and Others recorded revenue of 
€20.4 million (previous year: €24.5 million).

Earnings performance
SIMONA AG earnings declined year on year. Earnings before interest and 
taxes (EBIT), calculated on the basis of IFRS, totalled €3.6 million (previ-
ous year: €7.6 million), while the EBIT margin stood at 1.3 per cent 
(previous year: 2.7 per cent). Thus, the Group fell short of its EBIT margin 
target (3 to 3.5 per cent). EBITDA, calculated on the basis of IFRS, fell 
from €9.3 million in the previous year to €5.4 million in the period under 
review. The EBITDA margin stood at 2.0 per cent, compared to 3.5 per 
cent for the same period a year ago (target of 3.5 to 4 per cent). At 3.1 
per cent, ROCE (based on IFRS) remained below the prior-year figure of 
5.1 per cent (target 9 to 10 per cent).

The reduction in EBIT and EBITDA is mainly due to a deterioration in 
gross profit, slightly higher staff costs and an increase in other operating 
expenses. Overall, business performance with regard to revenue and 
earnings was not satisfactory in the 2019 financial year.

Reconciliation from IFRS to HGB of EBIT generated by SIMONA AG is 
mainly as follows:

in €m 2019 2018

EBIT under IFRS 3.6 7.6

Change in inventories 1.3 –4.6

Cost of materials –0.7 6.5

Staff costs (pensions) 3.2 4.2

Depreciation/amortisation/write-downs of intangible 
assets and property, plant and equipment 0.1 0.1

Other operating expenses 0.1 0.1

Other changes 2.9 –5.9

EBIT under HGB 10.5 8.1

2.7  REVIEW OF FINANCIAL POSITION, PERFORMANCE AND 
CASH FLOWS OF SIMONA AG (HGB)

Financial performance
Gross profit (sales revenue less cost of materials) amounted to €65.5 
million, down by 21.9 per cent year on year. The gross profit margin fell 
from 27.9 per cent a year ago to 22.7 per cent. The cost of materials rose 
by 3.1 per cent year on year. Raw material costs decreased slightly over 
the year as a whole and energy costs fell as a result of the EEG levy 
exemption. The previous year’s figure was, however, influenced by a 
one-off effect from the separation of production units.
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Other operating income totalled €4.7 million (previous year: €3.1 mil-
lion). This figure includes gains of €2.7 million (previous year: €1.7 mil-
lion) from currency translation.

Personnel expense amounted to €25.2 million, which was up 5.7 per 
cent on the prior-year figure. While staff costs were slightly higher year 
on year, social security and post-employment benefit costs rose by €1.3 
million.

Depreciation, amortisation and write-downs attributable to intangible 
assets and property, plant and equipment totalled €1.7 million.

Other operating expenses rose from €31.7 million a year ago to €32.7 
million in the period under review, an increase of 3.0 per cent. Expenses 
relating to consulting services, in particular, were higher in the period 
under review. Expenses attributable to currency translation amounted to 
€0.2 million (previous year: €0.7 million).

Interest and similar expenses totalled €4.4 million (previous year: €4.2 
million) and consisted primarily of expenses relating to the unwinding of 
the discount, i.e. interest cost, of pension provisions (€4.0 million, previ-
ous year: €3.9 million).

Earnings before interest and taxes (EBIT), calculated on the basis of 
HGB, totalled €10.5 million in the period under review (previous year: 
€8.1 million), as a result of which the EBIT margin stood at 3.6 per cent 
(previous year: 2.7 per cent). EBITDA amounted to €12.2 million (previ-
ous year: €9.7 million). The EBITDA margin stood at 4.2 per cent, com-
pared to 3.2 per cent for the same period a year ago. Profit after taxes 
totalled €9.8 million. Earnings performance in the financial year under 
review was characterised in particular by a decline in the gross profit 
margin, primarily due to the reduction in revenue and the slight rise in 
other operating expenses. 

Financial position
Total assets attributable to SIMONA AG rose by €7.0 million to €275.1 
million.

Non-current assets totalled €144.2 million (previous year: €154.1 mil-
lion), down mainly as a result of the reduction in loans relating to the 
entities in the US.

Property, plant and equipment amounted to €8.2 million (previous year: 
€7.3 million). 

Interests in affiliated companies remained unchanged year on year.

Loans to affiliated companies, amounting to €31.6 million (previous 
year: €42.1 million), relate to subsidiaries in the Americas and Asia. The 
subsidiaries in the United States repaid a loan of €10.5 million in the 
reporting period.

Inventories were down on the prior-year figure (€26.0 million), falling to 
€23.8 million. They include work in progress (€0.6 million) and finished 
goods and merchandise (€23.2 million). Inventories of finished goods 
and merchandise fell by €2.1 million compared to the previous financial 
year.

Trade receivables decreased by €0.5 million to €21.8 million. At €45.0 
million, receivables from affiliated companies – comprising loans and 
goods deliveries – were up by €16.7 million year on year.

Other assets totalled €4.8 million (previous year: €5.6 million).

In total, receivables and other assets amounted to €72.0 million (previ-
ous year: €57.3 million).
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Cash and cash equivalents rose from €30.3 million a year ago to €34.8 
million at the end of the reporting period, an increase of €4.6 million. The 
increase is mainly due to the return flow of loans, the repayment of KfW 
loans and the dividend payment.

Cash flows
SIMONA AG’s equity rose by €1.4 million year on year to €187.1 million. 
At 68 per cent, the equity ratio was slightly down on last year’s figure (69 
per cent). This was attributable primarily to higher liabilities compared to 
the previous year.

SIMONA AG pursues a policy of consistent dividend payments based on 
the performance of Group profit calculated in accordance with IFRS and 
an average dividend ratio that is stable over the long term. As in the past, 
the dividend payout is to be funded from free cash flow.

Provisions amounted to €46.6 million (previous year: €42.8 million). In 
total, allocations to provisions for pensions were increased by €1.4 mil-
lion compared to the previous year and stood at €39.6 million at the end 
of the reporting period. The discount rate fell to 2.71 per cent (previous 
year: 3.21 per cent). Other provisions totalled €5.4 million (previous 
year: €4.6 million).

Total liabilities increased by €1.9 million to €41.4 million.

Trade payables totalled €3.0 million (previous year: €3.9 million). 

Liabilities towards affiliated companies amounted to €19.9 million (pre-
vious year: €13.6 million) and relate mainly to goods deliveries from the 
German production companies as well as the subsidiary in the Czech 
Republic.

Bank borrowings totalled €15.3 million (previous year: €18.7 million) and 
were attributable to long-term KfW loans. Under the terms of the con-

tract, a total of €3.4 million was repaid during the financial year under 
review. At the end of the period under review, as in the previous year, no 
funds had been drawn from the short-term global credit facility.

The KfW loans are subject to fixed interest rates, with quarterly debt 
repayments scheduled under the terms of the agreement. The funds are 
used to finance long-term innovation programmes in Germany. The 
global credit facility is subject to interest on the basis of EONIA (Euro 
OverNight Index Average) plus a fixed premium calculated on an arm’s 
length basis; these borrowings can be denominated in euros or a foreign 
currency.

At the end of the reporting period, SIMONA AG had undrawn borrowing 
facilities of €18.0 million.

Investments
Capital expenditure relating to property, plant and equipment at SIMONA 
AG amounted to €2.4 million in the period under review (previous year: 
€1.3 million). It mainly relates to investments in operating and office 
equipment at the company sites in Germany. In total, net investments 
(additions less write-downs) amounted to €1.0 million (previous year: 
€0.1 million).

Obligations from investment projects already initiated amounted to €0.4 
million; they are financed from operating cash flow.

Analysis of liquidity
Cash and cash equivalents held by SIMONA AG at the end of the report-
ing period totalled €34.8 million (previous year: €30.3 million), compris-
ing bank deposits denominated in euro and foreign currencies. The 
increase is attributable mainly to cash outflows in connection with 
financing activities (loans granted to US companies, repayment of KfW 
loans and dividend payment).
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2.8  NON-FINANCIAL INDICATORS
CUSTOMER SATISFACTION

SIMONA measures customer satisfaction as part of pan-European sur-
veys. Additionally, customers and target groups are surveyed in key 
markets outside of Europe, such as China and the United States.

The last extensive customer satisfaction survey in Europe was con-
ducted in 2017. The findings of this survey showed that overall customer 
satisfaction (86.1 per cent) and the rate of recommendation (87.4 per 
cent) were again high. Thus, the levels recorded as part of previous 
customer surveys were matched. Compared to the last survey, SIMONA 
achieved better grades for its service offering in all product categories, 
e.g. sales admin and field sales, order processing, delivery/dispatch and 
applications engineering advice. Customers saw room for further 
improvement with regard to some aspects of SIMONA’s training pro-
grammes, its website and complaints handling. The next extensive cus-
tomer survey is scheduled for 2020.

Employees
As at 31 December 2019, the SIMONA Group employed 1,395 people 
(previous year: 1,413). The number of employees remained largely 
unchanged compared with the previous year’s figure, as no further 
company acquisition took place in 2019. 

The headcount at German entities within the SIMONA Group (SIMONA 
AG and the two production companies in Kirn and Ringsheim) was 
unchanged at 805 at the end of the year (31 Dec. 2018: 805). While 
staffing levels in Ringsheim were increased in a targeted manner due to 
more expansive revenues and sales volumes, the headcount in Kirn fell 
slightly, mainly as a result of retirements. 

The number of trainees, which had already increased significantly in the 
previous year, was again maintained at the high level of 56 in 2019. 
These youngsters were enrolled in vocational programmes relating to 
one of eleven technical and commercial training courses offered by 
SIMONA. As in the previous year, in 2019 ten young people were enrolled 
in an integrated/dual work-study degree course supported by SIMONA or 
sponsored training to become a state-certified technician or to receive 
a Bachelor’s degree.

In 2019, the focus of training activities for employees was primarily on 
the individual needs of each employee as determined during the annual 
employee appraisals. In addition, all supervisors at the Kirn and Ring-
sheim sites received comprehensive training on occupational safety 
responsibility. The third generation of the Talent Promotion Circle (TPC) 
completed its first year of courses, focusing on communication and 
conflict management as well as leadership skills. The SIMONA TPC pre-
pares high potentials for professional and managerial roles as part of a 
modular, two-year training programme. This year’s programme includes 
employees from Europe, the USA and Asia. The aim is to develop the 
intercultural skills of those taking part in the programme, in addition to 
focusing on specialist topics. At the same time, the young professionals 
are given the opportunity to establish an international network. At the 
Kirn plants, the 5-shift system in place in most areas was converted to 
a 4-shift system at the turn of 2019/2020. In parallel, a time-off account 
was introduced for industrial employees, which enables them to deal 
more flexibly with overtime and undertime, thus reflecting a more mod-
ern working environment. The conversion of the administration building 
in Kirn, which had been planned for some time, became necessary 
earlier than scheduled due to a severe storm in July 2019. In a first step, 
the third floor will now be completely redesigned and adapted to a 
modern working environment with an open and bright spatial concept. 
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In August and September 2019, various areas of the company (Semi-Fin-
ished Parts division and Administration) had to announce short-time 
work as a result of a slump in orders. For a total of two months, the 
company reduced the working hours of a large part of its employees at 
the Kirn site and made use of short-time work allowances. Due to mar-
ket recovery, short-time work was discontinued again after a very short 
period of time.

Quality
The goal of SIMONA’s quality management system is to maintain and 
optimise product and process quality on a continual and sustainable 
basis. In this context, meeting the requirements of DIN EN ISO 9001 and 
the Pressure Equipment Directive 97/23/EC is an essential prerequisite, 
and full compliance with these standards was again confirmed by inde-
pendent surveillance audits conducted in 2018. SIMONA conducted 
interdisciplinary quality circle meetings and product audits in the period 
under review, as well as taking part in various sampling and approval 
procedures for existing and newly launched projects relating to the 
automotive supply industry. As was the case in previous years, the Pipes 
and Fittings division saw a number of specific product accreditations in 
response to customer and market requirements. This resulted in several 
audits as part of which we were able to prove to external auditors the 
efficacy of the SIMONA management system as well as the exceptionally 
high quality of our products and processes. In 2019, a project was 
launched to digitalise quality inspection on the extrusion lines in order 
to simplify processes and raise efficiency levels. 

Information technology
As regards IT infrastructure, the focus in 2019 was on further improving 
IT security. Among other things, the use of USB removable storage 
devices, which may contain malware, was restricted to data carriers 

approved by the company. Many other clients were converted to 
so-called thin clients in the course of 2019, which enables cost-effective 
and simplified user administration.

The focus of IT application development in the past financial year was on 
supporting the revision of master data in the production areas, prepara-
tions for Brexit from a technical perspective and the system-side merger 
of two areas following the partial sale of a smaller product area.

IT Infrastructure and IT Application Development also supported hard-
ware and software digitisation projects.
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Capital expenditure within the industries served by SIMONA has been 
adversely affected by a lower propensity to invest amid global economic 
uncertainty. This applies in particular to the chemical industry and the 
mechanical engineering sector. Geopolitical conflicts and the coronavi-
rus represent additional risk potential for 2020. The aviation business, 
in particular, may be exposed to significant risk as a result of the COVID-
19 crisis. Due to the (temporary) discontinuation of services by air 
freight airlines, delays may occur in the area of logistics. We expect 
considerable shortages when it comes to the availability of containers 
for sea freight handling and a significant increase in freight costs during 
the second quarter. In China, risks arise from limited domestic transport 
and the lack of drivers and containers as well as cost increases. The 
debate on the environmental impact of plastics, particularly in Europe, 
may have a negative effect not only on business but also on the recruit-
ment of skilled personnel. The discussion surrounding CO2 emissions 
from aircraft could have a detrimental effect on the market for aircraft 
interiors in the medium term.

Against this backdrop of uncertainty from an economic and structural 
perspective, the use of plastics offers opportunities as a cost-effective 
alternative to replace heavier materials, for example in mobility applica-
tions, thus reducing CO2 emissions or enabling the treatment of drinking 
water or the transport of renewable energies over long distances. These 
areas of application call for highly functional plastics with customised 
properties. SIMONA’s strategy is aimed at continuously evolving product 
characteristics from a technological perspective by leveraging its 
in-house R&D capabilities, in addition to extending its portfolio of 
materials.

In Europe, SIMONA has identified good opportunities to recapture mar-
ket share in core sectors and unlock potential in new fields of application 
following the strategic reorientation of its Semi-Finished Parts business, 
the focus being on expanding its product and service offering and 
operating in a manner that is targeted more effectively at end customers 

and fields of application. The product and investment offensive in the 
area of Pipes and Fittings offers good opportunities to expand the 
Group’s market position and benefit from fields considered promising 
for the future, such as the treatment of drinking water and energy 
transport. 

In the United States, meanwhile, the subsidiary SIMONA Boltaron can 
draw on a highly adaptable product range and extended services tai-
lored even more effectively to the exacting interior design standards 
applicable within the aviation sector. Good potential is also seen within 
the expanded portfolio that includes products for deep-drawing applica-
tions supplied by SIMONA PMC as well as the more extensive range of 
products for boat and display applications offered by SIMONA AMERICA 
Industries. In the medium term, the USA also offers opportunities within 
the area of Pipes and Fittings. In the region covering Asia-Pacific, 
SIMONA sees good opportunities with regard to key technologies cen-
tred around environmental management and chemical processes. The 
business segments focusing on the semiconductor industry and mobility 
applications are currently being established. SIMONA sees opportuni-
ties to offer customers an attractive range of products and services at a 
global level within these areas.

Overall, SIMONA believes the potential for unlocking opportunities 
remains good. Compared to the previous year, SIMONA’s business 
prospects remain unchanged. However, the impact of the corona crisis 
has yet to be seen. Until recently, short-term economic factors appeared 
to be stabilising at a low level and medium-term structural factors, in 
particular industrial investment, which is important for business, were 
also expected to improve slightly due to the sluggish but gradual recov-
ery of the global economy. However, leading economic research insti-
tutes currently predict a recession for Germany as well as for key 
international markets due to the corona crisis. The resulting effects 
cannot be reliably predicted at present. 
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Risk management system
In view of their global business activities, both SIMONA AG and the 
SIMONA Group are exposed to a wide range of risks. In this context, risk 
is defined as an event, an action and/or the failure to act with the 
potential for adverse effects on the company. Risk strategy is an integral 
part of the corporate strategy of SIMONA and coexists alongside the 
business strategy. The risk culture of SIMONA is characterised by risk 
awareness in respect of decision-making processes and embraces the 
principles of diligent action based on prudence. In identifying opportuni-
ties at an early stage and applying diligence with regard to the exposure 
to corporate or business risks, SIMONA endeavours to safeguard its 
existence as a going concern and protect its enterprise value. Risk con-
trolling is aimed at avoiding, mitigating or transferring risks. All remaining 
risks are managed accordingly by SIMONA. Risks are communicated as 
part of half-yearly risk reports to the Management Board and the 
Supervisory Board.

The risk management system includes the full range of guidelines and 
measures required to identify risk and to manage risk associated with 
commercial operations. The policies, the structural and procedural 
organisation as well as the processes of the internal control and risk 
management system operated in respect of financial reporting have 
been incorporated in guidelines and organisational instructions. They 
are revised regularly to account for the latest external and internal 
developments.

As regards financial reporting and the accounting process, we consider 
those elements to be of significance to the internal control and risk 
management system that may potentially influence financial reporting 
and the overall assessment of the annual financial statements, includ-
ing the management report. These elements are as follows:

 � Measures that safeguard the appropriate IT-based preparation of 
items and data of relevance to financial reporting

 � Monitoring of commodity price trends for accounting-related control 
of procurement and sales prices within the context of price manage-
ment

On the basis of a risk map, the risk management system of SIMONA 
controls the following material risks associated with the Group. The 
management of opportunities and risks is centred around the aspects 
of effect and probability of occurrence. Significant individual risks are 
considered to be those displaying a medium risk profile with an expected 
value in excess of €5.0 million when viewed over the medium term. The 
expected value is computed as the product of the effect/impact and the 
probability of occurrence; it is used solely for prioritising and focusing 
risk reporting on issues of material importance. A probability of occur-
rence of over 50 per cent is considered high, while one of less than 50 
per cent is deemed low.

SIMONA considers the following individual risks to be material:
 � Macroeconomic and sales market risks
 � Business strategy risks
 � Financial risks
 � Risks attributable to procurement and purchasing
 � Investment risks
 � Risks attributable to information technology

Macroeconomic and sales market risks
The risks associated with the general business environment and the 
sector in which the company operates relate mainly to the economic 
performance of customer segments served by SIMONA. They also 
include exchange rate and commodity price volatility, political conflicts 
and the availability of raw materials. Among the primary sector-specific 
risks are the substitution of plastics with other materials, new develop-
ments within the competitive environment, the loss of key customers 
and changes to customer requirements. A diversified product portfolio, 
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thorough monitoring of markets and structured procurement manage-
ment provide the basis for risk mitigation. Further expansion of produc-
tion in the United States following the recent corporate acquisition and 
at the plants located in China and the Czech Republic will ensure a high 
degree of flexibility and will help to meet customer requirements in close 
proximity to their sites of operation and in a market-driven manner.

The company continues to be exposed to significant geopolitical risks. 
Worldwide, the risks have also become more pronounced due to the 
spread of the coronavirus and the debate surrounding plastics and the 
environment. Risks relating to the business environment and industry 
within the segment comprising Europe are being driven by the effects of 
Brexit, possible further trade conflicts and political uncertainties. In the 
Americas, meanwhile, risk exposure is being influenced by protectionist 
trade policies as well as by the conflict with Iran and the direction taken 
by the US dollar exchange rate. In the Asia and Pacific segment, the 
weak economic performance of China poses a risk that is exacerbated 
by the impact of the coronavirus. As regards the aspect of changes to 
sales markets, the decline in revenue in the medium term is projected 
at approx. €5.0 to 10.0 million, with a probability of occurrence of under 
50 per cent at present. 

Business strategy risks
In particular, they include the risk of misjudging future market develop-
ments and are estimated to result in revenue shortfalls of around €5.0 
to 10.0 million. Measures aimed at risk prevention mainly include close 
monitoring of the market and competitive environment as well as regular 
strategy meetings with key accounts and between the company’s senior 
management and sales organisation. The probability of adverse effects 
occurring from exposure to business strategy risks is at present not 
considered to be material.

Financial risks
These encompass, above all, currency risks, default risks including risks 
associated with voidability of insolvency, product liability risks, risks of a 
change in interest rates and risks associated with the company pension 
scheme.

The principal aim of financial risk management is to mitigate risks 
attributable to ongoing operating and finance-related transactions. 
Depending on the risk, the aim is to restrict individual risks as required 
by means of derivative financial instruments and non-derivative hedging 
instruments.

Dependence on the euro within the Group was scaled back further 
through the corporate acquisitions in recent years as well as the contin-
ued expansion of production and the company’s market position in the 
United States. At the same time, currency risk relating to US dollar 
transactions remains high for SIMONA. In the medium term, the proba-
bility of occurrence of a dilutive or accretive effect on earnings equiva-
lent to €3.0 to 6.0 million is estimated at over 50 per cent. The global 
economy grew less in 2019 than originally predicted and a slight recov-
ery with higher growth rates was forecast for 2020, although the nega-
tive effects of the corona crisis cannot be estimated at present. The 
business-related risks of a slowdown in economic performance remain 
high.

The risk of bad debt losses is particularly high within the Southern and 
Eastern European market. Within this context, thorough assessments of 
credit ratings and continuous monitoring within this area help to mitigate 
risk as a whole as well as risk associated with individually identifiable 
items. At €0.7 million, the potential risk roughly corresponds to the value 
of overdue receivables in the region of Southern and Eastern Europe. As 
regards transactions in Russia, a separate directive for the conclusion of 
business agreements relating to this country is in place for the purpose 
of limiting associated risks. Default-related risk associated with specific 
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customers is limited by credit insurance and the cut-off of deliveries in 
the case of outstanding payments. In addition, there are the risks with 
regard to voidability of insolvency, which are covered by appropriate 
insurance. The carrying amounts of inventories are assessed on a regu-
lar basis, and adjustments in the form of allowances are made for spe-
cific unsaleable products.

Risks associated with interest rate changes are currently considered to 
be elevated. Interest payable in connection with KfW loans is based on 
fixed interest rates. Therefore, there are no risks associated with inter-
est rate changes in this area. The overdraft facility of SIMONA AG, with 
its floating interest rate calculated on the basis of EONIA (euro overnight 
index average), is not being utilised at present.

The risks associated with occupational pension schemes are consid-
ered to be significant and the probability of their occurrence is deemed 
to be high. Risks that are difficult to gauge in the long term, such as 
future levels of pay and pensions as well as risks relating to higher life 
expectancy, have been categorised as material. The risks from pension 
obligations that may result from a cumulative change of +/- 0.5 per cent 
in the above-mentioned parameters are estimated at a total of around 
€30 to 40 million. They also include risks or encumbrances that are 
difficult to predict with regard to liquidity and equity, risks associated 
with investments and volatility of plan assets as well as fluctuating costs 
in respect of contributions to the German Pensionssicherungsverein. 
The volatility of plan assets is estimated at around €3 to 10 million, 
which is attributable primarily to the share performance of SIMONA AG 
stock in recent years. The corona crisis has recently led to a considera-
ble slump in prices on stock markets. The repercussions are as yet 
unknown. Plan assets were stable at the end of the year under review. 
SIMONA AG shares were up €0.5 million year on year. 

Risks attributable to procurement and purchasing
As was the case in previous years, these risks are related primarily to 
potential disruptions or outages with regard to suppliers of raw materials 
and additives as well as volatile commodity price trends within the 
markets for raw materials. The direction taken by input commodities 
(naphtha, propylene and ethylene) that are of relevance to raw materials 
used by the company does not necessarily coincide with the price trend 
for crude oil. The prices of raw materials, especially commodities, fell 
continuously during the year under review. Market prices were influ-
enced primarily by demand and supply. We anticipate that the supply of 
raw materials and additives will remain stable in 2020. In the medium to 
long term, raw material prices are expected to remain stable. However, 
geopolitical influences, especially the corona crisis, may trigger signifi-
cant price volatility. A 10 per cent increase in raw material prices that 
cannot be passed on to the sales market would result in an increase in 
raw material costs of around €3.5 million. However, the probability of 
occurrence is currently considered low.

Investment risks
Investment risks mainly include the risk of misinvestment in machinery 
and in foreign investments. Potential investment risks are currently 
estimated at around €5.0 million and a probability of just under 50 per 
cent.

Risks attributable to information technology
Ongoing monitoring and optimisation of existing information technology 
are essential to the safety and reliability of business processes. With 
this in mind, refinements to measures already implemented within the 
area of information security are considered particularly important. The 
primary risks involved relate to the availability, reliability and efficiency 
of information technology systems, including a failure of the IT infra-
structure, loss of data and attacks on IT systems. SIMONA addresses 
risks relating to information technology through its in-house IT depart-
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ment as well as by commissioning specialised companies and making 
regular investments in the latest hardware and software. SIMONA 
responds to growing demands placed on system protection as part of its 
safety management programme. This mainly includes investments in 
the latest firewall and antivirus systems as well as other software sys-
tems. A significant loss in revenue caused by a temporary system failure 
is estimated at around €10.0 million. The probability of occurrence of 
external attacks on IT systems, in particular, has increased further.

In our assessment, the Group’s overall risk situation at the end of the 
2019 financial year is essentially unchanged compared with the previ-
ous year, although it should be noted that the corona crisis may have a 
significant impact that cannot be reliably predicted at present. At the 
time of preparing this report, there were no identifiable risks that might 
jeopardise the existence of the SIMONA Group and SIMONA AG as a 
going concern.

Internal control system (ICS) relating to financial reporting 
– Report pursuant to Section 289(4) and Section 315(4) 
HGB
The internal control system relating to financial reporting, which imple-
ments specific controls with regard to the financial reporting process, is 
aimed at providing reasonable assurance that annual financial state-
ments and consolidated financial statements can be prepared in 
accordance with statutory requirements despite possible risks.

The ICS encompasses accounting-related processes and controls that 
are of significance to the preparation of the consolidated financial 
statements. In this context, the SIMONA Group observes the relevant 
publications issued by the German Institute of Public Auditors (Institut 
der Wirtschaftsprüfer – IDW). There were no significant changes to the 
accounting-related ICS in the period between the end of the reporting 
period and the preparation of the management report.

Bookkeeping and financial statement preparation are performed primar-
ily at a decentralised level in accordance with local standards. The con-
solidated financial statements are prepared in accordance with 
International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS). In this context, 
SIMONA applies a uniform system of accounts within the Group and an 
accounting manual. The parent company assists the respective entities 
with regard to issues relating to financial reporting and coordinates the 
process of Group financial reporting. All entities included within the 
consolidated group have been integrated within this system by means of 
clearly defined management and reporting structures. The inclusion of 
subsidiaries is managed with the help of standardised reporting pack-
ages and a system certified in accordance with IDW PS 880. Consolida-
tion is performed as a multi-stage process at the level of subsidiaries, 
segments and the Group.

The plausibility of numerical data is safeguarded at all levels by means 
of system-specific validation and through manual controls. Clearly 
defined areas of responsibility and access policies in respect of IT sys-
tems of relevance to the preparation of financial statements form an 
integral part of this process. Fundamental control policies applicable to 
the annual and consolidated financial statements include the separa-
tion of duties, the principle of four eyes and approval and release proce-
dures for the process of financial statement preparation. Overall 
responsibility for the accounting-related internal control systems rests 
with the Management Board.



ZUSAMMENGEFASSTER  LAGEBERICHT

  Annual Report 2019 61

Content
Introduction 2
SIMONA Key Financials 3

TO OUR SHAREHOLDERS

COMBINED MANAGEMENT 
REPORT
Fundamental information 
about the group 41
Business review 45
Report on opportunities 
and risks 57
Report on expected 
 developments 62
Other information 64
Non-financial statement 
in accordance with section 
289 b)-e) HGB 67

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL 
STATEMENTS

OTHER DETAILS

Report on opportunities and risks3.

  Consolidated Financial Statements 2019 – SIMONA AG 23

Contents
COMBINED MANAGEMENT 
REPORT
Fundamental information  
about the group 3
Business review 7
Report on opportunities  
and risks 19
Report on expected  
developments 24
Other information 26
Non-financial statement  
in accordance with section  
289 b)-e) HGB 29

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL 
STATEMENTS
Group Income Statement 34
Group Statement of 
Comprehensive Income 35
Group Statement of 
Financial Position 36
Group Statement of 
Cash Flows 38
Group Statement of  
Changes in Equity 39
Notes to Consolidated  
Financial Statements 40
Reproduction of the  
Auditor’s Report 88
Other Information 95



Economic conditions
The IMF’s forecast for 2020 and 2021 was based on the assumption of 
a tentative stabilisation and sluggish recovery of the global economy. 
Nevertheless, in spring, the IMF revised downwards its outlook for global 
economic growth slightly to 2.9 per cent for this year and 3.3 per cent 
for next year. This was attributable to the unexpectedly poor perfor-
mance of the Indian economy. Major forecasting institutes are expecting 
a significant deterioration following the global spread of the coronavirus 
and the associated effects on companies. This also applies to the sec-
tor-specific conditions. At the time of preparing the management report 
it was impossible to quantify the possible deterioration caused by the 
corona crisis.

According to IMF data, the established economies as a whole were likely 
to see growth of 1.6 per cent in 2020. The rate of expansion in the 
United States was predicted to fall from 2.3 to 2 per cent. For the euro-
zone, the IMF assumed GDP growth of 1.3 per cent, while for Germany 
the IMF had revised downwards its forecast to 1.1 per cent. France’s 
economy was predicted to grow by 1.3 per cent. Italy remains at the 
bottom of the league in the eurozone with 0.5 per cent economic growth 
for 2020. For China, the IMF pointed to a further slowdown in growth of 
6 per cent and India’s economy was predicted to expand by just 4.8 per 
cent due to a stronger than expected decline in domestic demand. 
Overall, it should be noted that a deterioration is to be expected in the 
wake of the coronavirus pandemic.

Companies in the chemical industry in Germany do not expect any short-
term improvement in their business and assume that the low economic 
momentum will continue well into the current year. According to the VCI, 
foreign markets will also fail to provide any strong impetus for a turna-
round in the chemical industry. For 2020, the VCI assumed only a slight 
increase in production output of 0.5 per cent in the chemical-pharma-
ceutical sector. With prices stagnating, revenue was predicted to grow 
by 0.5 per cent within the chemical industry as a whole. The mechanical 

engineering industry in Germany is also continuing to face considerable 
challenges. Due to the weakness of the global economy, the trade dis-
pute between the United States and China and growing global protec-
tionism, the industry association VDMA predicted a real decline in 
production of 2 per cent in 2020. The construction industry associations 
in Germany forecast nominal revenue growth of 5.5 per cent for 2020. 
Here too, it should be noted that the situation is expected to deteriorate 
in the wake of the coronavirus pandemic.

Sector-specific conditions
The industry association GKV assumes that the plastics processing 
industry in Germany will at best trend sideways in 2020. Companies’ 
expectations with regard to revenues and earnings have deteriorated 
significantly. This is mainly due to growing uncertainty about the eco-
nomic and political fundamentals – currently exacerbated by the spread 
of the coronavirus. 

Future performance of the Group
SIMONA anticipates that Group revenue for the 2020 financial year will 
be between €430 and 440 million, while the EBIT margin is expected to 
be between 6 and 8 per cent and the EBITDA margin between 9 to 11 
per cent. At Group level, the return on capital employed (ROCE) in 2020 
is expected to be between 8 and 10 per cent. 

The stagnating revenue forecast takes into account the past and antici-
pated effects of the coronavirus outbreak, price-related pressure likely 
to result from the lower oil price and an increase in revenue in the 
product area of pipes and fittings for infrastructure applications.

The company’s ability to achieve its earnings targets will depend primar-
ily on how the increasingly sluggish world economy develops. Against 
this backdrop, profit margins may come under greater pressure. Addi-
tionally, the attainment of earnings targets will depend on whether pro-
jected growth in the aviation market and in the area of Pipes and Fittings 
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will materialise as planned. Furthermore, the impact of the coronavirus 
pandemic on the economy as a whole and on the Aviation business in 
particular is considered a key factor. 

NON-FINANCIAL INDICATORS

Customer satisfaction
SIMONA is confident that it can maintain customer satisfaction at the 
present level thanks to the strengthening of its technical capabilities as 
well as its focus on new market segments and the core market of 
industrial products.

Quality
As part of the company’s quality management measures, SIMONA has 
set itself the same ambitious targets for product quality as in the previ-
ous year and assumes that it will be able to reach this level.

Employees
The number of employees within the SIMONA Group is likely to remain 
stable in 2020. Based on the apprenticeship contracts already con-
cluded, the headcount of vocational trainees is expected to be similar to 
that seen in the preceding year.

Future performance of SIMONA AG
SIMONA anticipates that revenue for the 2020 financial year will be 
between €295 and 305 million, while the EBIT margin is expected to be 
between 1 and 2 per cent and the EBITDA margin between 1.5 to 2.5 
per cent. The return on capital employed (ROCE) in 2020 is expected to 
be between 2 and 4 per cent. The forecast takes into account the 
effects of the coronavirus seen to date as well as those currently 
expected for the future.

In the sales region covering Germany, an expansion of the Pipes and 
Fittings business should compensate for declines in the area of 
Semi-Finished Parts. The region comprising the Rest of Europe and 
Africa is expected to see a stable development of sales revenue. The 
region covering the Americas and the region encompassing Asia and 
Pacific are expected to remain stable year on year.


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5.1 CORPORATE GOVERNANCE STATEMENT

The corporate governance statement pursuant to Section 289f of the 
German Commercial Code (Handelsgesetzbuch – HGB) has been pub-
lished by SIMONA AG on its corporate website at www.simona.de.

5.2 MANAGEMENT BOARD COMPENSATION

The Supervisory Board, based on the recommendations of the Person-
nel Committee, is responsible for determining the overall compensation 
of the respective Management Board members. It also regularly reviews 
the compensation system relating to the Management Board. The Per-
sonnel Committee consists of the Supervisory Board Chairman Dr. Rolf 
Goessler as well as the Supervisory Board members Roland Frobel and 
Dr. Roland Reber. Compensation for the members of the Management 
Board of SIMONA AG is calculated on the basis of the size of the com-
pany, its commercial and financial position, as well as the level and 
structure of compensation granted to Management Board members of 
similar enterprises. In addition, the duties and the contribution of the 
respective members of the Management Board are taken into account.

Management Board compensation is performance-based. It is com-
prised of a fixed level of remuneration as well as a variable component. 
The fixed component of compensation is paid as a salary on a monthly 
basis. The variable component of compensation is reviewed annually, 
while the fixed component is assessed once every two years. In addition, 
both components are subject to thorough analyses in intervals of two to 
three years, based on a comparison with compensation figures applica-
ble to executive staff of similar enterprises. The variable component of 
Management Board compensation is based on earnings performance 
within the Group and a long-term incentive programme. As regards the 
performance periods 2017 to 2019, average Group NOPAT (net operat-
ing profit after tax) is used as the key performance indicator, calculated 

on the basis of a three-year performance period. The first performance 
period encompasses the financial years 2017 to 2019, the second 
performance period comprises the financial years 2018 to 2020 and 
the third performance period covers the financial years from 2019 to 
2021. Payment occurs subsequent to the adoption of the consolidated 
financial statements for the final year of the respective performance 
period. In the financial year under review Management Board compen-
sation included the following components:

COMPOSITION OF MANAGEMENT BOARD COMPENSATION

in € ‘000 2019 2018

Fixed compensation

Fixed salary and fringe benefits 1,140 890

Variable compensation

Annual bonus 959 1,064

Long-term incentive programme

Period 2016-2018, payment 2019 – 600

Period 2017-2019, payment 2020 502 –

Period 2018-2020, payment 2020 330 –

Period 2019-2021, payment 2020 126 –

Total compensation 3,057 2,554

The increase in Management Board remuneration in 2019 is mainly due 
to the temporary dual appointment of Management Board members. On 
10 June 2016, the Annual General Meeting of Shareholders of SIMONA 
AG agreed by a majority of three-quarters to disclose Management 
Board compensation in an aggregated format, divided into fixed and 
performance-related components, rather than disclosing each amount 
by name. The resolution is valid up to and including the 2020 financial 
year. Therefore, no individual, i.e. itemised, disclosures are made under 
Section 285 no. 9 a) sentence 5 to 8 and Section 314(1) no. 6 a) sen-
tence 5 to 8 of the German Commercial Code (Handelsgesetzbuch – 
HGB).
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The company’s Articles of Association contain no provisions that are 
non-compliant with those set out in the German Stock Corporation Act 
as regards the conditions applicable to the appointment or removal of 
Management Board members as well as amendments to the company’s 
Articles of Association. In view of this, readers are asked to refer to the 
relevant statutory provisions set out in Sections 84, 85, 133 and 179 of 
the German Stock Corporation Act (Aktiengesetz – AktG) for further 
details.

Remuneration for the former members of the Management Board 
amounts to €304 thousand (previous year: €301 thousand). Pension 
provisions for active and former members of the Management Board, as 
governed by the German Commercial Code, were recognised to the full 
extent and amounted to €12,651 thousand as at 31 December 2019 
(previous year: €12,478 thousand). IFRS-based pension provisions for 
active and former members of the Management Board were recognised 
to the full extent and amounted to €17,393 thousand as at 31 Decem-
ber 2019 (previous year: €15,846 thousand).

The members of the Management Board also receive fringe benefits in 
the form of non-cash remuneration, which mainly consists of a company 
car, telephone and insurance policies. Members of the Management 
Board received neither loans or share options nor other share-based 
compensation from the company.

Supervisory Board compensation
Supervisory Board compensation is calculated according to the size of 
the company, as well as the duties and responsibilities of the Supervi-
sory Board members. The Chairman and the Deputy Chairman as well 
as members involved in Committees receive supplementary compensa-
tion.

Members of the Supervisory Board of SIMONA AG receive a standard 
fixed level of compensation amounting to €13,000. The Chairman of the 

Supervisory Board receives an amount equivalent to double the stand-
ard level of compensation; the Deputy Chairman receives an amount 
equivalent to one and a half times the standard level of compensation. 
Supervisory Board members who are engaged in Committee work 
receive supplementary fixed compensation of €7,000. All expenses 
associated directly with a position on the Supervisory Board, as well as 
sales tax payable on such compensation, are reimbursed.

In addition to fixed compensation, the General Meeting of Shareholders 
shall be authorised to pass a resolution on a variable component of 
compensation, payment of which shall be dependent on whether spe-
cific corporate performance indicators have been met or exceeded. At 
the Annual General Meeting of Shareholders on 7 June 2019 no such 
resolution for variable compensation components was passed for the 
2019 financial year.

Supervisory Board compensation for the financial year under review 
amounted to €156 thousand (previous year: €162 thousand), of which 
€140 thousand (previous year: €140 thousand) was attributable to 
SIMONA AG. Members of the Supervisory Board received neither loans 
or share options nor other share-based compensation from the com-
pany.

5.3  DISCLOSURES PURSUANT TO SECTION 289A AND 
SECTION 315A HGB AND EXPLANATORY REPORT

As at 31 December 2019, the share capital of SIMONA AG remained 
unchanged at €15,500,000, divided into 600,000 no-par-value bearer 
shares (“Stückaktien” governed by German law). The shares are traded 
in the General Standard of the German stock exchange in Frankfurt as 
well as on the Berlin securities exchange. There are no different catego-
ries of share or shares furnished with special rights. Each share is 
equipped with one vote at the General Meeting of Shareholders. In view 
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of the fact that a shareholder’s right to a certificate of ownership inter-
ests has been precluded under the company’s Articles of Association, 
the share capital of our company is represented only in the form of a 
global certificate, which has been deposited with Clearstream Banking 
AG, Frankfurt am Main. Therefore, our shareholders will in future only 
have an interest as co-owners in the collective holdings of the no-par-
value shares in our company, as held by Clearstream Banking AG, 
according to their interest in the company’s share capital.

A 31.19 per cent interest was held by Dr. Wolfgang und Anita Bürkle 
Stiftung, Kirn, a 15.04 per cent interest by Kreissparkasse Biberach 
(Biberach), an 11.64 per cent interest by Dirk Möller (Kirn), an 11.25 per 
cent interest by Regine Tegtmeyer (Nebel), a 10.0 per cent interest by 
SIMONA Vermögensverwaltungsgesellschaft der Belegschaft mbH (Kirn) 
and a 10.10 per cent interest by Rossmann Beteiligungs GmbH (Burg-
wedel). The remaining 10.78 per cent of shares in the company were in 
free float.

As at 7 June 2019, members of the Management Board reported a total 
holding of 70,860 shares; this corresponds to 11.81 per cent of the 
share capital of SIMONA AG. The members of the Supervisory Board 
reported holdings of 1,300 shares as at the attendance date of the 
Annual General Meeting on 7 June 2019, which corresponds to 0.22 per 
cent of share capital of SIMONA AG.

To the extent that employees hold an interest in the company’s capital, 
these employees themselves directly exercise the rights of control 
associated with their shareholdings. The appointment and the removal 
of members of the Management Board are governed by the statutory 
provisions set out in Sections 84 and 85 of the German Stock Corpora-
tion Act (Aktiengesetz – AktG) as well as by Section 9 of the Articles of 
Association of SIMONA AG. Under these provisions, the Management 
Board of the company consists of at least two members. The appoint-
ment of deputy members of the Management Board is permitted. The 

Management Board shall generally have a Chairperson appointed by the 
Supervisory Board.

The Supervisory Board may delegate decisions on the conclusion, 
amendment and termination of Management Board employment con-
tracts to a Supervisory Board committee. Any amendments to the Arti-
cles of Association must be made in accordance with the statutory 
provisions set out in Section 179 et seq. of the German Stock Corpora-
tion Act.

According to Section 6 of the Articles of Association, the company is 
entitled to issue share certificates that embody one share (single certif-
icate) or multiple shares (global certificates).

At present there are no significant agreements containing a change of 
control provision that would apply in the event of a takeover bid.

At present there are no agreements with members of the Management 
Board or with employees relating to compensation payments in the 
event of a change of control.
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Brief description of business model
The SIMONA Group develops, manufactures and markets a range of 
semi-finished thermoplastics, pipes and fittings as well as profiles. The 
materials used include polyethylene (PE), polypropylene (PP), polyvinyl 
chloride (PVC), polyethylene terephthalate (PETG), polyvinylidene fluo-
ride (PVDF), ethylene-chlorotrifluoroethylene (E-CTFE), perfluoroalkoxy 
(PFA), thermoplastic olefins (TPO), acrylonitrile butadiene styrene (ABS) 
and various specialist materials. The production methods applied within 
this area range from extrusion, pressing and injection moulding to CNC 
manufacturing. SIMONA also maintains its own plastics workshop for 
the production of customised fittings.

Semi-finished parts are deployed mainly within the area of chemical 
tank and equipment construction, mechanical engineering, the trans-
port industry, the construction sector, the exhibition and display sector 
as well as the automotive and aerospace industry. Pipes and fittings are 
used primarily for drinking-water supply, sewage disposal and industrial 
piping systems, including the chemical process industry. Finished parts 
and profiles are destined in particular for the mechanical engineering 
and transport technology sectors.

As a company, SIMONA is aware of its responsibilities towards people 
and the environment. Environmental, social and energy issues are key 
factors for SIMONA.

Environmental issues
A certified environmental management system in accordance with the 
requirements of DIN EN ISO 14001 forms part of the company’s central 
policies. This international standard for environmental management 
systems is designed to give certified companies a framework for protect-
ing the environment and responding to changing circumstances in 
compliance with socio-economic requirements. The systematic approach 
promoted by the standard furnishes information that fosters success in 

the long term and opens up opportunities that contribute to sustainable 
development.

SIMONA has adopted an environmental management system at its sites 
in Kirn and Ringsheim in Germany and Litvinov in the Czech Republic 
and ensures compliance with its requirements through surveillance and 
recertification audits.

Material risks associated with SIMONA’s business activities that could 
be very likely to have a serious negative impact on the environment 
relate to the contamination of the soil, air or bodies of water as a result 
of accidents, fires or the discharge of production waste.

SIMONA manages its fire risk through preventive fire protection meas-
ures: regular maintenance for its extinguishers, inspections conducted 
with the insurer and fire service, a dedicated set of fire protection regu-
lations and annual staff briefings. Accident-related risk is managed with 
regular checks and maintenance of plant and equipment, structural 
measures such as retention basins, collecting pans and sealed floors 
and by storing hazardous substances in compliance with the law. 
SIMONA follows fixed emergency plans in the event of an accident, car-
ries out weekly, semi-annual and annual maintenance and tests the 
leak-tightness of its oil separators every five years. Test and inspection 
intervals are complied with and emissions are measured regularly. 
SIMONA disposes of waste that cannot be returned to the production 
cycle in accordance with the provisions of the German Circular Economy 
Act (Kreislaufwirtschaftsgesetz). Waste is mainly recycled in-house or 
passed on to external recycling firms. All waste disposal companies 
used have been certified and are authorised in accordance with the 
relevant statutory provisions. Staff receive regular training on prevent-
ing, recycling and disposing of waste. Reducing waste as a percentage 
of production volume is one of the company’s key objectives.
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Material risks that are associated with the corporation’s business rela-
tionships, products and services and that could be very likely to have a 
serious negative impact on the environment relate to the environmental 
footprint of the raw materials that SIMONA uses, the disposal/recycling 
of waste at customers’ premises and non-conformance with product 
properties in environmentally critical and safety-related applications.

SIMONA manages risks associated with the environmental footprint of 
the raw materials it uses by carefully selecting resource suppliers based 
on the certifications they have obtained (origin, observing blacklists), 
substituting hazardous substances right from the research and develop-
ment stage and complying with applicable legislation governing the use 
of hazardous substances. SIMONA provides its customers with regular 
updates on the correct ways to use, recycle and dispose of its products 
and the waste that is generated when these products are processed 
further. Product characteristics, key data and safe storage and process-
ing instructions are listed in material and safety data sheets for each 
product, which are available online. The risk of non-conformance with 
product properties is managed with a dedicated quality assurance sys-
tem, which sets out testing and inspection plans for all products. Addi-
tionally, durable SIMONA products help to deliver effective solutions in 
response to market challenges, e.g. with regard to environmental engi-
neering and utilities. SIMONA is an active member of VinylPlus, an 
organisation that focuses on improving sustainability within the PVC 
supply chain. In addition, the company is a co-initiator and holder of the 
PVC quality mark issued by Industrieverband Halbzeuge und Konsum-
produkte aus Kunststoff e. V. (pro-K). Those entitled to use the mark 
have committed themselves to specific quality standards, in addition to 
delivering the best possible manufacturing expertise and a premi-
um-quality service. In 2019, SIMONA joined the “Zero Pellet Loss” initia-
tive organised by Industrieverband Halbzeuge und Konsumprodukte e.V. 
– pro-K. “Zero Pellet Loss” is part of a global initiative launched by the 
plastics industry. Plastic associations around the world are participating 

in this initiative under the names “Zero Pellet Loss” and “Operation 
Clean Sweep” to prevent the loss of plastic pellets along the entire 
supply chain. Through its membership, SIMONA also participates in 
projects aimed at preventing marine litter. A prerequisite for participa-
tion was that SIMONA should create the necessary technical and 
organisational conditions at its facilities to prevent pellet spillage. The 
package of measures also includes staff training and regular monitoring 
of effectiveness.

Energy issues
A certified energy management system in accordance with the require-
ments of DIN EN ISO 50001 forms part of the company’s central poli-
cies. This international standard for the energy management system is 
designed to help certified companies to develop systems and processes 
to become more energy-efficient. Adopting a systematic approach in 
order to introduce, implement, maintain and improve an energy manage-
ment system is intended to enable companies to continuously improve 
their performance as regards energy management, energy efficiency 
and energy saving. The standard sets out requirements governing the 
supply, use and consumption of energy, including measurement, docu-
mentation and reporting as well as practical design and procurement 
rules for facilities, systems, processes and personnel that consume 
energy.

SIMONA has adopted an energy management system at its sites in Kirn 
and Ringsheim in Germany and Litvinov in the Czech Republic and 
ensures compliance with its requirements through surveillance and 
recertification audits. The most recent recertification took place in 
2018. 

Material risks associated with SIMONA’s business activities that could 
be very likely to have a serious negative impact on energy issues relate 
to the consumption of resources and the production of emissions.




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SIMONA manages these risks with measures designed to improve 
energy efficiency and reduce emissions. The company assesses its 
energy consumption and efficiency by means of energy performance 
indicators (ENPIs), which compare consumption data with the relevant 
production volumes. Key objectives in the field of energy management 
are increasing energy efficiency and cutting consumption.

Personnel matters
The company’s employees are a key pillar of its success. This is an 
integral part of the company culture embraced by us and is thus also 
enshrined at several levels in our Code of Conduct, which applies equally 
to employees, line managers and senior executives at all SIMONA com-
panies.

For instance, the company has made health and safety at work a priority 
and has introduced a “Vision Zero” (referring to the number of occupa-
tional accidents) action plan. This is a multi-year concept for the sustain-
able reduction of occupational accidents, consisting of an extensive 
range of individual measures. The execution of these measures was also 
defined as a target in the Balanced Scorecard for the European sites. 
The collection of data relating to accidents at work in accordance with 
an internationally harmonised definition will now also be carried out on 
an international basis from 2020. All occupational accidents are logged 
in reports by the health and safety officers appointed by the company 
before their causes are analysed and preventive action is determined 
based on this analysis. SIMONA AG has also set up a healthcare team 
geared towards keeping staff healthy through various campaigns (e.g. 
free supply of fruit, allowance for gym membership, Health Days).

A keen supporter of diversity and equal opportunities for all its employ-
ees, SIMONA had, upon introduction of statutory regulations governing 
such target figures, set itself the target in 2015 of appointing female 
executives to 20 per cent of positions at the level below the SIMONA AG 

Management Board. As this target was met at the first scheduled date 
of review, a new target of 25 per cent was set in 2018.

SIMONA AG invests in bringing on suitable young talent and regularly 
participates in joint projects with schools and universities (school men-
toring schemes, MINT programme). As well as training, applicants who 
fit the criteria can look forward to a dual-degree course, subsidised 
training to fit around their existing work commitments (part-time degree) 
or a placement at one of the foreign sites run by our subsidiaries. 
SIMONA AG maintains partnerships with the universities in Lud-
wigshafen, Darmstadt and Mainz in order to offer these part-time 
degrees.

SIMONA regularly seeks its employees’ opinions in anonymous staff 
surveys and uses the results to devise tangible measures to improve 
staff satisfaction. To a large extent, the SIMONA companies located in 
Germany have already implemented performance appraisals. As regards 
the commercial functions at the Kirn site, they are, in part, already 
organised on the basis of a skills matrix. This set-up allows every 
employee to be shown the requirements of their position and the extent 
to which they themselves are meeting these requirements. Training 
needs are determined based on these annual PDRs. Feedback from 
training courses attended is evaluated systematically.

In 2020, SIMONA will focus on employee training and will establish a 
central training management system based on key topics identified by 
the organisation.  

Within the SIMONA companies, the flow of information to staff is guar-
anteed by the SIMONA intranet, a noticeboard system, departmental 
get-togethers and regular shift training and company meetings.




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SIMONA recognises the right of all its employees to be represented on, 
in and by trade unions and to form staff committees. There are long-es-
tablished employee representatives at the German sites: at the Kirn site 
the workforce is also represented by the IGBCE.

Material risks to which we could be exposed by neglecting personnel 
matters relate to a loss of staff – and thus their expertise and potential 
trade secrets – to the competition. A “brain drain” of this kind can also 
mean a fall in quality, which could have financial implications in the form 
of higher warranty claims and the loss of customers. Last but not least, 
high rates of sickness absence have a negative impact on site produc-
tivity. We are also facing the challenges of demographic change, which 
for us brings risks associated with capacity and an ageing population as 
well as the issue of how to recruit young members of staff.

SIMONA has not yet assessed to what extent it complies with the 
underlying International Labour Organisation agreements as regards its 
measures and policies on personnel matters.

Human rights
SIMONA is committed to upholding internationally recognised human 
rights and, in its Code of Conduct, has imposed a binding obligation on 
itself and its staff to safeguard these rights. In so doing, we are support-
ing international diversity, advocating equal opportunities and demand-
ing mutual respect from our employees. Factors that are a potential 
source of discrimination such as gender, background, religion or sexual 
orientation are not considered when the company makes decisions. We 
wholeheartedly reject any form of forced or child labour and expect our 
business partners to do the same. We are continuously developing our 
approach. Breaches of the basic principles laid down in our Code of 
Conduct can be reported to the Compliance Officer and will be punished 
severely.

Combating bribery and corruption
Without exception or restriction, SIMONA undertakes not to give any 
illegal gratuities to its staff, advisors, commercial representatives, 
agents or similar third parties or to receive any such gratuities. SIMONA 
has issued policies for avoiding bribery and corruption in respect of 
various areas and everyday situations with which its employees could be 
confronted. Breaches will be punished severely.

Under some circumstances, breaches of the ban and related policies 
can be serious offences that can cause the company financial damage 
as well as significant damage to its reputation. They will also give many 
of our contractual partners grounds to terminate their cooperation. 
Finally, they can also lead to the company being excluded from bidding 
for public tenders in Germany and abroad.

Spotting risks early is a key criterion in preventing compliance breaches. 
The specific compliance risks to which SIMONA is exposed are deter-
mined, analysed and updated systematically in an annual process. 
Appropriate preventive measures are formulated and introduced as and 
when new risks emerge.

Checks as to whether the subsidiaries are complying with the regula-
tions on preventing bribery and corruption are performed by means of 
regular site audits, including inspecting accounts and cash holdings.

SIMONA has appointed a Compliance Officer to ensure the effective 
implementation of its compliance system. SIMONA allows both staff and 
external third parties to report breaches of the ban on bribery and cor-
ruption to the Compliance Officer anonymously.

Rather than following or being based on any national or international 
standards, the company’s system for combating bribery and corruption 
is structured in line with the individual requirements and risk situation 
within the organisation. 
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Social matters
As a company, SIMONA bears responsibility for the development and 
appeal of the cities and communities where it is based and takes social 
matters into account. It is committed to supporting social, cultural and 
aid projects at its various sites across the world. The due diligence pro-
cesses implemented as part of this philosophy lay down responsibilities 
and workflows for selecting the institutions, projects and initiatives to be 
supported and how much support each is to receive. At the Kirn site, 
support is also provided by the Dr. Wolfgang und Anita Bürkle Stiftung, 
SIMONA AG’s major shareholder. The foundation focuses on promoting 
education and healthcare, endangered species and animals in general, 
art and culture, development aid funding and charitable causes relating 
to social welfare facilities.

Forward-looking statements and forecasts
This combined management report contains forward-looking state-
ments that are based on the current expectations, presumptions and 
forecasts of the Management Board of SIMONA AG as well as on infor-
mation currently available to the Management Board. These for-
ward-looking statements shall not be interpreted as a guarantee that 
the future events and results to which they refer will actually materialise. 
Rather, future circumstances and results depend on a multitude of fac-
tors. These include various risks and imponderables, as well as being 
based on assumptions that may conceivably prove to be incorrect. 
SIMONA AG shall not be obliged to adjust or update the forward-looking 
statements made in this report.

Responsibility Statement
We hereby declare that, to the best of our knowledge, the combined 
management report includes a fair review of the development and per-
formance of the business and the position of the SIMONA Group and 
SIMONA AG, together with a description of the principal opportunities 
and risks associated with the expected development of the Group and 
SIMONA AG.

Kirn, 30 March 2020 
SIMONA Aktiengesellschaft 
The Management Board

Matthias Schönberg Dr. Jochen Hauck Michael Schmitz
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of SIMONA AG for the Financial Year 2019

in € ‘000 Notes 01/01 – 31/12/2019 01/01 – 31/12/2018

Revenue [7] 432,494 417,916

Other income [8] 4,602 4,879

Changes in inventories of finished goods and work in progress –2,055 7,269

Cost of materials [9] 226,534 232,968

Staff costs [10] 85,705 78,768

Amortisation/write-downs of intangible assets and depreciation/write-downs of  property, plant and 
 equipment as well as right-of-use assets under leases [3,17,18] 17,377 15,137

Other expenses [12] 75,998 69,951

Earnings before interest and taxes (EBIT) 29,428 33,240

Finance income [13] 1,023 1,881

Finance cost [13] 2,721 3,237

Result from investments accounted for using the equity method [19] 261 413

Earnings before taxes (EBT) 27,991 32,297

Income taxes [14] 7,404 8,046

Profit for the period 20,587 24,251

of which attributable to:

Owners of the parent company 20,477 24,146

Non-controlling interests 110 105

EARNINGS PER SHARE

in € 

–  basic, calculated on the basis of profit for the period attributable to ordinary shareholders of the parent 
company [15] 34.13 40.24

–  diluted, calculated on the basis of profit for the period attributable to ordinary shareholders of the parent 
company [15] 34.13 40.24
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of SIMONA AG for the Financial Year 2019

in € ‘000 01/01 – 31/12/2019 01/01 – 31/12/2018

Profit for the period 20,587 24,251

Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss:

Remeasurement of defined benefit obligations –27,145 –2,074

Deferred taxes on remeasurement of defined benefit obligations 8,013 603

Items that may be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss:

Exchange differences relating to currency translation 2,382 3,457

Deferred taxes from currency translation –132 –169

Other comprehensive income recognised directly in equity –16,881 1,817

Total comprehensive income 3,705 26,068

Total comprehensive income attributable to:

Owners of the parent company 3,595 25,954

Non-controlling interests 110 114
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of SIMONA AG for the Financial Year 2019

ASSETS

in € ‘000 Notes 31/12/2019 31/12/2018

Intangible assets [17] 38,007 39,060

Property, plant and equipment [18] 138,719 129,069

Financial assets [33] 340 340

Investments accounted for using the equity method [19] 1,143 949

Right-of-use assets under leases [3] 2,026 0

Deferred tax assets [14] 19,776 10,572

Non-current assets 200,011 179,990

Inventories [20] 89,655 92,355

Trade receivables [21] 59,702 64,017

Other assets [22] 5,749 6,408

Income tax assets [22] 4,607 4,235

Other financial assets [33] 2,036 1,406

Cash and cash equivalents [23, 30] 68,399 52,483

Current assets 230,148 220,904

Total assets 430,159 400,894

 Group Statement of Financial Position
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EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

in € ‘000 Notes 31/12/2019 31/12/2018

Equity attributable to owners of the parent company

Issued capital 15,500 15,500

Capital reserves 15,274 15,274

Revenue reserves 173,846 180,583

Other reserves 11,206 8,956

215,826 220,313

Non-controlling interests 464 390

Total equity [24] 216,290 220,703

Financial liabilities [25] 11,855 15,280

Provisions for pensions [26, 27] 136,150 104,356

Other provisions [28] 4,484 3,441

Liabilities under leases [3] 1,230 0

Other financial liabilities [25] 644 59

Deferred tax liabilities [14] 9,876 9,816

Non-current liabilities 164,239 132,952

Financial liabilities [25] 3,425 3,425

Provisions for pensions [26] 1,788 1,655

Other provisions [28] 1,091 2,034

Trade payables 18,738 20,987

Income tax liabilities 2,497 1,302

Liabilities under leases [3] 812 0

Other financial liabilities [25] 2,412 2,119

Other liabilities [29] 18,868 15,717

Current liabilities 49,631 47,239

Total equity and liabilities 430,159 400,894


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of SIMONA AG for the Financial Year 2019

in € ‘000 Notes 01/01 – 31/12/2019 01/01 – 31/12/2018
Earnings before taxes (EBT) 27,991 32,297
Income taxes paid –7,823 –6,701
Finance income and finance cost (excl. interest expense relating to pensions) [13] 291 210
Depreciation/write-downs of property, plant and equipment, and amortisation/write-downs of intangible assets as well as 
right-of-use assets under leases [3, 17, 18] 17,377 15,137
Other non-cash expenses and income 2,341 –585
Result from disposal of non-current assets 77 99
Change in inventories [20] 2,342 –10,228
Change in trade receivables [21] 5,068 –4,746
Change in other assets [22] –622 –2,784
Change in pension provisions [26, 27] 1,589 4,670
Change in liabilities and other provisions [28, 29] 3,017 7,408

Net cash from operating activities 51,648 34,777

Investments in intangible assets and property, plant and equipment [17, 18] –23,620 –17,205
Payments relating to acquisition of subsidiaries and other business units less net cash acquired 0 –25,167
Proceeds from the disposal of assets 266 2,634
Proceeds relating to the short-term financial management of cash investments [33] 0 89
Financial investments and payments relating to the short-term financial management of cash investments [33] 2 –291
Interest received [13] 135 147

Net cash used in investing activities –23,218 –39,793

Repayment of financial liabilities [25] –3,425 –3,425
Repayment of lease liabilities [3] –801 0
Payment of prior-year dividend [16] –8,400 –7,200
Payment of prior-year dividend to non-controlling interests –40 –41
Interest paid and similar expenses –249 –239

Net cash used in financing activities –12,915 –10,905

Effect of foreign exchange rate changes on liquidity [30] 401 382
Change in cash and cash equivalents 15,916 –15,539

Cash and cash equivalents at 1 January [23, 30] 52,483 68,022
Cash and cash equivalents at 31 December [23, 30] 68,399 52,483

Change in cash and cash equivalents 15,916 –15,539
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EQUITY ATTRIBUTABLE TO OWNERS OF THE PARENT COMPANY

NON-CONTROLLING 
INTERESTS TOTAL EQUITY

Issued 
 capital

Capital 
reserves

Revenue 
reserves

Other 
 reserves

Total

in € ‘000

Currency 
translation 
differences

Notes [24] [24] [24] [24]

Balance at 01/01/2018 15,500 15,274 165,498 5,677 201,949 317 202,266

Amount recognised directly in 
equity as part of the Statement 
of Comprehensive Income 0 0 –1,471 3,279 1,808 9 1,817

Profit for the period 0 0 24,146 0 24,146 105 24,251

Total comprehensive income 
for the period 0 0 22,675 3,279 25,954 114 26,068

Dividend payment [16] 0 0 –7,200 0 –7,200 –41 –7,241

Other changes 0 0 –390 0 –390 0 –390

Balance at 31/12/2018 15,500 15,274 180,583 8,956 220,313 390 220,703

Balance at 01/01/2019 15,500 15,274 180,583 8,956 220,313 390 220,703

Amount recognised directly in 
equity as part of the Statement 
of Comprehensive Income 0 0 –19,132 2,250 –16,881 0

 

–16,881

Profit for the period 0 0 20,477 0 20,477 110 20,587

Total comprehensive income 
for the period 0 0 1,345 2,250 3,595 110 3,705

Dividend payment [16] 0 0 –8,400 0 –8,400 –40 –8,440

Other changes 0 0 318 0 318 5 323

Balance at 31/12/2019 15,500 15,274 173,846 11,206 215,826 464 216,290

of SIMONA AG for the Financial Year 2019
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[1] COMPANY INFORMATION

SIMONA AG is a stock corporation (Aktiengesellschaft) founded in Ger-
many – registered office at Teichweg 16, 55606 Kirn, Germany. Its 
shares are traded within the General Standard of the Frankfurt and 
Berlin stock exchanges. The company has been entered in the Commer-
cial Register at the District Court of Bad Kreuznach (HRB 1390). The 
consolidated financial statements of SIMONA AG for the financial year 
ended 31 December 2019 were released by the Management Board on 
the basis of a resolution of 27 March 2020 for the purpose of forwarding 
them to the Supervisory Board.

The activities of the SIMONA Group mainly include the production and 
sale of semi-finished products in the form of sheets, rods, welding rods 
and profiles as well as pipes, fittings and finished parts made of thermo-
plastics.

The semi-finished parts are manufactured at the plant in Kirn (Germany) 
as well as in Archbald, Newcomerstown and Findlay (USA) and in Jiang-
men (China). Pipes and fittings are produced at the plant in Ringsheim 
(Germany). The plant in Litvinov (Czech Republic) manufactures semi-fin-
ished parts, pipes and fittings. The products are marketed under the 
joint SIMONA brand as well as a range of separate brands.

SIMONA AG operates a sales office in Möhlin, Switzerland, and is the 
ultimate controlling parent of the Group.

Additionally, the following subsidiaries, are responsible primarily for 
handling sales and distribution activities:

Company Registered office, country

SIMONA UK Ltd. Stafford, United Kingdom

SIMONA S.A.S. Domont, France

SIMONA S.r.l. Società UNIPERSONALE Cologno Monzese (MI), Italy

SIMONA IBERICA SEMIELABORADOS S.L. Barcelona, Spain

SIMONA POLSKA Sp. z o.o. Wrocław, Poland

DEHOPLAST POLSKA Sp. z o.o. Kwidzyn, Poland

SIMONA Plast-Technik s.r.o. Litvinov, Czech Republic

SIMONA FAR EAST LIMITED Hong Kong, China

SIMONA ENGINEERING PLASTICS TRADING
(SHANGHAI) CO., LTD. Shanghai, China

SIMONA ENGINEERING PLASTICS 
 (Guangdong) Co. Ltd. Jiangmen, China

SIMONA AMERICA Industries LLC Archbald, USA

SIMONA Boltaron Inc. (formerly Boltaron Inc.) Newcomerstown, USA

SIMONA PMC, LLC Findlay, USA

OOO SIMONA RUS Moscow, Russian Federation

SIMONA INDIA PRIVATE LIMITED Mumbai, India

of SIMONA AG for the Financial Year 2019
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[2] ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Basis of preparation
The consolidated financial statements are prepared using the historical 
cost principle, unless otherwise specified under [5] Summary of signifi-
cant accounting policies. The consolidated financial statements are 
prepared in euro. Unless otherwise stated, all amounts are rounded to € 
‘000. For computational reasons, the tables presented in this document 
may include rounding differences equivalent to +/- unit (€, %, etc.).

Statement of compliance with IFRS
The consolidated financial statements of SIMONA AG and the entities 
included in the consolidated group for the period ended 31 December 
2019 have been prepared in accordance with the International Financial 
Reporting Standards (IFRS) applicable at the end of the reporting period, 
as adopted by the European Union, and the provisions of commercial law 
to be applied additionally pursuant to Section 315e(1) of the German 
Commercial Code (Handelsgesetzbuch – HGB).

The term “IFRS” comprises all International Financial Reporting Stand-
ards (IFRS) and International Accounting Standards (IAS) to be applied 
on a mandatory basis as at the reporting date. Additionally, all interpre-
tations issued by the International Financial Reporting Standards Inter-
pretations Committee (IFRS IC) – formerly Standing Interpretations 
Committee (SIC) – were applied insofar as their application was manda-
tory for the financial year under review.

The consolidated financial statements consist of the financial state-
ments of SIMONA AG and its subsidiaries as at 31 December of each 
financial year (hereinafter also referred to as “Group” or “SIMONA 
Group”).

The Group statement of financial position conforms with the presenta-
tion requirements of IAS 1. Various items reported in the income state-

ment and the statement of financial position have been aggregated for 
the purpose of improving the overall clarity of presentation. These items 
are disclosed and discussed separately in the notes to the consolidated 
financial statements.

Principles of consolidation
The consolidated financial statements comprise the accounts of 
SIMONA AG and its subsidiaries for each financial year ended 31 
December. The financial statements of SIMONA AG and the subsidiaries 
are prepared using uniform accounting policies for the same reporting 
period.

All intragroup balances (receivables, liabilities, provisions), transactions, 
income and expenses as well as profits and losses from transactions 
between consolidated entities (“intercompany profits/losses”) are elim-
inated as part of consolidation.

Subsidiaries are fully consolidated effective from the acquisition date, 
which is the date on which the Group effectively obtains control. Inclu-
sion in the consolidated financial statements ends as soon as the parent 
ceases to control the subsidiary. Changes in a parent’s ownership 
interest in a subsidiary that do not result in a loss of control are 
accounted for as equity transactions.

Non-controlling interests are disclosed separately in the Group income 
statement and within equity of the Group statement of financial position.

Exemption according to Section 264b HGB
Under Section 264b HGB, SIMONA Produktion Kirn GmbH & Co. KG, 
Kirn, and SIMONA Produktion Ringsheim GmbH & Co. KG, Ringsheim, 
are exempt from their obligation to prepare, have audited and disclose 
annual financial statements and a management report in accordance 
with German commercial law pursuant to the provisions applicable to 
corporations.
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[3] NEW FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS

3.1  Accounting standards to be applied for the first time in 
the financial year

The International Accounting Standards Board (IASB) and the IFRS 
Interpretations Committee (IFRS IC) issued the following Standards and 
Interpretations that have been endorsed by the EU and incorporated into 
European law and must be applied with regard to the reporting period 
from 1 January 2019 to 31 December 2019. 

IFRS pronouncement Approval
IASB

EU 
 endorsement

EU first-time 
adoption

IFRS 16, Leases 13/01/2016 31/10/2017 01/01/2019

IFRIC 23, Uncertainty over 
Income Tax Treatments 07/06/2017 23/10/2018 01/01/2019

Amendments to IFRS 9, 
Prepayment Features with 
Negative Compensation 12/10/2017 22/03/2018 01/01/2019

Amendments to IAS 28, 
Investments in Associates 
and Joint Ventures 12/10/2017 08/02/2019 01/01/2019

Amendments to IAS 19, Plan 
Amendment, Curtailment or 
Settlement 07/02/2018 13/03/2019 01/01/2019

Annual Improvements to 
IFRSs 2015-2017 Cycle 12/12/2017 14/03/2019 01/01/2019

IFRS 16 “Leases”
In accordance with the transitional provisions of IFRS 16, IFRS 16 was 
applied for the first time using the modified retrospective approach with 
recognition of the associated effects in revenue reserves as at 1 Janu-
ary 2019. The comparative figures for the 2018 financial year have not 
been restated.

On applying IFRS 16 for the first time, the Group recognised lease liabil-
ities. These liabilities are measured at the present value of the remaining 
lease payments, discounted using the lessee’s incremental borrowing 
rate as at 1 January 2019. For the purpose of determining the incremen-
tal borrowing rate, the benchmark interest rates for a period of up to 15 
years were derived from the yields of government bonds in key countries 
and currencies. The benchmark interest rates were complemented by a 
lease risk premium. The weighted average incremental borrowing rate of 
the lessee, applied to the lease liabilities as at 1 January 2019, was 
1.95 per cent.

Up to and including 2018, leases on property, plant and equipment 
existed as operating leases in insignificant amounts. This does not 
result in any measurement adjustments as differences between lease 
liabilities and rights-of-use assets.

The Group used the following practical expedients when applying 
IFRS 16 for the first time:

 � Use of a single discount rate to a portfolio of leases with reasonably 
similar characteristics

 � Accounting for lease arrangements for which the lease term ends 
within 12 months of 1 January 2019 as short-term leases

 � Use of hindsight in determining the lease term if the contract 
contains options to extend or terminate the lease
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Reconciliation of the obligation under operating leases to leases recog-
nised in the statement of financial position:

in € ‘000 01/01/2019

Future payments to be made under operating leases as at 31 
December 2018 2,845

Less: Short-term leases that are recognised as an expense on 
a straight-line basis 115

Less: Leases for which the underlying asset is of low value and 
that are recognised as an expense on a straight-line basis 558

Financial obligation from leases (IFRS 16) 2,172

Less: Discounting on initial application –87

Plus/Less: Adjustments due to different estimates of exten-
sion and termination options 0

Plus/Less: Adjustments due to changes of indices or (interest) 
rates that affect variable payments 0

Lease liabilities recognised on 1 January 2019 2,085

The lease liabilities recognised on 1 January 2019 can be reconciled to 
31 December 2019 as follows

in € ‘000 31/12/2019 01/01/2019

Current lease liabilities 812 638

Non-current lease liabilities 1,230 1,447

2,042 2,085

The maturities of lease liabilities and depreciation are as follows:

The right-of-use assets are measured retrospectively as if IFRS 16 had 
always been applied. At the time of first-time application of IFRS 16, 
there were no onerous leases that would have required an adjustment 
to the right-of-use assets.

The recognised right-of-use assets relate to the following types of 
assets:

in € ‘000 31/12/2019 01/01/2019

Land 501 1,326

Buildings 857 170

Operating and office equipment 44 54

Motor vehicles 614 400

Industrial trucks 10 135

2,026 2,085

The conclusion of new lease agreements led to additions to right-of-use 
assets amounting to €929 thousand in the 2019 financial year.

The change in accounting policy affected the following items of the 
statement of financial position as at 1 January 2019: right-of-use assets 
and corresponding lease liabilities each increased by €2,085 thousand. 
The net effect on revenue reserves as at 1 January 2019 is €0.

Contrary to this, rental and lease expenses accounted for in other 
operating expenses decreased by €801 thousand.



in € ‘000 Up to 1 year More than 1 year More than 5 years Total

Lease liability

Future lease payments 835 1,294 63 2,129

Discounting 23 64 4 87

Present value 812 1,230 59 2,042
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Depreciation of right-of-use assets by class of underlying asset is as 
follows:

in € ‘000 31/12/2019

Land 96

Buildings 349

Operating and office equipment 13

Motor vehicles 272

Industrial trucks 60

Total 790

Expenses from lease liabilities are as follows: 

in € ‘000 31/12/2019

Interest expense from lease liabilities 44

Expense relating to short-term leases 560

Expense relating to leases of low-value assets 422

In the period from 1 January 2019 to 31 December 2019, cash outflows 
from leases amounted to €801 thousand. There are no leases with 
variable lease payments.

The Group’s leasing activities
The Group leases land, office and warehousing premises, equipment, 
motor vehicles and industrial trucks. Rental agreements are typically 
concluded for fixed periods of 1 to 11 years, but may include extension 
options. Lease terms are negotiated on an individual basis and contain 
a wide range of different terms and conditions. The lease agreements 
do not impose any covenants, but leased assets may not be used as 
security for borrowing purposes. 

Up to and including 2018, no significant leases were accounted for 
within the Group.

From 1 January 2019, leases are recognised as a right-of-use asset and 
a corresponding liability at the date at which the leased asset is availa-
ble for use by the Group. The finance cost is charged to profit or loss over 
the lease period so as to produce a constant periodic rate of interest on 
the remaining balance of the liability for each period. The right-of-use 
asset is depreciated over the shorter of the asset’s useful life and the 
lease term on a straight-line basis.

Assets and liabilities arising from a lease are initially measured on a 
present value basis. Lease liabilities include the net present value of the 
following lease payments:

 � Fixed payments (including in-substance fixed payments), less any 
lease incentives receivable

 � Variable lease payments that are based on an index or a rate 
 � Amounts expected to be payable by the lessee under residual value 
guarantees

 � The exercise price of a purchase option if the lessee is reasonably 
certain to exercise that option

 � Payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if the lease term 
reflects the lessee exercising that option

 � Lease payments to be made under reasonably certain extension 
options

There are currently no plans to exercise purchase options; extension 
options are included in the calculation of the present value. Lease 
incentives, variable lease payments, residual value guarantees and 
penalty payments are currently not part of the lease arrangements.
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The lease payments are discounted using the interest rate implicit in the 
lease, insofar as it can be determined. If that rate cannot be determined, 
the lessee’s incremental borrowing rate is used, being the rate that the 
lessee would have to pay to borrow the funds necessary to obtain an 
asset of similar value in a similar economic environment with similar 
terms and conditions.

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost comprising the following:

 � the amount of the initial measurement of lease liability,
 � any lease payments made at or before the commencement date less 
any lease incentives received,

 � any initial direct costs incurred by the lessee and
 � estimated costs incurred by the lessee in dismantling and removing 
the underlying asset, restoring the site on which it is located or 
restoring the underlying asset to the condition required by the terms 
and conditions of the lease.

The leases entered into do not currently contain any lease incentives or 
initial direct costs or costs for dismantling or removing underlying 
assets.

Payments associated with short-term leases and leases of low-value 
assets are recognised on a straight-line basis as an expense in profit or 
loss. Short-term leases are leases with a lease term of 12 months or 
less. Low-value assets comprise IT-equipment and small items of office 
furniture.

There were no subleases of right-of-use assets or sale-and-lease-back 
transactions in the reporting period. 

Effects on segment disclosures and earnings per share
The following segments are affected:

in € ‘000 Europe Americas Asia and 
Pacific

Group

Lease liabilities 1,253 570 219 2,042

Depreciation of right-of-use asset 456 209 125 790

The effects of the first-time application of IFRS 16 on EBIT, EBT and 
earnings per share for the period from 1 January 2019 to 31 December 
2019 are insignificant.

Non-current and current financial liabilities, lease liabilities and other 
financial liabilities changed as follows in the financial year:

in € ‘000 31/12/2018 Cash effects Non-cash effects 31/12/2019

Current financial liabili-
ties and other financial 
liabilities 5,544 –3,425 4,530 6,649

Non-current financial lia-
bilities and other financial 
liabilities 15,339 0 –1,611 13,728

Total 20,883 –3,425 2,919 20,377

The cash effects are included in cash flow from financing activities. The 
non-cash changes are other effects mainly resulting from the valuation 
of lease liabilities at present value. 
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IFRIC 23, Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments
The interpretation explains how deferred and current tax assets and 
liabilities should be recognised and measured in those cases in which 
there is uncertainty in respect of tax treatment.

No effects on the consolidated financial statements of SIMONA have 
been identified.

Amendments to IFRS 9, Prepayment Features with Negative 
Compensation
The amendments made to IFRS 9 Financial Instruments in October 
2017 enable entities to measure certain prepayable financial assets 
with negative compensation at amortised cost. These assets, which 
include some loan and debt securities, would otherwise have to be 
measured at fair value through profit or loss.

To qualify for amortised cost measurement, the negative compensation 
must be reasonable compensation for early termination of the contract 
and the asset must be held within a ‘hold to collect’ business model. 
These changes have no material impact on the consolidated financial 
statements.

Amendments to IAS 28, Investments in Associates and 
Joint Ventures
The amendments clarify the accounting for long-term interests in an 
associate or joint venture, which in substance form part of the net 
investment in the associate or joint venture, but to which equity account-
ing is not applied. Entities must account for such interests under IFRS 9, 
i.e. possible impairment losses relating to such interests are determined 
in accordance with the provisions set out in IFRS 9. However, the provi-
sions set out in IAS 28.8 remain applicable, i.e. such interests must be 
accounted for in the allocation of losses when applying the equity 
method to the value of investments. No effects were identified.

Amendments to IAS 19, Plan Amendment, Curtailment or 
Settlement
The amendments to IAS 19 Employee Benefits clarify the accounting for 
defined benefit plan amendments, curtailments and settlements. They 
confirm that entities must:

 � calculate the current service cost and net interest for the remainder 
of the reporting period after a plan amendment, curtailment or 
settlement by using the updated assumptions from the date of the 
change,

 � recognise any reduction in a surplus immediately in profit or loss, 
either as part of past service cost or as a gain or loss on settlement. 
In other words, a reduction in a surplus must be recognised in profit 
or loss even if that surplus was not previously recognised because of 
the impact of the asset ceiling,

 � separately recognise any changes in the asset ceiling through other 
comprehensive income.

This is not expected to have an impact on the consolidated financial 
statements.

Annual Improvements to IFRSs 2015-2017 Cycle
This Annual Improvements Cycle relates to the following standards: 
IFRS 1, IFRS 12 and IAS 28. These changes have no material impact on 
the consolidated financial statements.
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3.2  STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS NOT YET 
 APPLICABLE IN THE FINANCIAL YEAR

The International Accounting Standards Board (IASB) and the Interna-
tional Financial Reporting Standards Interpretations Committee (IFRS 
IC) have issued additional Standards and Interpretations. These stand-
ards and interpretations are not being applied in the financial year under 
review, as adoption by the EU (“endorsement”) remains outstanding at 
this time for some of them, or because their application is not yet man-
datory.

IFRS pronouncement Approval
IASB

EU 
 endorsement

EU first-time 
adoption

Amendments to IFRS 3: 
 Definition of a Business 22/10/2018 29/11/2020 01/01/2020

Amendments to IAS 1 and 
IAS 8: Definition of Material 31/10/2018 29/11/2020 01/01/2020

Amendments to References 
to the Conceptual Frame-
work in IFRS 31/05/2019 29/11/2020 01/01/2020

IFRS 17, 
Insurance Contracts 18/05/2017 Open

Expected:
01/01/2021

IFRS 17 Insurance Contracts
IFRS 17 establishes accounting principles for insurance contracts. The 
standard does not cover the aspect of recognition by policyholders. 
Therefore, this standard does not have an impact on the consolidated 
financial statements.

IFRS 3: Definition of a Business
The modified IFRS 3 “Business Combinations” may now only applied to 
the acquisition of businesses if these are already generating revenue 
from goods and service transactions. Investment and other income, 
lower costs and other economic benefits will not be taken into account 
in future. An interest acquired in a start-up that has not yet generated 
revenues from goods or services may only be accounted for as a busi-
ness combination if an organised workforce is taken over. In this 
respect, effects on the consolidated financial statements arise above all 
in the accounting for disposal transactions with regard to the assess-
ment of whether or not goodwill is allocated to the disposal units con-
cerned.

Amendments to References to the Conceptual Framework 
in IFRS
The IASB has issued a revised Conceptual Framework. The Conceptual 
Framework does not constitute an IFRS Standard and does not invali-
date any provisions set out in Standards. For this reason there will be no 
changes in the short term. However, the revised Conceptual Framework 
will be used in the future when new Standards and Interpretations are 
drawn up. For this reason, it is useful to understand the basic concepts 
it contains and how they may affect future regulations.

IAS 1 and IAS 8: Definition of Material
The amendments clarify the definition of “material” and standardise it 
within IFRS. It also contains clarifications on obscuring material informa-
tion by providing immaterial information. No material effect on the 
preparation of financial statements is expected. 
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[4] MATERIAL JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES

Judgements
When applying the accounting policies, the management made the fol-
lowing judgements with the most significant effect on the amounts rec-
ognised in the financial statements. Among other aspects, significant 
estimates relate to the useful lives of assets.

Material judgements relate to the classification of leases, the recogni-
tion of provisions, the estimation or assessment of the recoverability or 
possible impairment of trade receivables, inventories and deferred tax 
assets, as well as the assessment of factors that may indicate an 
impairment of assets.

Uncertainties relating to estimates
The following section outlines the most important forward-looking 
assumptions as well as other material uncertainty regarding the use of 
estimates, applicable at the end of the reporting period, as a result of 
which there is a significant risk that the carrying amounts of assets and 
liabilities may require material adjustments within the coming financial 
year.

Impairment of goodwill
The Group performs impairment tests for goodwill at least once per year. 
This requires estimates to be made with regard to the value in use of 
cash-generating units (“CGU”) to which goodwill is allocated. For the 
purpose of estimating the value in use, the Group has to determine, on 
the basis of estimates, the projected cash flows associated with the 
cash-generating unit, as well as selecting an appropriate discount rate 
in order to determine the present value of the aforementioned cash 
flows.

Impairment of non-financial assets
The Group determines at the end of each reporting period whether there 
are observable indications that a non-financial asset or group of non-fi-
nancial assets is impaired. For the purpose of determining the value in 
use, the future expected cash flows are discounted to their present 
value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assess-
ments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset. An 
appropriate valuation model is applied for the purpose of determining 
the fair value. The Group bases its impairment tests on detailed budget 
calculations that are prepared separately for each cash-generating unit. 
Budget planning spans a period of four years. As regards periods beyond 
this time frame, long-term growth rates are determined and applied to 
the projection of future cash flows beyond four years.

Determination of the underlying interest rate for leases
The Group determines at the beginning of each year whether the 
assumptions regarding the incremental borrowing rate in leases are still 
valid. 

Deferred tax assets
Deferred tax assets are recognised for the carryforward of unused tax 
losses to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profit will be 
available against which the unused tax losses can be utilised. The pro-
cess of determining the level of deferred tax assets requires significant 
judgement by the management with regard to the timing and amount of 
future taxable profit as well as the future tax planning strategies. For 
further details, please refer to Note [14].
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Provisions
Provisions are recognised in accordance with the accounting policies 
discussed in Note [28]. In determining the level of provisions, the man-
agement is required to make significant judgements as to the timing and 
the amounts of future outflow of resources.

Pensions
Expenses relating to defined benefit plans are determined on the basis 
of actuarial methods. Actuarial valuation is conducted on the basis of 
assumptions that include discount rates, expected salary and pension 
increases as well as mortality rates. The assumptions used as a basis 
of valuations may differ from actual developments due to changing 
market, economic and social conditions. Any change in these assump-
tions will have an impact on the carrying amounts of pension obligations. 
For further details, please refer to Note [26] and [27].

[5] SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Currency translation
Annual financial statements prepared by the consolidated Group enti-
ties in a foreign currency are translated on the basis of the functional 
currency method. The functional currency is the currency of the primary 
economic environment in which the entities operate, which in the case 
of the Group companies of SIMONA AG is the respective local currency. 
The consolidated financial statements are prepared in euro. 

Those foreign entities whose functional currencies differ from the euro 
have been presented below, together with details of their functional 
currency:

Company Registered office, country Currency

SIMONA UK Ltd. Stafford, United Kingdom Pound Sterling

SIMONA POLSKA Sp. z o.o. Wrocław, Poland Polish zloty

DEHOPLAST POLSKA Sp. z o.o. Kwidzyn, Poland Polish zloty

SIMONA-PLASTICS CZ, s.r.o. Prague, Czech Republic Czech koruna

SIMONA Plast-Technik s.r.o. Litvinov, Czech Republic Czech koruna

SIMONA FAR EAST LIMITED Hong Kong, China Hong Kong dollar

SIMONA ASIA LIMITED Hong Kong, China Hong Kong dollar

SIMONA AMERICA Industries LLC Archbald, USA US dollar

SIMONA AMERICA Group Inc. 
(formerly SIMONA AMERICA Inc.) Archbald, USA US dollar

64 NORTH CONAHAN DRIVE  HOLDING, LLC Hazleton, USA US dollar

Power Boulevard Inc. (formerly Laminations Inc.) Archbald, USA US dollar

SIMONA Boltaron Inc. (formerly Boltaron Inc.) Newcomerstown, USA US dollar

DANOH, LLC Akron, USA US dollar

SIMONA PMC, LLC Findlay, USA US dollar

Industrial Drive Inc. 
(formerly SIMONA PMC Acquisition Inc.) Findlay, USA US dollar

SIMONA ENGINEERING PLASTICS TRADING 
(SHANGHAI) CO., LTD. Shanghai, China

Chinese
renminbi yuan

SIMONA ENGINEERING PLASTICS (Guangdong) 
Co. Ltd. Jiangmen, China

Chinese
renminbi yuan

OOO SIMONA RUS
Moscow, 
Russian Federation Russian rouble

SIMONA INDIA PRIVATE LIMITED Mumbai, India Indian rupee

SIMONA ASIA PACIFIC PTE. LTD. Singapore, Singapore Singapore dollar

The items accounted for in the respective financial statements are 
measured on the basis of the functional currency. Foreign currency 
transactions are translated initially between the functional currency and 
the foreign currency at the arithmetic mean rate applicable on the day of 
the transaction. Foreign exchange differences are recognised in the 
income statement under other income or other expenses, unless they 
relate to currency effects from financing activities. These are reported in 
net finance income/costs. This does not include monetary items that 
have been designated as part of a hedge of a net investment by the 
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Group in a foreign operation. They are recognised in other comprehen-
sive income until disposal of the net investment; the cumulative amount 
is reclassified in profit and loss only upon disposal. Taxes arising from 
exchange differences relating to these monetary items are also recog-
nised directly in other comprehensive income.

Non-monetary items that are measured at historical cost of purchase or 
conversion in a foreign currency are translated at the foreign exchange 
rate applicable on the day of the transaction. Non-monetary items that 
are measured at fair value in the foreign currency are translated at the 
rate that was prevailing at the time the fair value was determined.

In the consolidated financial statements expenses and income associ-
ated with financial statements of subsidiaries prepared in a foreign 
currency are translated on the basis of the year-average exchange rate, 
whereas assets and liabilities are translated on the basis of the closing 
rate. Exchange differences arising from the translation of equity as well 
as exchange differences arising from the use of exchange rates in the 
income statement that differ from those used for the translation of 
items presented in the statement of financial position are recognised in 
other reserves.

Business combinations
Business combinations subsequent to 1 January 2010 are accounted 
for by applying the acquisition method. The cost of a business combina-
tion is calculated as the sum of the consideration transferred, measured 
at the acquisition-date fair value, and any non-controlling interest in the 
acquiree. In the case of each business combination, the acquirer 

measures components of non-controlling interests either at fair value or 
at the proportionate share in the recognised amounts of the acquiree’s 
identifiable net assets. Acquisition-related costs are accounted for as 
expenses and presented as other expenses.

On first-time recognition, goodwill is measured at cost, being the excess 
of the consideration transferred and the amount of any non-controlling 
interest in the acquiree over the net of the acquisition-date amounts of 
the identifiable assets acquired and the liabilities assumed. If the con-
sideration transferred is lower than the fair value of the net assets of the 
acquired subsidiary, the difference is accounted for in profit and loss.

After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost less accumulated 
impairment losses. For the purpose of impairment testing, as from the 
date of acquisition goodwill acquired as part of a business combination 
is allocated to those cash-generating units of the Group that are 
expected to benefit from the business combination. This method is 
applied regardless of whether other assets or liabilities of the acquiree 
are allocated to these cash-generating units.

Intangible assets
Acquired and internally generated intangible assets are capitalised in 
accordance with IAS 38 if it is probable that the intangible asset will 
generate future economic benefits and the costs of the intangible asset 
can be reliably measured. They are measured at cost of purchase or 
conversion. Intangible assets with a finite useful life are amortised on 
the basis of the length of that useful life. Amortisation of intangible 
assets is performed over a useful life of between three and ten years.
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Property, plant and equipment
Property, plant and equipment are used for operational purposes and 
are measured at cost less depreciation on a systematic basis. Depreci-
ation of property, plant and equipment is performed on a straight-line 
basis in accordance with the pattern of use of such items. To the extent 
that depreciable assets of property, plant and equipment have different 
useful lives, the respective components of these assets are depreciated 
separately.

The carrying amounts of property, plant and equipment attributable to a 
cash-generating unit are tested for impairment as soon as there are 
indications that the carrying amount of the assets of this cash-generat-
ing unit exceeds its recoverable amount. Items of property, plant and 
equipment are derecognised upon disposal. Gains and losses arising 
from the derecognition of an item of property, plant and equipment are 
determined as the difference between the net disposable proceeds and 
the carrying amount of the item; these gains and losses are included in 
profit or loss when the item is derecognised.

The residual values of assets as well as the useful lives and depreciation 
methods are assessed at the end of each financial year and are 
adjusted where necessary.

Leasing
From 1 January 2019, leases are recognised as a right-of-use asset and 
a corresponding liability at the date at which the leased asset is availa-
ble for use by the Group. The finance cost is charged to profit or loss over 
the lease period so as to produce a constant periodic rate of interest on 
the remaining balance of the liability for each period. The right-of-use 
asset is depreciated on a straight-line basis over the shorter of the 
useful life and the term of the lease agreement.

Assets and liabilities arising from a lease are initially measured on a 
present value basis.

The lease payments are discounted using the interest rate implicit in the 
lease, insofar as it can be determined. If that rate cannot be determined, 
the lessee’s incremental borrowing rate is used, being the rate that the 
lessee would have to pay to borrow the funds necessary to obtain an 
asset of similar value in a similar economic environment with similar 
terms and conditions.

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost.

Payments associated with short-term leases and leases of low-value 
assets are recognised on a straight-line basis as an expense in profit or 
loss.

Borrowing costs
Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition, con-
struction or production of a qualifying asset, which is defined as an 
asset that necessarily takes a substantial period of time to get ready for 
its intended use or sale, form part of the cost of that asset and are 
capitalised accordingly. All other borrowing costs are recognised as an 
expense in the period in which they are incurred. Borrowing costs are 
interest and other costs that an entity incurs in connection with the 
borrowing of funds. 

Research and development costs
The research and development activities conducted by SIMONA AG are 
directed principally at the optimisation of production and manufacturing 
processes (advancement within the area of process engineering), at 
changes and improvements to formulae, some of which have been in 
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existence for an extensive period of time, or at fundamental improve-
ments for the purpose of meeting specified quality and inspection 
requirements, including new testing procedures and new areas of 
application.

To the extent that research and development activities provide the basis 
for a product that is technically feasible and from which the Group can 
generate future economic benefits, the period attributable to general 
research activities constitutes the major part thereof. The scale of 
development expenses arising after the product has been made market-
able is negligible. In consideration of the principle of materiality the 
intangible asset is not capitalised in such cases. This approach does not 
adversely affect the true and fair view of the Group’s state of affairs as 
regards financial performance, financial position and cash flows.

In addition, SIMONA AG does not capitalise development costs to the 
extent that costs (expenditure) cannot be reliably allocated to develop-
ment projects. The costs are recognised as expense in the period in 
which they are incurred.

There were no development projects resulting in the capitalisation of 
intangible assets in the financial year under review or the previous 
financial year.

Impairment of assets
The Group assesses at each reporting date whether there is any indica-
tion that an asset may be impaired. If such indications are present or an 
annual impairment test of an asset is required, the Group makes an 
estimate of the recoverable amount. The recoverable amount of an 
asset or a cash-generating unit is the higher of its fair value less costs 

of disposal and its value in use. If the recoverable amount of an asset, 
or of all assets of a cash-generating unit, is less than its carrying 
amount, the carrying amount of the asset or the cash-generating unit 
shall be reduced to its recoverable amount. That reduction is an impair-
ment loss.

Impairment of non-financial assets
The Group determines at the end of each reporting period whether there 
are observable indications that a non-financial asset or group of non-fi-
nancial assets is impaired. If such indications are present or if an annual 
impairment test of an asset or a group of assets is required, the Group 
makes an estimate of the recoverable amount of each asset or of the 
group of assets. The recoverable amount of an asset or a cash-generat-
ing unit is the higher of its fair value less costs of disposal and its value 
in use. Impairment losses are recognised in profit or loss within the 
expense category that corresponds to the function of the impaired 
asset.

For the purpose of determining the value in use, the future expected 
cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount 
rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of 
money and the risks specific to the asset. The Group bases its impair-
ment tests on detailed budget and forecasting calculations that are 
prepared separately for each of the Group’s cash-generating units to 
which individual assets are assigned. Such budget and forecasting cal-
culations generally cover a period of four years. As regards periods 
beyond this time frame, long-term growth rates are determined and 
applied to the projection of future cash flows subsequent to the fourth 
year.
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Investments and other financial assets
In accordance with IFRS 9, the classification and measurement of 
financial assets is determined according to the entity’s business model 
and the characteristics of the cash flows of the financial asset in ques-
tion. Accordingly, all financial instruments are divided into only two cate-
gories: Financial instruments measured at amortised cost (AC - Amortised 
Cost) and financial instruments measured at fair value: fair value 
through other comprehensive income (FVOCI) or fair value through profit 
or loss (FVPL). An additional measurement category has been intro-
duced for debt instruments. In future, these may be classified as fair 
value in other comprehensive income (FVOCI) if the conditions in respect 
of the business model and the contractual cash flows have been met. 

The business model condition refers to how financial assets are used for 
the purpose of generating income. A distinction is made between col-
lecting contractual cash flows and selling the financial asset. As a third 
option, a combination of holding and selling is also possible. The busi-
ness model is determined by an entity’s management having considered 
all relevant information available.

The cash flow condition is met when the contractual terms of the finan-
cial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely pay-
ments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding. The 
payments should therefore have the character of a basic lending 
arrangement. Depending on the characteristics of the cash flow and 
business model conditions, the financial assets are allocated to one of 
three categories; this provides the basis for subsequent measurement. 
Reclassification is only possible when an entity changes its business 
model.

A financial asset can only be measured at amortised cost if the cash 
flow condition has been met and the business model is based on the 
collection of interest and principal payments. Therefore, allocation to the 
amortised cost (AC) category is only possible for debt instruments. By 
contrast, equity instruments will usually not meet the cash flow condi-
tion.

If the cash flow condition has been met and the business model pro-
vides for both the sale and collection of contractual payments, the 
financial asset is allocated to the FVOCI category. 

The FVPL category serves as a “catch category” for debt instruments if 
classification in the two classes is not possible. Derivatives generally 
belong to this category unless they are designated in a hedging relation-
ship (hedge accounting). This also includes equity instruments if the 
FVOCI option is not exercised.

Additionally, financial assets – as was the case in IAS 39 – can be 
measured at fair value through profit or loss on a voluntary basis (fair 
value option). In future, however, this option will be restricted to the 
elimination of an accounting mismatch. Finally, equity instruments can 
be irrevocably allocated to the FVOCI category upon initial recognition, 
provided they are not held solely for trading purposes (FVOCI option).

The classification and measurement of financial liabilities remains 
largely unchanged compared to IAS 39. 

All regular way purchases or sales of financial assets are accounted for 
at the date of settlement. A regular way purchase or sale is a purchase 
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or sale of a financial asset under a contract whose terms require delivery 
of the asset within the time frame established generally by regulation or 
convention in the marketplace concerned.

Impairment of financial assets
The Group determines at the end of each reporting period whether there 
is any objective evidence that a financial asset or group of financial 
assets is impaired. If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss 
on financial assets carried at amortised cost has been incurred, the 
amount of the impairment loss is measured as the difference between 
the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of estimated future 
cash flows discounted at the financial asset’s original effective interest 
rate, i.e. the effective interest rate computed at initial recognition. The 
carrying amount of the asset is reduced through use of an allowance 
account. The amount of the impairment loss is recognised in profit or 
loss. If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the impairment loss 
decreases and the decrease can be related objectively to an event 
occurring after the impairment was recognised, the previously recog-
nised impairment loss is reversed. However, the new carrying amount 
must not exceed the amortised cost at the date the impairment is 
reversed. The amount of the reversal is recognised in profit or loss.

If in the case of trade receivables there is objective evidence that not all 
due amounts will be received in accordance with the agreed invoicing 
terms and conditions (e.g. likelihood of an insolvency or significant 
financial difficulties of the obligor), the carrying amount is reduced 
through use of an allowance account. This does not affect impairment in 
accordance with IFRS 9 on the basis of the expected credit loss model. 
Receivables are derecognised when they are considered to be uncollect-
ible.

As regards available-for-sale financial assets, the Group determines at 
the end of each reporting period whether there is any objective evidence 
that a financial asset or group of financial assets is impaired. When 
determining the impairment of debt instruments classified as available 
for sale, the same criteria are used as those applied to financial assets 
measured at amortised cost. The amount recognised for impairments, 
however, is the cumulative loss determined as the difference between 
the amortised cost and the current fair value less any impairment losses 
of this instrument recognised in profit or loss on an earlier occasion.

Investments accounted for using the equity method
Associates are accounted for using the equity method, an associate 
being an entity over which the investor has significant influence. On ini-
tial recognition the investment in an associate is recognised at cost. On 
initial recognition any differences between the cost of the investment 
and the entity’s share of equity has to be determined. This then has to 
be analysed as to whether it is attributable to hidden reserves or liabili-
ties. Any excess, i.e. positive difference, remaining after the allocation of 
hidden reserves and assets is to be treated as goodwill and presented 
in the carrying amount of the investment. Any negative difference is 
accounted for in profit and loss by increasing the assigned value of the 
investment.

Based on the cost of purchase, the carrying amount of the investment is 
increased or decreased in the subsequent periods by the share of 
annual profit. Further adjustments to the carrying amount of the invest-
ment are required if the equity of the investee has changed due to cir-
cumstances accounted for in the other components of profit/loss.
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As part of subsequent measurement, write-downs relating to hidden 
reserves realised in the context of initial measurement have to be 
accounted for accordingly and deducted from the share of annual profit. 
To avoid double recognition, dividends received are to be deducted from 
the carrying amount.

If there are circumstances indicating that the investment may be 
impaired, an impairment test is to be conducted in respect of this 
investment. No separate review of pro-rata goodwill is conducted as part 
of this process. The assessment applies to the total carrying amount of 
the investment.

Inventories
Inventories are stated at the lower of purchase or conversion cost and 
net realisable value.

The inventories associated with consumables have been capitalised at 
average historical cost. As part of Group accounting, the cost of raw 
materials is assigned mainly by using the weighted average cost for-
mula. Finished goods are measured at manufacturing cost (cost of con-
version) according to item-by-item calculations based on current 
operational accounting; in addition to the directly related cost of direct 
material and units of production, this item also includes special produc-
tion costs as well as production and material overheads, including 
depreciation. Financing costs are not accounted for in the cost of con-
version. All identifiable risks associated with inventories, particularly 
relating to holding periods in excess of average duration, diminished 
usability and net realisable value, are recognised by an appropriate 
write-down.

The net realisable value is the estimated selling price achievable in the 
ordinary course of business, less the estimated costs incurred until 
completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents recognised in the statement of financial 
position comprise cash on hand, bank balances and short-term deposits 
with original maturities of less than three months.

As regards the Group statement of cash flows, cash and cash equiva-
lents comprise the aforementioned cash and cash equivalents less 
overdrafts used by the Group.

Financial liabilities
SIMONA measures financial liabilities other than derivative financial 
instruments at amortised cost using the effective interest method. The 
Group’s financial liabilities comprise trade payables, other financial lia-
bilities, bank overdrafts, loans and derivative financial instruments.

Interest-bearing borrowings
On initial recognition, loans are measured at the fair value of the consid-
eration received, having deducted the transaction costs relating to the 
origination of the loan. After initial recognition interest-bearing borrow-
ings are measured at amortised cost using the effective interest 
method. A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation speci-
fied in the contract is discharged, cancelled or when it expires.
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Other provisions
Other provisions are recognised when an obligation exists towards a 
third party, settlement of this obligation is probable and a reliable esti-
mate can be made of the amount of the required provision. Other provi-
sions are measured at aggregate costs. Long-term provisions with more 
than one year to maturity are recognised at their discounted settlement 
value as at the end of the reporting period.

Pensions
The Group has direct pension plans as well as one indirect pension plan. 
The indirect pension plan is serviced by SIMONA Sozialwerk GmbH, 
which manages the plan assets. The plan assets are accounted for in 
the Group statement of financial position such that the fair value of 
those assets of SIMONA Sozialwerk GmbH and SIMONA Vermögensver-
waltungsgesellschaft der Belegschaft mbH that fulfil the requirements 
for plan assets are deducted from the benefit obligation of the Group 
(funding company) when measuring the pension provision to be recog-
nised. The fair value of the plan assets is based on information regarding 
the market price; in the case of securities traded on public exchanges, it 
corresponds to the published purchase price. As the requirements for 
plan assets specified in IAS 19.8 have been fulfilled, the deduction of 
the plan assets from the obligation of the Group does not give rise to an 
obligation to consolidate on the part of SIMONA Sozialwerk GmbH and 
SIMONA Vermögensverwaltungsgesellschaft der Belegschaft mbH 
because their sole purpose is to service the pension obligations.

Provisions for pensions are accounted for on the basis of the Projected 
Unit Credit Method (sometimes known as the accrued benefit method 
pro-rated on service or as the benefit/years of service method) (IAS 19, 
Projected Unit Credit Method). As part of this process, besides pensions 

and benefits known as at the end of the reporting period, expected 
future increases in salaries and pensions are accounted for with suffi-
cient reliability. The calculation is based on actuarial reports that take 
into account specific biometric data.

In accordance with IAS 19, interest expenses and the expected return 
on plan assets are replaced with a net interest amount. It is calculated 
by applying the discount rate used to measure defined benefit obliga-
tions to the net defined benefit liability (asset). The net interest from a 
net defined benefit liability (asset) includes the interest expenses 
attributable to defined benefit obligations and interest income from plan 
assets. The difference between the interest income on plan assets and 
the return on plan assets is included in the remeasurement of defined 
benefit obligations in other comprehensive income for the Group. In 
accordance with IAS 19, the return on plan assets is calculated on the 
basis of the discount rate.

The amount recognised as a defined benefit liability is the net total of 
the present value of the defined benefit obligation less the fair value of 
plan assets out of which the obligations are to be settled directly.

Government grants
A government grant is not recognised until there is reasonable assur-
ance that the entity will comply with the conditions attaching to it, and 
that the grant will be received. Grants related to income are presented 
as part of profit or loss under the heading of “other income” and are 
recognised on a systematic basis over the periods in which the entity 
recognises as expenses the related costs for which the grants are 
intended to compensate.
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Revenue recognition
The Group manufactures and sells semi-finished plastics as well as 
pipes and fittings. Revenue is recognized when control over the identifi-
able products is transferred, i.e. when the control associated with own-
ership of the products sold has been transferred to the customer. This 
is conditional upon the existence of a contract with enforceable rights 
and obligations and, among other things, the probability that the consid-
eration will be received, taking into account the customer’s creditworthi-
ness. Revenues represent the contractually agreed transaction price 
that SIMONA is expected to be entitled to. 

The Group also provides services centred around its Sales Academy and 
the rental of welding machines for plastics. The value of such services is 
less than 0.02 per cent of consolidated revenue and is immaterial.

No contract assets or contract liabilities were identified.

Framework agreements that the Group enters into with individual cus-
tomers mainly include product specifications, purchase quantities, 
contract terms, terms of delivery, payment terms, bonus agreements, 
penalties and, in individual cases, extended warranty periods. The 
standard payment terms are between 30 and 90 days without deduc-
tions and up to 14 days with up to 3 per cent discount. In individual 
cases, SIMONA agrees warranty periods of up to five years in general; 
they are customary in the industry and go beyond the statutory warranty 
period. Transaction prices for extended warranties are not customary in 
the market and are therefore not invoiced.

Taxes

a) Current tax assets and current tax liabilities
Current tax liabilities and current tax assets for current and prior periods 
are measured at the amount expected to be paid to or recovered from 
the taxation authorities, using the tax rates and tax laws that have been 
enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period. 
Where required, tax liabilities are recognised.

b) Deferred taxes
Applying the liability method, deferred taxes are recognised for all tem-
porary differences between the carrying amount of an asset or liability 
in the statement of financial position and its tax base as well as in con-
nection with consolidation procedures. Additionally, a deferred tax asset 
is recognised for all deductible temporary differences to the extent that 
it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the 
deductible temporary difference can be utilised. Deferred tax assets 
and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply 
to the period when the asset is realised or the liability is settled, based 
on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively 
enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred taxes are recognised for all taxable and deductible temporary 
differences, with the exception of:

 � Deferred tax liabilities from the initial recognition of goodwill or of an 
asset or liability in a transaction which is not a business combination 
and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither profit nor taxable 
profit/tax loss.

 � Deferred tax liabilities for taxable temporary differences associated 
with investments in subsidiaries if the timing of the reversal of the 
temporary difference can be controlled and it is probable that the 
temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future.
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Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if the Group 
has a legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets and current 
tax liabilities and if they relate to the income taxes of the same taxable 
entity, imposed by the same taxation authority.

c) Value added tax
Sales revenues, expenses and assets are recognised after deduction of 
value added tax.

[6] SEGMENT REPORTING

For company management purposes, the Group is organised according 
to geographic regions and has the three following reportable operating 
segments:

 � Europe
 � Americas
 � Asia and Pacific

As in the previous year, the segments have been allocated on the basis 
of the region in which the revenue-generating business unit has its reg-
istered office.

All three segments generate their revenues mainly through the sale of 
semi-finished plastics and pipes, as well as fittings and finished parts. 
The segment categorised as “Europe” encompasses the production and 
sale of  semi-finished thermoplastics, profiles, pipes and fittings. The 
segment categorised as “Americas” mainly covers the production and 
sale of extruded thermoplastic sheets, the emphasis being on aircraft 
interiors. The segment categorised as “Asia and Pacific” includes the 
production and sale of semi-finished thermoplastics.

Management assesses earnings before interest and taxes (EBIT) of 
these segments for the purpose of making decisions as to the distribu-
tion of resources and determining the profitability of the business units. 
Segment profitability is determined on the basis of operating results 
from operating activities before the effects of financing activities and 
excluding income tax effects.

As a matter of course, segment information is based on the same prin-
ciples of presentation and the same accounting policies as those 
applied to the consolidated financial statements. Receivables, liabilities, 
revenues and expenses as well as profit/loss between the individual 
segments are eliminated as part of reconciliation. Internal transfer pric-
ing between the business segments is determined on the basis of 
competitive market prices charged to unaffiliated third parties (regular 
way transaction). External sales revenue relates to the registered office 
of the revenue-generating business unit. Capital expenditure relates to 
additions to intangible assets as well as property, plant and equipment. 
Segment assets comprise assets that contribute to the achievement of 
operating profit. Depreciation and amortisation of non-current assets 
relate to both intangible assets and property, plant and equipment.

The following table includes information relating to segment revenues, 
income and expenses as well as segment results. The differences in 
respect of the consolidated financial statements are presented in the 
reconciliation.
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SEGMENTATION BY REGION

Europe Americas Asia and Pacific Total Reconciliation Group

2019 2018 2019 2018 2019 2018 2019 2018 2019 2018 2019 2018

Revenues from 
external customers 269,724 273,569 131,913 114,190 30,858 30,157 432,494 417,916 0 0 432,494 417,916

Revenues from 
other segments 9,141 9,183 141 154 0 0 9,282 9,337 –9,282 –9,337 0 0

Segment revenues 278,865 282,753 132,053 114,343 30,858 30,157 441,776 427,253 –9,282 –9,337 432,494 417,916

Other income 4,386 3,314 249 266 1,409 2,766 6,044 6,346 –1,442 –1,466 4,602 4,879

Cost of materials 151,787 165,643 60,715 53,624 23,305 23,057 235,808 242,324 –9,274 –9,356 226,534 232,968

Staff costs 57,205 55,867 24,789 19,678 3,710 3,223 85,705 78,768 85,705 78,768

Depreciation, 
 amortisation and 
write-downs 10,255 9,616 5,563 4,076 1,558 1,445 17,377 15,137 17,377 15,137

Other expenses 50,482 46,028 23,155 19,341 3,858 5,859 77,495 71,227 –1,497 –1,276 75,998 69,951

Earnings before 
interest and taxes 
(EBIT) 9,787 14,821 19,007 17,923 425 767 29,219 33,511 209 –271 29,428 33,240

Earnings before 
taxes (EBT) 9,956 14,740 18,063 17,583 –166 266 27,853 32,589 138 –291 27,991 32,297

Segment capital 
expenditure 15,392 9,911 7,374 5,568 853 1,726 23,620 17,205 23,620 17,205

Non-current assets 85,225 78,332 83,235 79,093 10,292 10,645 178,752 168,070 178,752 168,070



GERMANY

in € ‘000 2019 2018

Domestic revenue 99,955 102,785

Non-current assets 71,844 66,454

SEGMENT INFORMATION BY PRODUCT AREA

in € ‘000 2019 2018

Semi-Finished Parts 344,141 333,736

Pipes and Fittings 88,353 84,180

Revenues from external customers 432,494 417,916
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NOTES TO GROUP INCOME STATEMENT

[7] SALES REVENUE

Sales revenue is attributable solely to the sale of semi-finished plastics, 
pipes and fittings. The previous year had included additional revenue 
from the sale of finished parts. There are no contractual take-back 
obligations from product deliveries. Refunds are made promptly in the 
form of credit notes to the customer in the event of changes in the 
transaction price, complaints or other reasons. Delivery and service 
obligations in the Group result mainly from the order backlog at the end 
of the year in the amount of €47,180 thousand (previous year: €51,038 
thousand).

The classification of sales revenue by region and product area is out-
lined in segment reporting – Note [6].

[8] OTHER INCOME

Other income includes the following items:

in € ‘000 2019 2018

Income from foreign currency translation 1,236 2,424

Reversal of provisions/Deferrals and accruals 505 1,181

Income from disposal of property, plant and 
equipment 42 –41

Income from services and commissions 181 232

Income from rental and lease 22 30

Miscellaneous other income 2,617 1,053

4,602 4,879

The increase in miscellaneous other income is largely due to higher 
insurance refunds.

[9] COST OF MATERIALS

The cost of materials includes the following items:

in € ‘000 2019 2018

Cost of raw materials, consumables and supplies 224,392 230,980

Cost of purchased services 2,142 1,988

226,534 232,968

[10] STAFF COSTS

Staff costs include the following items:

in € ‘000 2019 2018

Wages and salaries 67,288 61,991

of which from long-term employee benefits 1,216 657

Expenses relating to social security 13,815 12,051

Expenses relating to pensions 4,602 4,726

85,705 78,768

Staff costs include employment termination indemnities totalling €235 
thousand (previous year: €138 thousand). 

Expenses relating to social security include defined contribution plans 
governed by German legislation (statutory pension insurance) totalling 
€4,486 thousand (previous year: €4,124 thousand).
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[11] RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT EXPENSES

Research and development expenses amounted to €4,356 thousand in 
the period under review (previous year: €4,023 thousand). Expenses are 
mainly comprised of staff costs, material costs and depreciation of 
property, plant and equipment. No development costs were capitalised 
in the financial year under review.

[12] OTHER EXPENSES

Other expenses comprise the following items:

in € ‘000 2019 2018

Outward freight 17,308 17,111

Other selling expenses 13,888 12,392

Maintenance expenses 13,429 12,231

Other administrative expenses 12,125 10,004

Expenses for packaging material 8,951 8,408

Other operating costs 2,486 2,774

Rental and lease expenses 823 1,722

Losses from disposal of assets 119 58

Losses from the derecognition of financial assets 
and impairment losses 837 444

Expenses from foreign currency translation 1,135 2,448

Other 4,898 2,359

75,998 69,951

The increase in miscellaneous other expenses is mainly due to higher 
expenses associated with complaints.

[13] NET FINANCE INCOME/COST

in € ‘000 2019 2018

Finance income 1,023 1,881

of which income from the translation of finan-
cing-related monetary balance sheet items 888 1,734

of which interest from loans and receivables 117 77

of which other finance income 17 70

Finance costs 2,721 3,237

of which expenses from the translation of finan-
cing-related monetary balance sheet items 283 1,098

of which interest expenses from termination 
benefits 2,011 1,781

of which interest expenses from borrowings and 
financial liabilities 427 358

Net finance cost –1,698 –1,356

Income and expenses from the translation of financing-related mone-
tary balance sheet items mainly result from the exchange rate risk of 
intragroup financing transactions denominated in foreign currencies 
and of cash and cash equivalents denominated in foreign currencies.
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[14] INCOME TAXES

The principal elements of income tax expense are as follows:

GROUP INCOME STATEMENT

in € ‘000 2019 2018

Current tax

Current tax expense 8,144 4,587

Adjustments of current tax attributable to previous 
periods 499 3

Deferred tax

Origination and reversal of temporary differences –1,522 3,249

Change in loss carryforwards and tax credits recog-
nised 283 207

Income tax expense reported in
Group income statement 7,404 8,046

Reconciliation between income tax expense and the product of profit for 
the year carried in the statement of financial position and the tax rate 
applicable to the Group is as follows:

in € ‘000 2019 2018

Earnings before taxes (EBT) 27,991 32,297

Income tax expense at German tax rate of 29.48% 
(previous year: 29.48%) 8,252 9,521

Adjustments of current tax attributable to previous 
periods 499 3

Unrecognised deferred tax assets relating to tax losses 148 45

Loss carryforwards used in connection with deferred 
tax assets not recognised in previous year 0 –113

Recognised deferred tax assets relating to tax losses 0 –329

Tax effect of non-deductible expenses 279 259

Tax rate differences –1,689 –1,927

Changes to tax rate –3 –4

Tax-free dividend income 26 54

Other tax-free income –3 –120

Tax effects of permanent differences 1 90

Adjustments to carrying amount for loss carryforwards 
and tax credits –191 0

Other tax effects not attributable to the period 67 0

Other 18 567

Income tax expense at effective tax rate of 26.5% 
(previous year: 24.9%) 7,404 8,046

Income tax expense reported in
Group income statement 7,404 8,046

Changes to the tax rates of the consolidated subsidiaries are as follows: 
The gradual reduction in the corporation tax rate in France to a range 
from 15 to 33 per cent with effect from 2018 was approved on 27 
November 2017. Effective from 2019 to 2022, the corporation tax rate 
is to be lowered in each case to between 15 and 25 per cent. In the 
United Kingdom, under the Finance Act 2016 the UK’s corporation tax 
rate will be reduced gradually to 19 per cent (as from 1 April 2017) and 
17 per cent (as from 1 April 2020). In India, the corporation tax rate was 
reduced from 25 per cent to 22 per cent with effect from 1 April 2019.
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Deferred taxes
At the end of the reporting period, deferred tax assets and deferred tax 
liabilities were as follows:

GROUP STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

in € ‘000 31/12/2019 31/12/2018

Deferred tax assets

Provisions for pensions 26,489 16,968

Other provisions and liabilities 890 592

Lease liabilities IFRS 16  278  0

Inventories 67 244

Receivables and other assets 208 165

Loss carryforwards and tax credits 374 657

Property, plant and equipment 914 719

Other items 112 123

29,332 19,468

Deferred tax liabilities

Goodwill 2,064 1,532

Right-of-use assets IFRS 16  411  0

Property, plant and equipment 11,478 10,767

Inventories 4,146 4,945

Receivables and other assets 866 888

Other provisions and liabilities 146 167

Other items 321 412

19,432 18,711

Set-off –9,556 –8,896

Deferred tax assets 19,776 10,572

Deferred tax liabilities –9,876 –9,816

Net balance sheet position 9,900 756

The net balance sheet position of deferred taxes changed as follows:

in € ‘000 2019 2018

Beginning of the period 1 January 756 3,880

Income tax expense (previous year: income) 1,239 –3,456

Amount recognised directly in equity 
(total comprehensive income) 7,796 618

Currency translation 109 –286

End of period 31 December 9,900 756

At the end of the reporting period, loss carryforwards amounted to 
€2,344 thousand (previous year: €2,267 thousand). Deferred tax assets 
of €1,678 thousand (previous year: €1,530 thousand) were recognised 
for €374 thousand (previous year: €438 thousand) of the loss carryfor-
wards mentioned above. Beyond this, no other deferred tax assets were 
recognised, as the losses may not be used for the purpose of set-off with 
the taxable profit of other Group companies.

Expiry date of tax loss carryforwards:

in € ‘000 2019 2018

Between 3 and 20 years 1,176 738

1,176 738

Deferred tax assets of around €172 thousand (previous year: €77 
thousand) are expected to be realised in the subsequent financial year.

[15] EARNINGS PER SHARE

For the calculation of basic earnings per share, the profit or loss attrib-
utable to ordinary equity holders of the parent entity shares is divided by 
the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the 
year. There were no dilutive effects in the reporting period or in the pri-
or-year period.
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The following table presents the amounts relevant to the calculation of 
basic and diluted earnings per share:

in € ‘000 or units of 1,000 2019 2018

Profit or loss attributable to ordinary equity holders of the 
parent company 20,477 24,146

Weighted average number of ordinary shares 
(without treasury shares) to
calculate basic earnings per share 600 600

Weighted average number of ordinary shares 
(without treasury shares) to
calculate diluted earnings per share 600 600

Basic earnings per share (in €) 34.13 40.24

Diluted earnings per share (in €) 34.13 40.24

No transactions with ordinary shares occurred between the end of the 
reporting period and the preparation of the consolidated financial 
statements.

[16] PAID AND PROPOSED DIVIDENDS

During the financial year a dividend, attributable to the ordinary shares 
of the parent company, in the amount of €14.00 (previous year: €12.00) 
per share was declared and distributed. The total payment made in the 
financial year under review amounted to €8,400 thousand (previous 
year: €7,200 thousand). A dividend proposal of €14.00 per share will be 
submitted to the Annual General Meeting of Shareholders. The proposed 
total dividend was not recognised as a liability at the end of the reporting 
period. The corresponding payment would total €8,400 thousand (previ-
ous year: €8,400 thousand).

NOTES TO THE GROUP STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

[17] INTANGIBLE ASSETS
31/12/2019

in € ‘000 Patents and 
licences

Customer 
base

Goodwill Total

Balance at 1 January 2019
(Cost of purchase/conversion, 
taking into account accumula-
ted depreciation/amortisation 
and impairments) 4,206 4,690 30,165 39,060

Additions 92 0 0 92

Transfer 5 0 0 5

Disposals 0 0 0 0

Depreciation/amortisation 
during the financial year –780 –1,093 0 –1,873

Effects of changes in foreign 
currency exchange rates 56 94 572 722

Balance at 31 December 2019  
(Cost of purchase/conversion, 
taking into account accumula-
ted depreciation/amortisation 
and impairments)

3,579 3,691 30,737 38,007

Balance at 1 January 2019

Cost of purchase or conversion 12,114 9,303 30,881 52,297

Accumulated depreciation/
amortisation –7,908 –4,613 –716 –13,237

Carrying amount 4,206 4,690 30,165 39,060

Balance at 31 December 2019

Cost of purchase or conversion 12,187 9,483 31,452 53,122

Accumulated depreciation/
amortisation –8,608 –5,792 –715 –15,115

Carrying amount 3,579 3,691 30,737 38,007
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Goodwill was as follows:

01/01/
2019

Additi-
ons/

disposals

Write-
down

Change 
in foreign 
exchange 

rate

31/12/
2019

SIMONA Boltaron 
Inc., USA 23,340 0 0 449 23,789

SIMONA America 
Industries LLC/ 
Power Boulevard 
Inc., USA 2,270 0 0 39 2,309

SIMONA PMC, 
LLC, USA 4,412 0 0 85 4,497

Other 143 0 0 0 143

30,165 0 0 572 30,737

In accordance with the method applied in the previous year, patents and 
licences are amortised systematically over their economic life of three to 
five years by using the straight-line method; customer relationships are 
amortised over an economic life of five to ten years by using the straight-
line method. The residual book value of customer relationships resulting 
from acquisitions is as follows:

31/12/2019

Residual book 
value in € ‘000

Remaining 
period of amortisation

SIMONA Boltaron Inc., USA 1,131 1 year

SIMONA America Industries LLC/ 
Power Boulevard Inc., USA 418 4 years

SIMONA PMC, LLC, USA 2,142 13 years

Total 3,691

31/12/2018

Residual book 
value in € ‘000

Remaining 
period of amortisation

SIMONA Boltaron Inc., USA 1,997 2 years

SIMONA America Industries LLC/ 
Power Boulevard Inc., USA 411 5 years

SIMONA PMC, LLC, USA 2,282 14 years

Total 4,690

Impairment of goodwill
The Group conducts the mandatory annual impairment test for signifi-
cant goodwill in the fourth quarter of the financial year, applying the 
method outlined in Note [5] “Impairment of Assets”. As part of the 
impairment test conducted in the financial year under review in respect 
of the cash-generating units (CGU), the recoverable amounts on the 
basis of the value in use were estimated to be higher than the carrying 
amounts. No impairment losses were required as part of the goodwill 
impairment test conducted for the financial year under review.

The fundamental assumptions made in connection with the impairment 
test are based primarily on projected market growth rates as well as 
Group estimates/assessments provided by the respective sales and 
purchasing departments. The assumptions in the financial year under 
review are based on the parameters presented in the following table. 
Projections relating to cash flows are based on a period of 4 years, 
subsequently transitioning into perpetuity.
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SIMONA Boltaron Inc.
The impairment test of CGU SIMONA Boltaron Inc. comprises the entire 
division of SIMONA Boltaron Inc. The test was based on the following 
parameters: four-year forecasting period, revenue growth, EBITDA mar-
gin and discount rate at end of forecasting period. The discount rate is 
5.98 per cent for the forecasting period and 4.18 per cent for the period 
beyond this. The applicable growth rate subsequent to the end of the 
forecasting period is 1.8 per cent. A reduction of the EBITDA margin by 
0.5 per cent did not result in an impairment of goodwill.

SIMONA PMC, LLC
The impairment test of CGU SIMONA PMC, LLC comprises the entire 
division of SIMONA PMC, LLC. The following parameters were applicable: 
four-year forecasting period, revenue growth, EBITDA margin and dis-
count rate at end of forecasting period. The discount rate is 5.98 per 
cent for the planning period and 4.18 per cent for the period beyond this. 
The applicable growth rate subsequent to the end of the forecasting 
period is 1.8 per cent. A reduction of the EBITDA margin by 0.5 per cent 
did not result in an impairment of goodwill.

SIMONA America Industries LLC/Power Boulevard Inc.
The impairment test of CGU SIMONA America Industries LLC/Power 
Boulevard Inc. comprises the entire division of SIMONA America Indus-
tries LLC as well as Power Boulevard Inc. The following parameters were 
applicable: four-year forecasting period, revenue growth, EBITDA margin 
and discount rate at end of forecasting period. The discount rate is 5.98 
per cent for the planning period and 4.18 per cent for the period beyond 
this. The applicable growth rate subsequent to the end of the forecasting 
period is 1.8 per cent. A reduction of the EBITDA margin by 0.5 per cent 
did not result in an impairment of goodwill.

31/12/2018

in € ‘000 Patents and 
licences

Customer 
base

Goodwill Total

Balance at 1 January 2018 
(Cost of purchase/conversion, 
taking into account accumula-
ted depreciation/amortisation 
and impairments) 1,633 3,147 24,604 29,384

Additions 304 0 0 304

Additions from business com-
binations 2,854 2,301 4,304 9,459

Transfer 48 0 0 48

Disposals 0 0 0 0

Depreciation/amortisation 
during the financial year –689 –934 0 –1,623

Effects of changes in foreign 
currency exchange rates 55 176 1,257 1,488

Balance at 31 December 2018 
(Cost of purchase/conversion, 
taking into account accumula-
ted depreciation/amortisation 
and impairments)

4,205 4,690 30,165 39,060

Balance at 1 January 2018

Cost of purchase or conversion 8,837 6,631 25,320 40,788

Accumulated depreciation/
amortisation –7,204 –3,484 –716 –11,404

Carrying amount 1,633 3,147 24,604 29,384

Balance at 31 December 2018

Cost of purchase or conversion 12,113 9,303 30,881 52,297

Accumulated depreciation/
amortisation –7,908 –4,613 –716 –13,237

Carrying amount 4,205 4,690 30,165 39,060
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[18] PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

31/12/2019

in € ‘000 Land and
buildings

Plant and equipment Prepayments and assets 
under construction

Total

Balance at 1 January 2019 (Cost of purchase/conversion, taking into account 
accumulated depreciation/amortisation and impairments) 44,185 74,565 10,318 129,069

Additions 1,045 5,889 16,594 23,528

Transfer 1,043 10,339 –11,387 –5

Disposals 0 –239 –77 –316

Depreciation/amortisation during the financial year –2,301 –12,373 0 –14,647

Effects of changes in foreign currency exchange rates 446 629 43 1,118

Balance at 31 December 2019 
(Cost of purchase/conversion, taking into account accumulated depreciation/
amortisation and impairments)

44,418 78,810 15,491 138,719

Balance at 1 January 2019

Cost of purchase or conversion 86,211 268,151 10,318 364,680

Accumulated depreciation/amortisation and impairments –42,026 –193,586 0 –235,612

Carrying amount 44,185 74,565 10,318 129,069

Balance at 31 December 2019

Cost of purchase or conversion 88,827 280,125 15,491 384,453

Accumulated depreciation/amortisation and impairments –44,409 –201,315 0 –245,724

Carrying amount 44,418 78,810 15,491 138,719

Prepayments (€7,742 thousand) and assets under construction (€7,747 
thousand) relate primarily to investments to expand operations at the 
sites in Kirn and Ringsheim, Germany, as well as investment projects at 
the plants in the United States and China.
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31/12/2018

in € ‘000 Land and buildings Technical equipment, operating 
and office equipment

Prepayments and assets 
under construction

Total

Balance at 1 January 2018 
(Cost of purchase/conversion, taking into account accumulated depreciation/
amortisation and impairments) 41,448 65,240 7,751 114,439

Additions 90 842 15,969 16,901

Additions from business combinations 3,797 6,761 262 10,820

Transfer 485 12,814 –13,347 –48

Reclassification to disposal group classified as held for sale

Disposals –8 –2,317 –408 –2,733

Depreciation/amortisation during the financial year –2,178 –11,335 0 –13,513

Transfer amortisation 0 0 0 0

Effects of changes in foreign currency exchange rates 551 2,561 91 3,203

Balance at 31 December 2018 
(Cost of purchase/conversion, taking into account accumulated depreciation/
amortisation and impairments)

44,185 74,565 10,318 129,069

Balance at 1 January 2018

Cost of purchase or conversion 81,252 247,491 7,751 336,494

Accumulated depreciation/amortisation and impairments –39,804 –182,251 0 –222,055

Carrying amount 41,448 65,240 7,751 114,439

Balance at 31 December 2018

Cost of purchase or conversion 86,211 268,151 10,318 364,680

Accumulated depreciation/amortisation and impairments –42,026 –193,586 0 –235,611

Carrying amount 44,185 74,565 10,318 129,069

The useful life of property, plant and equipment was estimated as follows:

Buildings 20–40 years

Technical equipment, operating and office equipment 5–20 years
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[19]  INVESTMENTS ACCOUNTED FOR USING THE EQUITY 
METHOD

This item includes the entities accounted for as associates. The invest-
ment carrying amount in respect of CARTIERWILSON, LLC, which sells 
products of the US subsidiaries in the United States on a commission/
agency basis in its capacity as a sales representative, was €977 thou-
sand (previous year: €717 thousand). The investment carrying amount 
in respect of Sandusky Technologies LLC, was €165 thousand (previous 
year: €232 thousand). The company operates in the area of plastics 
thermoforming. The profit from investments accounted for using the 
equity method was €261 thousand (previous year: €413 thousand) in 
total.

Associates  Ownership interest in %

CARTIERWILSON, LLC, Marietta, USA  25.0

Sandusky Technologies LLC, Fremont, USA  25.0

[20] INVENTORIES

in € ‘000 31/12/2019 31/12/2018

Raw materials and consumables used 34,001 33,987

Work in progress 766 737

Finished goods and merchandise 54,687 56,533

Prepayment for inventories 201 1,098

89,655 92,355

The amount relating to inventory impairments recognised in cost of 
material rose by €1,502 thousand year on year to €9,177 thousand in 
the period under review; of this amount, write-downs relating to the net 
realisable value of finished goods totalled €276 thousand (previous 
year: €656 thousand).

[21] TRADE RECEIVABLES

Trade receivables result from the sale of products to customers as part 
of the operating business model. The items are due primarily in 30 to 90 
days. On initial recognition, they are recognised at the amount of uncon-
ditional consideration and held with the aim of collecting the contractual 
cash flow. Subsequently, they are measured at amortised cost.

in € ‘000 31/12/2019 31/12/2018

Gross carrying amount 62,012 66,467

Of which past due within the following time 
ranges

Not overdue 52,811 57,029

up to 30 days 4,624 5,995

between 31 and 60 days 2,160 1,331

between 61 and 90 days 713 467

more than 91 days 1,704 1,645

The impairment losses in respect of financial assets relate exclusively to 
trade receivables and were as follows:

in € ‘000 2019 2018

1 January 2,450 2,426

Amounts restated retrospectively above the 
opening balance of revenue reserves 0 483

Exchange differences 17 -83

Increase in impairment in financial year
(recognised in profit and loss) 90 229

Written off as uncollectible –147 –291

Not used and reversed –100 –314

31 December 2,310 2,450

Net carrying amount  59,702  64,017
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EXPECTED LOSS RATES

in per cent 31/12/2019 31/12/2018

Country risks 0,0–22,4 0,0–22,4

Industry risks 0,45–3,0 0,45–3,0

As regards the trade receivables that were neither impaired nor past 
due, there were no indications at the end of the reporting period that 
customers will fail to meet their payment obligations.

The following table includes expenses attributable to the derecognition 
of trade receivables as well as income from amounts received in connec-
tion with derecognised trade receivables. Expenses attributable to the 
derecognition of trade receivables are reported as other expenses, while 
income attributable to amounts received in connection with derecog-
nised trade receivables is accounted for as other income.

in € ‘000 2019 2018

Expenses attributable to the derecognition of 
trade receivables 296 171

Income attributable to amounts received in con-
nection with derecognised trade receivables 23 20

[22] OTHER ASSETS AND TAX ASSETS

in € ‘000 31/12/2019 31/12/2018

Receivables from value-added tax 1,895 3,567

Prepayments 270 250

Advance payments for future periods 690 1,071

Receivables from energy tax 1,252 646

Other receivables 1,643 874

5,749 6,408

At the end of the reporting period, other assets were neither impaired 
nor past due.

Tax assets amount to €4,607 thousand (previous year: €4,235 thou-
sand) and are attributable primarily to Europe and the Americas seg-
ment.

[23] CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

in € ‘000 31/12/2019 31/12/2018

Bank balances and cash on hand 68,399 52,483

68,399 52,483

Bank balances bear interest on the basis of floating interest rates 
applicable to deposits payable on demand. No restraints on use are 
known apart from the local statutory restrictions applicable to the sub-
sidiaries in China. At the end of the reporting period cash attributable to 
the Chinese entities amounted to €2,923 thousand (previous year: 
€1,429 thousand).

At the end of the year, the Group had undrawn borrowing facilities of 
€18,975 thousand (previous year: €16,975 thousand).

[24] EQUITY

Changes in equity are presented in a separate Group statement of 
changes in equity.

Issued capital
At the end of the reporting period, the share capital of SIMONA AG was 
divided into 600,000 no-par-value shares. These shares are classified 
as ordinary bearer shares. Each no-par-value share has a notional 
interest of €25.83 in the company’s share capital. The ordinary shares 
have been issued and fully paid in.
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in € ‘000 31/12/2019 31/12/2018

Share capital 15,500 15,500

Issued capital 15,500 15,500

As was the case in the previous financial year, SIMONA AG has no 
treasury shares.

Capital reserves

in € ‘000 31/12/2019 31/12/2018

Share premium from the issuance of stock  15,274 15,274

Capital reserves  15,274 15,274

Capital reserves include the share premium from the issuance of 
SIMONA AG stock. There was no increase in capital reserves in the 
period under review. 

Other reserves

in € ‘000 31/12/2019 31/12/2018

Currency translation effects  11,206  8,956

Other reserves  11,206  8,956

Other reserves include currency translation effects attributable to 
exchange differences occurring upon translation of the financial state-
ments of foreign subsidiaries as well as the foreign exchange effects 
(accounted for in equity) of translating net investments in foreign subsid-
iaries. 

in € ‘000 31/12/2019 31/12/2018

Exchange differences on translating
financial statements of subsidiaries 1,843 2,858

Exchange differences on translating
net investments 539 589

Exchange differences on translating 
foreign operations 2,382 3,447

Deferred taxes from currency translation –132 –169

Exchange differences 2,250 3,278

Non-controlling interests
This item relates solely to non-controlling interests in DEHOPLAST POL-
SKA Sp. z o.o., Kwidzyn, Poland. The non-controlling interests correspond 
to the applicable voting rights and amount to 49 per cent. There are no 
restraints in place as regards the right of SIMONA AG to access or use 
assets of this subsidiary and to meet contractual obligations. Revenue 
generated by this entity amounted to €3,077 thousand in the period 
under review (previous year: €3,055 thousand). The total payment made 
in the financial year under review amounted to €40 thousand (previous 
year: €41 thousand). The company’s balance sheet total stands at 
€1,330 thousand and is mainly composed of current assets (€1,314 
thousand) and current liabilities (€420 thousand).
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[25] FINANCIAL LIABILITIES

Financial liabilities are comprised of the following items:

in € ‘000 Due date 31/12/2019 31/12/2018

Non-current financial liabilities

Pro-rata bank loan of €26,229 
 thousand (nominal amount), 
principal repayments due after 
31/12/2020 2021–2024 11,855 15,280

11,855 15,280

Current financial liabilities

Pro-rata bank loan of €26,229 
 thousand (nominal amount),
principal repayments due up to 
31/12/2020

01/2020–
12/2020 3,425 3,425

3,425 3,425

As regards loans from banks, fixed interest rates of between 1.8 per 
cent and 2.1 per cent have been agreed in respect of KfW funds. Inter-
est is computed either on the basis of the nominal amount of the loan 
or the remaining amount of the loan. As in the previous financial year, 
the overdraft facility of SIMONA AG, with its floating interest rate calcu-
lated on the basis of EONIA (Euro Over Night Index Average), had not 
been utilised at the end of the year.

Other financial liabilities comprise the following items:

in € ‘000 Due date 31/12/2019 31/12/2018

Non-current other financial 
 liabilities

Other Immediately 644 59

644 59

Current other financial liabilities

Accounts receivable with credit 
 balances Immediately 2,412 2,119

2,412 2,119

[26] PENSIONS

The majority of employees of SIMONA AG, SIMONA Produktion Kirn 
GmbH & Co. KG and SIMONA Produktion Ringsheim GmbH & Co. KG are 
entitled to post-employment benefits attributable to pension plan 
agreements. The aforementioned plans are structured as final salary 
pension plans in the case of both personnel employed on the basis of 
collective wage agreements and managerial staff, including members 
and former members of the Management Board. These relate to bene-
fits in respect of retirement, disability and surviving dependants.

In order to mitigate the risks associated with defined benefit plans, 
particularly as regards longevity, inflation and salary increases, SIMONA 
introduced multifinanced defined contribution plans for employees 
joining the company on or after 1 January 2009.

The underlying expert opinions were prepared on 10 January 2020.

With the exception of payments to SIMONA Sozialwerk GmbH, no contri-
butions are made to funds, cf. Note [27].

The following table includes a breakdown of the expense items recog-
nised in the Group income statement in connection with retirement 
benefits as well as the amounts carried in the statement of financial 
position for the respective plans.
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The changes in the liabilities of defined benefit obligations (DBO) are as 
follows:

in € ‘000 31/12/2019 31/12/2018

DBO at beginning of reporting period 60,512 65,424

Service cost 1,418 1,722

Interest cost 1,131 1,161

Remeasurement actuarial gains/losses 8,284 –6,255

due to changes in financial assumptions 11,690 –1,121

due to changes in demographic assumptions 0 –5,214

due to changes in the entitlement base –3,406 80

Benefits paid –1,627 –1,540

DBO at end of reporting period 69,718 60,512

of which non-current liability 67,930 58,857

of which current liability 1,788 1,655

The Group anticipates benefit payments of €1,788 thousand (previous 
year: €1,655 thousand) in connection with defined benefit pension 
plans for the 2020 financial year.

The assumptions made for the purpose of determining the pension 
obligations are as follows:

Parameters 31/12/2019 31/12/2018

Discount rate 0.91 % 1.90 %

Salary increase 2.50 % 2.50 %

Pension increases 1.87 % 1.87 %

Mortality (mortality tables published by Prof. 
Dr. K. Heubeck) 2018 G 2018 G

A change of half a percentage point each in the above-mentioned basic 
assumptions used for the purpose of determining the DBO as at 31 
December 2019 would increase or decrease the DBO as outlined below. 

This was determined on the basis of the projected unit credit method as 
well as the parameters mentioned:

Change in DBO if parameters are changed by half a percen-
tage point as at 31/12/2019 in € ‘000 (previous year)

Parameters Increase Decrease

Discount rate –6,313 (–5,165) 7,310 (5,934)

Salary increase 972 (1,168) –914 (–1,108)

Pension increase 5,266 (4,212) –4,726 (–3,803)

The decline in mortality rates by 10% results in an increase in life 
expectancy dependent on the individual ages of each participant. The 
DBO as at 31 December 2019 would increase by €2,738 thousand 
(previous year: €2,135 thousand) following a reduction in the mortality 
rate by 10% and would decrease by €–2,406 thousand (previous year: 
€–1,893 thousand) following a 10% increase in the mortality rate.

The weighted average duration of the DBO attributable to defined bene-
fit pension plans is 19.2 years (previous year: 18.3 years).

As regards the internal multifinanced defined contribution plan, the total 
expense for SIMONA AG was €30 thousand (previous year: €31 thou-
sand) in the period under review.

[27] COMPANY WELFARE INSTITUTIONS

SIMONA Sozialwerk GmbH is structured as a long-term employee benefit 
fund within the meaning of IAS 19.8. Under the Articles of Association, 
the entity operates solely for the purpose of ensuring that former 
employees of SIMONA AG, SIMONA Produktion Kirn GmbH & Co. KG and 
SIMONA Produktion Ringsheim GmbH & Co. KG as well as their depend-
ants receive retirement benefits. The beneficiaries of pensions are 
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entitled to all the assets belonging to the entity as well as all income 
derived from these assets while the entity is in existence as well as in 
the case of liquidation or insolvency of the entity. The aforementioned 
SIMONA companies have no access rights to assets held by SIMONA 
Sozialwerk GmbH. In the event of liquidation of the entity, the entity’s 
assets are to be allocated to the recipients of benefits or are to be 
secured for the purpose of providing future benefits for said recipients. 
Thus, even in the event that the aforementioned SIMONA companies 
become insolvent, the creditors identified in connection with insolvency 
have no rights in respect of the assets of SIMONA Sozialwerk GmbH.

The assets of SIMONA Vermögensverwaltungsgesellschaft der 
Belegschaft mbH may be utilised solely for benefit-related purposes 
relating to SIMONA Sozialwerk GmbH.

The agreed plans relating to SIMONA Sozialwerk GmbH are structured as 
final salary pension plans in the case of both personnel employed on the 
basis of collective wage agreements and managerial staff. The defined 
benefit plans are associated in particular with risks in respect of longev-
ity, inflation and salary increases.

Funding of SIMONA Sozialwerk GmbH is performed in observance of tax 
regulations.

in € ‘000 31/12/2019 31/12/2018

DBO at beginning of reporting period 87,428 80,312

Service cost 2,955 2,853

Interest cost 1,645 1,431

Remeasurement actuarial gains/losses 19,819 4,226

due to changes in financial assumptions 21,883 –1,925

due to changes in demographic
assumptions 0 5,003

due to changes in the entitlement base –2,064 1,148

Benefits paid –1,444 –1,394

DBO at end of reporting period 110,403 87,428

Fair value of plan assets 
at the beginning of the year 41,922 46,566

Returns on plan assets 783 826

Remeasurement 921 –4,076

Benefits paid –1,444 –1,394

Fair value of plan assets 
at the end of the year 42,183 41,922

Deficit –68,220 –45,506

The Group anticipates benefit payments of €1,598 thousand (previous 
year: €1,574 thousand) in connection with indirect defined benefit pen-
sion plans for the 2020 financial year.

As regards the basic assumptions for determining the pension obliga-
tions, please refer to the details in Note [26].

A possible surplus relating to plan assets is not accounted for in the 
consolidated financial statements of SIMONA AG, as SIMONA AG has no 
control over these assets. In accordance with the provisions set out in 
IAS 19.8, the plan assets are available to be used only to pay or fund 
employee benefits.
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The change in the deficit as at 31 December 2019 is attributable primar-
ily to the remeasurement of the DBO implemented due to the changes 
in financial assumptions.

A change of half a percentage point each in the above-mentioned basic 
assumptions used for the purpose of determining the DBO as at 31 
December 2019 would increase or decrease the DBO as follows (cf. also 
Note [26]):

Change in DBO if parameters are changed by half a 
 percentage point as at 31/12/2019 in € ‘000 (prev. year)

Parameters Increase Decrease

Discount rate –11,913 (–8,780) 14,049 (10,263)

Salary increase 4,387 (3,239) –4,009 (–2,971)

Pension increase 8,368 (6,173) –7,567 (–5,605)

The decline in mortality rates by 10% results in an increase in life 
expectancy dependent on the individual ages of each participant. The 
DBO as at 31 December 2019 would increase by €4,520 thousand 
(previous year: €3,214 thousand) following a reduction in the mortality 
rate by 10% and would decrease by €-3,989 thousand (previous year: 
€–2,861 thousand) following a 10% increase in the mortality rate.

The composition of plan assets is presented below:

FAIR VALUE AT

in € ‘000 31/12/2019 31/12/2018

Category of assets

Shares in SIMONA AG 29,880 29,400

Bonded loans (Schuldscheindarlehen) 0 2,929

Time deposits 2,814 2,743

Investment funds 7,362 5,774

Cash and cash equivalents 2,127 1,076

Total plan assets 42,183 41,922

The shares in SIMONA AG and the interests in investment funds are 
quoted in an active market. A concentration of risk exists in respect of 
SIMONA AG shares.

The weighted average duration of the DBO relating to defined benefit 
pension plans of SIMONA Sozialwerk GmbH is 23.1 years (previous year: 
21.6 years).

The liability recognised in the statement of financial position with regard 
to this pension plan changed as follows:

in € ‘000 31/12/2019 31/12/2018

Liability at beginning of reporting period 45,506 33,746

Service cost 2,955 2,853

Net interest expense 862 606

Remeasurement actuarial gains/losses 19,819 4,226

due to changes in financial assumptions 21,883 –1,925

due to changes in demographic assumptions 0 5,003

due to changes in the entitlement base –2,064 1,148

Remeasurement from plan assets –923 4,075

Liability at end of reporting period 68,220 45,506
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[28] OTHER PROVISIONS

in € ‘000 Personnel-
related

obligations

Guaran-
tees/

warranties

Other Total

Balance at 1 January 2019 1,251 3,942 282 5,475

Allocated 135 1,137 762 2,034

Used 115 1,570 304 1,989

Reversed 0 0 0 0

Exchange differences 0 17 18 35

Effect of time value of money 19 0 0 19

Balance at 31 December 2019 1,290 3,526 758 5,574

Current provisions 206 868 16 1,091

Non-current provisions 1,084 2,658 742 4,484

Balance at 31 December 2019 1,290 3,526 758 5,574

in € ‘000 Personnel-
related

obligations

Guaran-
tees/

warranties

Other Total

Balance at 1 January 2018 1,055 3,991 344 5,390

Allocated 214 121 298 633

Used 33 0 0 33

Reversed 0 187 0 187

Exchange differences 0 66 16 82

Effect of time value of money 15 6 0 20

Reclassified to other balance 
sheet items 0 –55 –376 –430

Balance at 31 December 2018 1,251 3,942 282 5,475

Current provisions 295 1,724 14 2,034

Non-current provisions 956 2,218 268 3,441

Balance at 31 December 2018 1,251 3,942 282 5,475

Personnel-related provisions encompass obligations in connection with 
agreements regarding part-time employment of staff approaching 
retirement and provisions relating to anniversaries. Personnel-related 
provisions are measured on the basis of actuarial figures.

Provisions for guarantees are recognised in connection with warranties 
for products sold in preceding years. The calculation is based on histor-
ical claims from guarantees and warranties. Guarantee-related provi-
sions are recognised for ongoing, regularly occurring warranty cases as 
well as for individual cases that occur on an irregular basis and are 
associated with the risk of above-average claims.

As regards regularly occurring warranty cases, a provision is calculated 
on the basis of experience over what is adjudged to be a probable 
average claim period of 5 years. For the purpose of measuring the pro-
vision, the expenses actually incurred in connection with customer 
credits/refunds from warranty obligations as well as the thus resulting 
direct costs of processing a complaint are analysed in detail. Within this 
context, the weighted average warranty expense of the past 5 years is 
used for calculation purposes.

The portion of warranty provisions calculated in respect of individual 
cases occurring on an irregular basis is recognised only when the utilisa-
tion of the provision is considered likely, a payment relating thereto is 
deemed probable and a reliable estimate can be made. The portion of 
the warranty provision whose utilisation is not due within one year after 
the reporting date is discounted.
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[29] OTHER LIABILITIES

Other liabilities comprise the following items:

in € ‘000 31/12/2019 31/12/2018

Payables to workforce  9,007 9,416

Payables relating to social security  1,400 1,243

Liabilities relating to credit notes and 
 commissions

 

1,287 1,405

Tax payables  717 685

Other  6,458 2,968
 18,868 15,717

The increase in miscellaneous other liabilities mainly results from 
increased obligations associated with complaints.

[30] STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

The statement of cash flows presents changes to cash and cash equiv-
alents during the financial year by outlining cash inflows and outflows. In 
accordance with IAS 7, the statement of cash flows includes information 
relating to cash flows from operating activities, investing activities and 
financing activities.

As at 31 December, total cash and cash equivalents were as follows:

in € ‘000 31/12/2019 31/12/2018

Cash and cash equivalents 68,399 52,483

68,399 52,483

The effects of changes to cash and cash equivalents attributable to 
exchange rates were €401 thousand (previous year: €382 thousand) at 
Group level.

Cash flows from investing and financing activities are accounted for 
directly, i.e. on a payments basis. Cash flows from operating activities 
are determined indirectly on the basis of earnings before taxes, i.e. via 
changes to operating items in the Group statement of financial position, 
having eliminated changes relating to acquisitions and currency transla-
tion.

[31] RELATED-PARTY DISCLOSURES

Entities and persons with control over the SIMONA Group or who are 
exposed to the significant influence of SIMONA AG, as well as associ-
ated entities and persons, including close members of the family and 
intermediate entities, with significant influence over the financial and 
operating policies of the SIMONA Group are to be disclosed in accord-
ance with IAS 24. The Management Board and the Supervisory Board 
are considered to be management in key positions.

Management Board
 � Matthias Schönberg, Chairman of the Management Board, 
 Oberursel, (since 15 August 2019)

 � Wolfgang Moyses, Chairman of the Management Board, Kirn 
(until 14 August 2019, member of the Management Board until 30 
September 2019)

 � Dirk Möller, Deputy Chairman of the Management Board, Kirn 
(until 30 June 2019)

 � Dr. Jochen Hauck, Mainz (since 1 January 2019)
 � Michael Schmitz, Sprendlingen (since 15 August 2019)

 Notes to Consolidated Financial StatementsContent
Introduction 2
SIMONA Key Financials 3

TO OUR SHAREHOLDERS

COMBINED MANAGEMENT 
REPORT

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL 
STATEMENTS
Group Income Statement 72
Group Statement of 
Comprehensive Income 73
Group Statement of 
Financial Position 74
Group Statement of  
Cash Flows 76
Group Statement of 
Changes in Equity 77
Notes to Consolidated 
Financial Statements 78
Reproduction of the 
Auditor’s Report 126

OTHER DETAILS

KONZERNABSCHLUSS

  Annual Report 2019 115



Contents
COMBINED MANAGEMENT 
REPORT
Fundamental information  
about the group 3
Business review 7
Report on opportunities  
and risks 19
Report on expected  
developments 24
Other information 26
Non-financial statement  
in accordance with section  
289 b)-e) HGB 29

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL 
STATEMENTS
Group Income Statement 34
Group Statement of 
Comprehensive Income 35
Group Statement of 
Financial Position 36
Group Statement of 
Cash Flows 38
Group Statement of  
Changes in Equity 39
Notes to Consolidated  
Financial Statements 40
Reproduction of the  
Auditor’s Report 88
Other Information 95

  Consolidated Financial Statements 2019 – SIMONA AG 77



Supervisory Board
 � Dr. Rolf Goessler, Bad Dürkheim, Diplom-Kaufmann
Chairman of the Supervisory Board
Member of the Supervisory Board of J. Engelsmann AG, 
 Ludwigshafen

 � Roland Frobel, Isernhagen,
Managing Director of ROSSMANN CENTRAL EUROPE B.V., 
Renswoude/Netherlands
Deputy Chairman of the Supervisory Board
Member of the Supervisory Board of GBK Beteiligungen AG, 
 Hannover
Member of the Supervisory Board of Hannover 96 GmbH & Co. 
KGaA, Hannover
Member of the Advisory Board of Deutsche Bank AG, Region Nord 
(until 31 December 2019)

 � Dr. Roland Reber, Stuttgart
Managing Director of Ensinger GmbH, Nufringen

 � Martin Bücher, Biberach
Chairman of the Executive Board of Kreissparkasse Biberach, 
Biberach
Member of the Advisory Board of BW Global Versicherungsmakler 
GmbH
Deputy Supervisory Board Member of BW Bank
Member of the Supervisory Board of Öchsle Bahn AG

 � Andy Hohlreiter, Becherbach
Employee Representative 

 � Markus Stein, Mittelreidenbach
Employee Representative 

Matthias Schönberg performs supervisory duties within the following 
companies of the SIMONA Group: 

 � SIMONA POLSKA Sp. z o.o., Wrocław, Poland

Michael Schmitz performs supervisory duties within the following com-
panies of the SIMONA Group: 

 � SIMONA S.A.S., Domont, France
 � SIMONA IBERICA SEMIELABORADOS S.L., Barcelona, Spain
 � SIMONA POLSKA Sp. z o.o., Wrocław, Poland
 � SIMONA AMERICA Group Inc., Archbald, USA
 � Power Boulevard Inc., Archbald, USA

Dr. Jochen Hauck performs supervisory duties within the following 
companies of the SIMONA Group: 

 � SIMONA S.r.l. Società UNIPERSONALE, Cologno Monzese (MI), Italy
 � SIMONA IBERICA SEMIELABORADOS S.L., Barcelona, Spain
 � SIMONA POLSKA Sp. z o.o., Wrocław, Poland

Dr. Roland Reber, member of the Supervisory Board of SIMONA AG, is 
also the Managing Director of Ensinger GmbH; Nufringen. In the financial 
year under review, product sales amounting to €3,792 thousand (previ-
ous year: €3,946 thousand) were transacted between SIMONA AG and 
the entities of the Ensinger Group.

Beyond this, companies of the SIMONA Group entered into no significant 
transactions with members of the Management Board or the Supervi-
sory Board of SIMONA AG and/or entities to which these persons have 
been appointed in an executive or controlling capacity (revenues less 
than €25 thousand in total). This also applies to close family members 
of the aforementioned persons.

Receivables from related parties relate to trade receivables from the 
Ensinger Group totalling €597 thousand (previous year: €792 thousand).

Payables to related parties consist of compensation to Supervisory 
Board members of SIMONA AG and amount to €145 thousand in the 
period under review (previous year: €140 thousand). There are no other 
outstanding balances or obligations towards related parties.
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As part of its ordinary operating activities, SIMONA AG provides various 
services for the subsidiaries included in the consolidated financial 
statements. Conversely, the respective Group companies render ser-
vices within the SIMONA Group in the context of their business purpose.

Business relationships exist with associates on a commission/agency 
basis in respect of the sale of products in the United States; this busi-
ness totals €3,447 thousand (previous year: €3,133 thousand).

The supply and business relations between the respective persons and 
companies are conducted on arm’s length terms.

Compensation of members of the Management Board and 
Supervisory Board

MANAGEMENT BOARD COMPENSATION ACCORDING TO IAS 24.17

in € ‘000 2019 2018

Short-term benefits

Fixed salary and fringe benefits 1,140 890

Annual bonus  959 1,064

2,099 1,954

Other long-term benefits 1,146 781

Total compensation 3,245 2,735

COMPENSATION DISCLOSURE PURSUANT TO SECTION 314(1) NO. 6 HGB

in € ‘000 2019 2018

Fixed compensation

Fixed salary and fringe benefits 1,140 890

Variable compensation

Annual bonus 959 1,064

Long-term incentive programme 958 600

Total compensation 3,057 2,554

The variable component of Management Board compensation is based 
on earnings performance within the Group and a long-term incentive 
programme. It uses average Group NOPAT (net operating profit after 
taxes) as the key performance indicator, calculated on the basis of a 
three-year performance period. The first performance period of the 
current long-term incentive programme encompasses the financial 
years 2016-2018, the second performance period comprises the 
financial years 2017-2019 and the third performance period relates to 
the financial years 2018-2020. Payment occurs subsequent to the 
adoption of the consolidated financial statements for the final year of 
the respective performance period. Members of the Management Board 
do not receive grants in respect of state-managed defined contribution 
plans, nor do they receive share-based payments or loans.

Post-employment benefits of €17,393 thousand (previous year: €15,846 
thousand) have been provisioned for active members of the Manage-
ment Board, former members of the Management Board and their sur-
viving dependants. The allocation to provisions for active members of 
the Management Board was €0 thousand (previous year: €-685 thou-
sand). Full allocations have been made to pension provisions for former 
members of the Management Board. At the end of the reporting period, 
these amounted to €17,393 thousand (previous year: €5,575 thousand).

Compensation of former Management Board members and their surviv-
ing dependants amounted to €304 thousand (previous year: €301 
thousand).

Supervisory Board compensation for the financial year under review 
amounted to €156 thousand (previous year: €162 thousand). Supervi-
sory Board compensation encompasses no variable components. 
Alongside their Supervisory Board compensation, staff representatives 
appointed to the Supervisory Board received remuneration in the form 
of wages and salaries during the financial year under review, which 
included retirement benefit obligations in the generally applicable 
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amount in respect of work performed for the company. The company 
does not grant share-based payments or loans to members of the 
Supervisory Board.

[32] FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

Principles and objectives of financial risk management
The SIMONA Group operates at an international level. Parts of the 
assets, liabilities and planned transactions are exposed to risks arising 
from foreign currency market risk, interest rate market risk and default 
and liquidity risks.

The principal aim of financial risk management is to mitigate risks 
attributable to ongoing operating and finance-related transactions.

Depending on the risk, the aim is to restrict associated risks by means 
of derivative financial instruments and non-derivative hedging instru-
ments where required. All hedging instruments are used solely for the 
purpose of hedging cash flows.

Currency risks
The SIMONA Group is exposed to risks associated with exchange rate 
fluctuations within the area of investing and financing activities. Risks 
attributable to foreign currencies are hedged to the extent that they 
affect significant cash flows of the Group. The risk of exchange rate 
fluctuations associated solely with the translation of assets and liabili-
ties into the reporting currency of the consolidated financial statements 
(euros) remains unhedged.

At an operating level, the respective entities within the Group conduct 
the majority of their business transactions in their functional currency. 
The parent company essentially manages the foreign currency transac-
tions within the Group and hedges them within the defined ranges as 

part of treasury management. As at the reporting date, no foreign 
exchange forward contracts and currency options were used for the 
purpose of hedging currency risks associated with operating activities. 
The risk concentrations of the currencies result primarily from the follow-
ing sensitivity analysis.

IFRS 7 requires entities to present risk on the basis of sensitivity analy-
ses. These analyses show how profit or loss and equity would have been 
affected by changes in the relevant risk variable that were reasonably 
possible at the end of the reporting date. Exchange rate movements 
may occur in the case of primary financial instruments that are beyond 
the hedged parameters or that are hedged by means of financial deriv-
atives in the form of forward foreign exchange transactions or currency 
options.

If, as at 31 December 2019, the euro had appreciated (depreciated) by 
10 per cent against all other currencies, earnings before taxes would 
have been €3,623 thousand lower (€4,428 thousand higher). The 
hypothetical effect on profit of minus €3,623 thousand (plus €4,428 
thousand) is attributable to the following sensitivity to exchange rates:

in € ‘000 Effect on profit before taxes

EUR/USD –1,051 (1,284)

EUR/GBP –60 (74)

EUR/CHF –365 (447)

EUR/CZK 572 (–699)

EUR/PLN –101 (124)

EUR/HKD –836 (1,022)

EUR/CNY –1,504 (1,838)

EUR/RUB –88 (107)

EUR/INR –178 (218)

EUR/SGD –4 (5)

EUR/JPY –8 (9)

–3,623 (4,428)
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If, as at 31 December 2018, the euro had appreciated (depreciated) by 
10 per cent against all other currencies, earnings before taxes would 
have been €3,538 thousand lower (€4,324 thousand higher). The 
hypothetical effect on profit of minus €3,538 thousand (plus €4,324 
thousand) is attributable to the following sensitivity to exchange rates:

in € ‘000 Effect on profit before taxes

EUR/USD –913 (1,115)

EUR/GBP –146 (178)

EUR/CHF –416 (508)

EUR/CZK 535 (–654)

EUR/PLN –104 (128)

EUR/HKD –752 (919)

EUR/CNY –1,403 (1,715)

EUR/RUB –135 (165)

EUR/INR –200 (244)

EUR/SGD –4 (5)

–3,538 (4,324)

Interest-rate risk
In accordance with IFRS 7, interest-rate risks are addressed in the form 
of sensitivity analyses. These present the effects of changes in market 
interest rates on interest income, interest expense and items in the 
statement of financial position. The company’s short-term bank over-
drafts are the financial instruments generally exposed to interest-rate 
risk. They remained undrawn at the end of the reporting period. There-
fore, a sensitivity analysis of interest rates was of no relevance.

Credit risk
The default risk arises primarily from cash and cash equivalents as well 
as outstanding customer receivables, which are reported in the consoli-
dated statement of financial position under trade receivables. Customer 
receivables are monitored on a decentralised basis in each legally 
independent Group company and reported as part of the monthly 

financial statements. Depending on the credit rating of the customer, 
receivables are subject to the risk of default, which is mitigated primarily 
with the help of trade credit insurance. On average, around 70 per cent 
of sales revenue generated by SIMONA AG, having factored in a deduct-
ible, is safeguarded by a trade credit insurance policy..

Impairment of financial assets
The Group mainly has one type of financial asset that is subject to the 
new model of expected credit losses: trade receivables from the sale of 
goods. Cash and cash equivalents are also subject to the impairment 
provisions of IFRS 9, but the identified impairment loss is immaterial. 

Customer receivables exposed to a probable default risk are regularly 
monitored and the associated default risk is accounted for by impair-
ment losses. The basis for determining impairment is primarily assump-
tions about the customer’s country and industry risk, overdue receivables 
(more than 90 days) and available information about payment-related 
difficulties in individual cases. The country or sector risk is determined 
on the basis of the available S&P country ratings or historical S&P 
default data for sectors. The maximum potential credit risk is limited to 
the net carrying amount (less value-added tax) of the financial assets. 
The default risks mainly relate to impaired customer receivables in the 
Europe segment amounting to €2,052 thousand (previous year: €2,103 
thousand). 

Trade receivables are derecognised when it is no longer probable that 
they will be realised. This is indicated by the debtor’s failure to commit 
to an instalment payment plan and its failure to make contractual pay-
ments after more than 90 days of default. Impairment losses are recog-
nised in operating profit under “Other expenses” (losses from the 
derecognition of financial assets and impairment losses).

Previous accounting policy for the impairment of trade receivables: in 
the previous year, the basis for the impairment was essentially consider-

 Notes to Consolidated Financial StatementsContent
Introduction 2
SIMONA Key Financials 3

TO OUR SHAREHOLDERS

COMBINED MANAGEMENT 
REPORT

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL 
STATEMENTS
Group Income Statement 72
Group Statement of 
Comprehensive Income 73
Group Statement of 
Financial Position 74
Group Statement of  
Cash Flows 76
Group Statement of 
Changes in Equity 77
Notes to Consolidated 
Financial Statements 78
Reproduction of the 
Auditor’s Report 126

OTHER DETAILS

KONZERNABSCHLUSS

  Annual Report 2019 119



Contents
COMBINED MANAGEMENT 
REPORT
Fundamental information  
about the group 3
Business review 7
Report on opportunities  
and risks 19
Report on expected  
developments 24
Other information 26
Non-financial statement  
in accordance with section  
289 b)-e) HGB 29

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL 
STATEMENTS
Group Income Statement 34
Group Statement of 
Comprehensive Income 35
Group Statement of 
Financial Position 36
Group Statement of 
Cash Flows 38
Group Statement of  
Changes in Equity 39
Notes to Consolidated  
Financial Statements 40
Reproduction of the  
Auditor’s Report 88
Other Information 95

  Consolidated Financial Statements 2019 – SIMONA AG 81



able financial difficulties of the debtor, payment default or default (more 
than 90 days overdue) and increased probability that insolvency pro-
ceedings will be opened against the debtor’s assets.

As in the previous year, there are no significant risk concentrations in the 
Group, given the various international sales markets and diversified 
customer structure.

Liquidity risk
In order to ensure solvency and financial flexibility, the Group continu-
ously monitors liquidity from operating activities as well as payment 
expectations from commitments for capital investment orders placed by 
Group companies. The liquidity status is reported regularly. Risk concen-
trations result from the following issuer rating.

Alongside cash and cash equivalents amounting to €68.4 million (previ-
ous year: €52.5 million), the SIMONA Group has undrawn borrowing 
facilities of €19.0 million (previous year: €17.0 million). The Group’s 
objective is to maintain a well-judged balance between ongoing cover-
age of cash requirements and sustained flexibility through the utilisation 
of bank overdrafts and loans.

Credit risk relating to cash exists solely as a result of business relation-
ships with banks, which have the following long-term rating:

ISSUER RATING CASH

in € ‘000 31/12/2019 31/12/2018

A1 8,213 3,801

A2 4,363 1,762

Aa2 8,285 5,948

Aa3 6,627 15,654

Baa3 22,758 11,511

No rating 18,153 13,807

68,399 52,483

The maturity structures of payment obligations relating to the financial 
liabilities of the Group were as follows.

in € ‘000 Up to 
1 year

2–5 
years

More than 
5 years

Total

Financial liabilities 3,425 11,855 0 15,280

Other financial liabilities 2,412 644 0 3,056

Trade payables 18,738 0 0 18,738

Financial liabilities 
31/12/2019 24,575 12,499 0 37,074

in € ‘000 Up to 
1 year

2–5 
years

More than 
5 years

Total

Financial liabilities 3,425 13,700 1,580 18,705

Other financial liabilities 2,119 59 0 2,178

Trade payables 20,987 0 0 20,987

Financial liabilities 
31/12/2018 26,531 13,759 1,580 41,870

As in the previous financial year, at the end of the reporting period there 
were no foreign exchange forward contracts or currency options that 
would result in amounts due to the entity or payment obligations.
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Capital management
Among the key financial goals of the SIMONA Group are objectives to 
raise enterprise value in a sustainable manner, ensure solvency and 
sufficient liquidity reserves and achieve an equity ratio of at least 50 per 
cent.

The Group manages its capital structure primarily on the basis of the 
equity ratio and makes adjustments in response to changing economic 
conditions where such action is deemed appropriate. External financing 
is mainly conducted via short- and long-term bank borrowings and bank 
loans. Additionally, the return on operating assets is reviewed annually 
as part of the forecasting process and is an important criterion when it 
comes to managing the Group’s investment budget. Return on capital 

employed (ROCE) is used as a performance indicator with regard to 
profitability.

As at 31 December 2019, the equity ratio was 50 per cent (previous 
year: 55 per cent). The level of debt stood at 95 per cent (previous year: 
77 per cent).

[33] FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The following table presents the carrying amounts and fair values of all 
financial instruments recognised by the Group.



FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS CARRYING AMOUNT FAIR VALUE

in € ‘000 31/12/2019 31/12/2018 31/12/2019 31/12/2018

Non-current financial assets Financial assets 340 340 340 340

Investments accounted for using the equity 
method

1,143 949 1,143 949

Current financial assets Trade receivables 59,702 64,017 59,702 64,017

Other financial assets 2,036 1,406 2,036 1,406

Cash and cash equivalents 68,399 52,483 68,399 52,483

Non-current financial liabilities 
and other financial liabilities

Loans –11,855 –15,280 –11,855 –15,280

Other financial liabilities –644 –59 –644 –59

Current financial liabilities and 
other financial liabilities

Loans –3,425 –3,425 –3,425 –3,425

Trade payables –18,738 –20,987 –18,738 –20,987

Other current financial liabilities –2,412 –2,119 –2,412 –2,119

Total by measurement category AC – Amortised Cost assets 131,620 119,194 131,620 119,194

AC – Amortised Cost liabilities –37,074 –41,870 –37,074 –41,870
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The non-current financial assets classified as AC - Amortised Cost are 
interests in affiliated companies. No active market exists for these 
instruments and the fair value cannot be otherwise reliably determined. 
These interests are measured at cost of purchase. There are no plans to 
dispose of interests in the near future. 

The aforementioned financial instruments predominantly have short 
residual terms to maturity. Therefore, their carrying amounts at the 
reporting date approximate their fair values.

The cash and cash equivalents held as “AC - Amortised Cost” include 
time deposits with a maximum term of three months.

The fair value of loans was determined by discounting the expected 
future cash flows on the basis of the prevailing market rate of interest as 
well as by applying option pricing models. Within this context, the calcu-
lation takes into account that the loans are subject to floating or fixed 
interest rates on the basis of standard market terms and conditions.

The following table presents the net gains and losses from subsequent 
measurement of financial instruments recognised in the statement of 
financial position, listed according to the respective measurement cate-
gories.

NET GAINS AND LOSSES BY MEASUREMENT CATEGORY

in € 
‘000

Interest Fair value Currency
translation

Impairment 
loss/Disposal

Total 
2019

AC –97 0 –22 –574 –693

in € 
‘000

Interest Fair Value Currency
translation

Impairment 
loss/Disposal

Total
2018

AC –117 0 76 –185 –225

The Group uses the following hierarchy for the purpose of determining 
and disclosing the fair values of financial instruments per measurement 
method:

 � Level 1: unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for identical 
assets or liabilities

 � Level 2: methods for which all inputs with a significant effect on the 
recognised fair value are observable either directly or indirectly; and

 � Level 3: methods that use inputs which have a significant effect on 
the recognised fair value and are not based on observable market 
data

With the exception of derivative financial instruments, no fair value 
hierarchy is disclosed for financial assets and liabilities, as the carrying 
amount is a reasonable approximation of fair value.

Hedging transactions
Cash flow hedging instruments
At the end of the reporting period, as was the case in the previous 
financial year, the Group held no forward currency contracts or currency 
options or interest rate swaps.

[34] OTHER INFORMATION

Subsidiaries
Alongside SIMONA AG as the parent, the consolidated financial state-
ments include the following entities. Unless otherwise specified, the 
ownership interest in the previous year was identical to that of the 
financial year under review.
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OWNERSHIP INTEREST

in %

SIMONA Beteiligungs-GmbH, Kirn, Germany 100.0

SIMONA Produktion Kirn GmbH & Co. KG, Kirn, Germany 100.0

SIMONA Kirn Management GmbH, Kirn, Germany 100.0

SIMONA Produktion Ringsheim GmbH & Co. KG, Ringsheim, Germany 100.0

SIMONA Ringsheim Management GmbH, Ringsheim, Germany 100.0

SIMONA Immobilien GmbH & Co. KG, Kirn, Germany 100.0

SIMONA Immobilien Management GmbH, Kirn, Germany 100.0

SIMONA UK Ltd., Stafford, United Kingdom 100.0

SIMONA S.A.S., Domont, France 100.0

SIMONA S.r.l. Società UNIPERSONALE, Cologno Monzese (MI), Italy 100.0

SIMONA IBERICA SEMIELABORADOS S.L., Barcelona, Spain 100.0

SIMONA POLSKA Sp. z o.o., Wrocław, Poland 100.0

SIMONA-PLASTICS CZ s.r.o., Prague, Czech Republic 100.0

SIMONA FAR EAST LIMITED, Hong Kong, China 100.0

SIMONA AMERICA Group Inc. (formerly SIMONA AMERICA Inc.), Archbald, 
USA 100.0

Power Boulevard Inc. (formerly Laminations Inc.), Archbald, USA 100.0

SIMONA Boltaron Inc. (formerly Boltaron Inc.), Newcomerstown, USA 100.0

DANOH, LLC, Akron, USA 100.0

SIMONA PMC, LLC, Findlay, USA 100.0

Industrial Drive Inc. (formerly SIMONA PMC Acquisition Inc.), Archbald, 
USA 100.0

SIMONA AMERICA Industries LLC, Archbald, USA 100.0

SIMONA ENGINEERING PLASTICS TRADING (SHANGHAI) CO., 
LTD. Shanghai, China 100.0

SIMONA ASIA LIMITED, Hong Kong, China 100.0

SIMONA ENGINEERING PLASTICS (Guangdong) Co. Ltd., Jiangmen, China 100.0

64 NORTH CONAHAN DRIVE HOLDING, LLC, Hazleton, USA 100.0

DEHOPLAST POLSKA, Sp. z o.o., Kwidzyn, Poland 51.0

SIMONA Plast-Technik s.r.o., Litvinov, Czech Republic 100.0

OOO SIMONA RUS, Moscow, Russian Federation 100.0

SIMONA INDIA PRIVATE LIMITED, Mumbai, India 100.0

SIMONA ASIA PACIFIC PTE. LTD., Singapore, Singapore 100.0

The scope of consolidation remained unchanged in the year under 
review. There were no changes to the ownership interests held in subsid-
iaries in the financial year under review.

Financial assets
SIMONA AG holds at least a one-fifth interest in the following entities, 
without being able to control or significantly influence the financial and 
operating policies of the entities in question. Unless otherwise specified, 
the ownership interest in the previous year was identical to that of the 
financial year under review.

COMPANY

Ownership 
interest

Equity 
31/12/2018

Profit/loss 
2018

% € ’000 € ’000

SIMONA Sozialwerk GmbH, Kirn, 
Germany 50.0 12,192 175

SIMONA Vermögensverwaltungs-
gesellschaft der Belegschaft mbH, 
Kirn, Germany 50.0 1,489 624

Owing to its classification as a pension fund, SIMONA Sozialwerk GmbH 
is not included in the consolidated financial statements, as specified in 
IAS 19.8.

SIMONA Vermögensverwaltungsgesellschaft der Belegschaft mbH is not 
included in the consolidated financial statements because the assets of 
this entity may be utilised solely for funding purposes in respect of 
SIMONA Sozialwerk GmbH and thus remain outside SIMONA AG’s scope 
of economic control.

The interests in SIMONA Sozialwerk GmbH and SIMONA Vermögensver-
waltungsgesellschaft der Belegschaft mbH are accounted for at book 
value, as the fair value is not reliably determinable. The book values of 
SIMONA Sozialwerk GmbH and SIMONA Vermögensverwaltungs-
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gesellschaft der Belegschaft mbH are €10 thousand and €13 thousand 
respectively.

Average number of staff employed during the financial year:

GROUP

2019 2018

Industrial staff 852 803

Clerical staff 518 524

Employees 1,370 1,327

School-leavers (apprentices) 60 60

Total number of employees 1,430 1,387

Contingent liabilities
Contingent liabilities relate in particular to extended warranty periods 
regarding the sale of plastic products. No information on the financial 
implications and uncertainties relating to the amount or timing of any 
outflow has been disclosed as it is not practicable to do so. At present, 
SIMONA does not expect any outflow from contingent liabilities.

ORDER COMMITMENTS

in € ‘000 31/12/2019 31/12/2018

Investment projects 9,417 14,318

Raw material orders 13,187 12,078

22,605 26,396

The share of intangible assets in total commitments is negligible.

Declaration of Conformity regarding the German Corporate 
Governance Code
In accordance with Section 161 AktG, the company filed a Declaration 
of Conformity for 2019 on 24 February 2020. It has been made perma-
nently available to shareholders on its corporate website at www.
simona.de.

Disclosures under Section 313(2) HGB
SIMONA Kirn Management GmbH, Kirn, is the general partner of 
SIMONA Produktion Kirn GmbH & Co. KG, Kirn. SIMONA Ringsheim 
Management GmbH, Ringsheim, is the general partner of SIMONA Pro-
duktion Ringsheim GmbH & Co. KG, Ringsheim. SIMONA Immobilien 
Management GmbH, Kirn, is the general partner of SIMONA Immobilien 
GmbH & Co.KG, Kirn.

SIMONA AG, Kirn, prepares the consolidated financial statements for 
the largest and smallest group of companies. The consolidated financial 
statements have been filed with the District Court Bad Kreuznach, 
Commercial Register No. HRB 1390.

Directors’ holdings – Shares held by members of the 
Management Board and Supervisory Board of SIMONA AG
As at 7 June 2019 (date of the Annual General Meeting of Shareholders) 
the members of the Management Board reported a total holding of 
70,860 shares; this corresponds to approx. 11.81 per cent of the share 
capital of SIMONA AG.

As at 7 June 2019 (date of the Annual General Meeting of Shareholders) 
the members of the Supervisory Board reported a total holding of 1,300 
shares; this corresponds to approx. 0.22 per cent of the share capital of 
SIMONA AG.

In accordance with Section 15a of the Securities Trading Act (Wertpapi-
erhandelsgesetz – WpHG), the members of the Supervisory Board and 
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the Management Board, as well as related parties, are legally obliged to 
disclose all significant acquisitions or disposals of shares in SIMONA AG.

Audit fees
The total fees invoiced by the independent auditor of SIMONA AG and 
subsidiaries were €469 thousand. These fees were attributable to the 
following items: year-end audit services €425 thousand, tax consulting 
€21 thousand and other confirmation services €23 thousand. Tax con-
sultancy services provided by our independent auditor encompass the 
preparation of tax returns and the tax treatment of specific circum-
stances. The other confirmation services relate to reviews conducted in 
accordance with the German Renewable Energy Sources Act (Erneuer-
bare-Energien-Gesetz – EEG).

Events after the reporting period
Until recently, short-term economic factors appeared to be stabilising at 
a low level and medium-term structural factors, in particular industrial 
investment, which is important for business, were also expected to 
improve slightly due to the sluggish but gradual recovery of the global 
economy. However, leading economic research institutes currently 
expect a recession for Germany as well as for key international markets 
due to the corona crisis. The effects of this cannot be reliably predicted 
at present. In our assessment, the Group’s overall risk situation at the 
end of the 2019 financial year is essentially unchanged compared with 
the previous year, although it should be noted that the corona crisis may 
have a significant impact that cannot be reliably predicted at present.

Beyond this, no significant events occurred as at the end of the reporting 
period that would necessitate a change to measurements or recognised 
amounts.

Responsibility Statement
To the best of our knowledge, and in accordance with the applicable 
reporting principles, the consolidated financial statements give a true 
and fair view of the assets, liabilities, financial position and profit or loss 
of the Group, and the Group management report that has been com-
bined with the management report of SIMONA Aktiengesellschaft, Kirn, 
includes a fair review of the development and performance of the busi-
ness and the position of the Group, together with a description of the 
principal opportunities and risks associated with the expected develop-
ment of the Group.

Kirn, 30 March 2020
SIMONA Aktiengesellschaft
The Management Board

Matthias Schönberg Dr. Jochen Hauck Michael Schmitz
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Based on the results of our audit, we issued the following 
unqualified audit opinion dated 30 March 2020:

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
To SIMONA Aktiengesellschaft, Kirn

REPORT ON THE AUDIT OF THE 
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
AND GROUP MANAGEMENT REPORT

Opinions
We have audited the consolidated financial statements of SIMONA 
Aktiengesellschaft, Kirn, and its subsidiaries (the Group), which com-
prise the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 Decem-
ber 2019, the consolidated income statement (statement of profit or 
loss), the consolidated statement of comprehensive income, the consol-
idated statement of changes in equity and the consolidated statement 
of cash flows for the financial year from 1 January to 31 December 2019 
as well as the notes to the consolidated financial statements, including 
a summary of significant accounting policies. In addition, we have 
audited the Group management report of SIMONA Aktiengesellschaft, 
which has been combined with the Company’s management report, for 
the financial year from 1 January to 31 December 2019. In accordance 
with German statutory requirements, we have not audited the content of 
those parts of the Group management report specified under “Other 
Information” in this Independent Auditor’s Report.

In our opinion, based on our audit findings,
 � the accompanying consolidated financial statements comply, in all 
material respects, with the IFRS as adopted by the EU and the supple-
mentary requirements of German commercial law pursuant to Section 
315e(1) HGB and give a true and fair view of the net assets and 
financial position of the Group as at 31 December 2019 and of its 

results of operations for the financial year from 1 January to 31 
December 2019, in accordance with these requirements, and

 � the accompanying Group management report as a whole provides a 
suitable view of the Group’s position. In all material respects, the 
Group management report is consistent with the consolidated finan-
cial statements, complies with German statutory requirements, and 
suitably presents the opportunities and risks of future development. 
Our opinion on the Group management report does not cover the 
content in respect of those parts of the Group management report 
specified under “Other Information” in this Independent Auditor’s 
Report.

Pursuant to Section 322(3) sentence 1 HGB, we state that our audit has 
not led to any reservations with respect to compliance of the consoli-
dated financial statements and the Group management report.

Basis for opinion
We conducted our audit of the consolidated financial statements and 
Group management report in accordance with Section 317 HGB and the 
EU Audit Regulation (No 537/2014; hereinafter referred to as “EU Audit 
Regulation”) and the generally accepted standards for the audit of 
financial statements promulgated by the German Institute of Public 
Auditors (Institut der Wirtschaftsprüfer – IDW). Our responsibilities 
under those regulations and guidelines are further described in the 
“Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial 
statements and Group management report” section of our report. We 
are independent of the Group companies in accordance with the require-
ments of European Union law as well as German commercial law and the 
rules of professional conduct, and we have fulfilled our other ethical 
responsibilities under German professional law in accordance with 
these requirements. In addition, pursuant to Article 10(2)(f) EU Audit 
Regulation, we hereby declare that we did not provide any of the prohib-
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ited non-audit services referred to in Article 5(1) EU Audit Regulation. We 
believe that the audit evidence we obtained is sufficient and appropriate 
to provide a basis for our opinion on the consolidated financial state-
ments and Group management report.

Key audit matters in the audit of the consolidated financial 
statements
Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, 
were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial 
statements for the financial year from 1 January to 31 December 2019. 
These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the consol-
idated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion 
thereon, but we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

In our view, the matters of most significance in our audit were as follows:
 � Recoverability of goodwill
 � Provisions for pensions

Our presentation of these key audit matters has been structured in each 
case as follows:

 � Matter and issue 
 � Audit approach and findings
 � Reference to further information

Hereinafter we present the key audit matters:

Recoverability of goodwill
 � Goodwill totalling €30.7 million (representing 7.1% of total assets and 
14.2% of equity) is reported under the “Intangible assets” item in the 
Company’s consolidated statement of financial position. Goodwill is 
tested for impairment by the Company once a year, and when there 
are indications of impairment, to determine any possible need for 
write-downs. Impairment testing is carried out at the level of the 

groups of cash-generating units to which the relevant goodwill has 
been allocated. The carrying amount of the relevant cash-generating 
units, including goodwill, is compared with the corresponding recover-
able amount in the context of the impairment test. The recoverable 
amount is generally calculated on the basis of the value in use. The 
present value of the future cash flows from the respective group of 
cash-generating units normally serves as the basis of valuation. The 
present values are calculated using discounted cash flow models. For 
this purpose, the Group’s one-year financial plan prepared by the 
Legal Representatives and adopted by the Supervisory Board forms 
the starting point for future projections; it is supplemented by detailed 
forecasts for a further three planning years based on assumptions 
about long-term rates of growth. They also take into consideration 
expectations regarding future market development and assumptions 
relating to the macroeconomic influences. The discount rate used is 
the weighted average cost of capital for the relevant group of 
cash-generating units. The impairment test determined that no write-
downs were necessary. The outcome of this assessment is dependent 
to a large extent on the estimates made by the Legal Representatives 
with respect to the future cash inflows from the respective group of 
cash-generating units, the discount rate used, the rate of growth and 
other assumptions, and is therefore subject to considerable uncer-
tainty. Against this background and due to the complex nature of the 
valuation, this matter was of particular significance in the context of 
our audit.

 � As part of our audit, we reviewed the methodology employed for the 
purposes of performing the impairment test, among other things. 
After cross-checking the future cash inflows used for the calculation 
with the Group’s approved one-year plan and the forecasts for the 
second to fourth planning year, we assessed the appropriateness of 
the calculation, in particular by comparing it with general and sec-
tor-specific market expectations. We discussed supplementary 
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adjustments to the planning projections for the purposes of the 
impairment test with the members of the Company’s staff responsi-
ble, and reviewed these. We also assessed whether the basis for 
including the costs of Group functions was accurate. In the knowledge 
that even relatively small changes in the discount rate can have a 
material impact on the value of the entity calculated by applying this 
method, we also focused our testing on the parameters used to 
determine the discount rate applied and evaluated the Company’s 
calculation procedures. We reproduced the sensitivity analyses per-
formed by the Company in order to reflect the uncertainty inherent in 
the projections. Taking into account the information available, we 
determined that the carrying amounts of the cash-generating units, 
including the allocated goodwill, were adequately covered by the dis-
counted future net cash inflows. We verified that the necessary disclo-
sures were made in the notes. Overall, the measurement inputs and 
assumptions used by the Legal Representative are in line with our 
expectations and are also within the ranges considered by us to be 
reasonable.

 � The Company’s disclosures on goodwill have been included in point 
17 of the notes to the consolidated financial statements.

Provisions for pensions
 � In the Company’s consolidated financial statements the item “Provi-
sions for pensions” includes pension provisions totalling €137.9 mil-
lion (32.1% of the consolidated balance sheet total). The pension 
provisions comprise obligations from defined benefit pension plans 
amounting to €180.1 million less plan assets of €42.2 million. The 
obligations from defined benefit pension plans were measured using 
the projected unit credit method. This requires, in particular, assump-
tions with regard to long-term salary and pension trends, average life 

expectancy and staff turnover rates. The discount rate must be 
determined by reference to market yields on high-quality corporate 
bonds with matching currencies and consistent maturities. This usu-
ally requires the data to be extrapolated, as there is an insufficient 
number of long-term corporate bonds. The plan assets are measured 
at fair value. In our view, these matters were of particular significance 
in the context of our audit, as the recognition and measurement of this 
large-scale item are dependent to a considerable extent on estimates 
and assumptions made by the Legal Representatives of the Company.

 � As part of our audit, we reviewed the actuarial reports prepared by 
external parties at the request of the Company and assessed the 
professional qualifications of these external experts. In addition, we 
focused, among other aspects, on the specifics of the actuarial calcu-
lations and assessed the numerical data, the actuarial parameters 
and the method of valuation applied to the measurement for the pur-
pose of evaluating their conformity with standards and their appropri-
ateness. In addition, we analysed the changes in the obligation and 
the cost components in accordance with actuarial expert reports in 
the light of changes occurring in the valuation parameters and the 
numerical data, and verified their plausibility. For the purposes of our 
audit of the fair value of plan assets, we obtained bank confirmations 
and securities account statements as at the end of the reporting 
period. On the basis of our audit procedures, we were able to satisfy 
ourselves that the estimates applied and assumptions made by the 
Company’s Legal Representatives are substantiated and sufficiently 
documented.

 � The disclosures by the Company in respect of pension provisions have 
been included under points 26 and 27 of the notes to the consoli-
dated financial statements.
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Other Information
The Company’s Legal Representatives are responsible for the Other 
Information. The Other Information comprises the following non-audited 
parts of the Group management report that we obtained prior to the 
date of our auditor’s report:

 � The declaration of corporate governance pursuant to Section 289f 
HGB and Section 315d HGB, as presented in section 5.1 of the 
Group management report

 � The non-financial statement pursuant to Section 289b(1) HGB and 
Section 315b(1) HGB, as presented in section 6 of the Group 
management report.

The annual report is expected to be made available to us after the date 
of the auditor’s report.

Our audit opinions on the consolidated financial statements and on the 
Group management report do not cover the Other Information, and 
consequently we do not express an audit opinion or any other form of 
assurance conclusion thereon.

In the context of our audit, our responsibility is to read the Other Infor-
mation and, in so doing, to consider whether the Other Information

 � is materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements, 
the Group management report or our knowledge obtained in the 
audit, or

 � otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

Responsibilities of the Legal Representatives and 
Supervisory Board for the consolidated financial statements 
and the Group management report
The Legal Representatives are responsible for the preparation of the 
consolidated financial statements which, in all material respects, com-
ply with IFRS, as adopted by the EU, and the supplementary require-
ments of German commercial law pursuant to Section 315e (1) HGB, 
and that the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view 
of the net assets, financial position, and results of operations of the 
Group in accordance with these requirements. Furthermore, the Legal 
Representatives are responsible for such internal control as they deter-
mine is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial 
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to 
fraud or error. 

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the Legal Represent-
atives are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a 
going concern. They also have the responsibility for disclosing, as appli-
cable, matters related to going concern. In addition, the Legal Repre-
sentatives are responsible for using the going concern basis of 
accounting unless the intention is to liquidate the Group or to cease 
operations, or there is no realistic alternative to do so.

Moreover, the Legal Representatives are responsible for preparing the 
Group management report, which as a whole provides a suitable view of 
the Group’s position, and, in all material respects, is consistent with the 
consolidated financial statements, complies with German statutory 
requirements and suitably presents the opportunities and risks of future 
development. Furthermore, the Legal Representatives are responsible 
for such arrangements and measures (systems) as they determine are 
necessary to enable the preparation of the Group management report in 
compliance with the applicable requirements of German commercial law 
and for providing sufficient and appropriate evidence for the assertions 
in the Group management report.
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The Supervisory Board is responsible for monitoring the Group’s finan-
cial reporting process for the preparation of the consolidated financial 
statements and the Group management report.

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated 
financial statements and the Group management report
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the 
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material 
misstatements, whether due to fraud or error, and whether the Group 
management report as a whole provides a suitable view of the Group’s 
position, as well as, in all material respects, is consistent with the con-
solidated financial statements and our audit findings, complies with 
German statutory requirements, and suitably presents the opportunities 
and risks of future development, and to issue an auditor’s report that 
includes our opinion on the consolidated financial statements and the 
Group management report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guaran-
tee that an audit conducted in accordance with Section 317 HGB and 
the EU Audit Regulation, as well as in compliance with the German gen-
erally accepted standards for the audit of financial statements promul-
gated by the German Institute of Public Auditors (Institut der 
Wirtschaftsprüfer – IDW), will always detect a material misstatement. 
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered mate-
rial if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected 
to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these 
consolidated financial statements and this Group management report.

As part of our audit we exercise professional judgement and maintain 
professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

 � Identify and assess the risks of material misstatements of the consol-
idated financial statements and the Group management report, 
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures 
responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient 
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not 
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than 
for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, 
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal 
control. 

 � Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit of the 
consolidated financial statements, and of the arrangements and 
measures relevant to the audit of the Group management report, in 
order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circum-
stances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the 
effectiveness of these systems of the Company.

 � Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the 
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures 
made by the Management Board.

 � Conclude on the appropriateness of the Management Board’s use of 
the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evi-
dence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to 
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events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s 
ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material 
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s 
report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial state-
ments and Group management report or, if such disclosures are 
inadequate, to modify our particular opinion. Our conclusions are 
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s 
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Group to 
cease to continue as a going concern.

 � Evaluate the overall presentation, structure, and content of the con-
solidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and whether 
the consolidated financial statements represent the underlying 
transactions and events in a manner that gives a true and fair view of 
the net assets, financial position, and results of operations of the 
Group in accordance with IFRS, as adopted by the EU, and the supple-
mentary requirements of German commercial law pursuant to Section 
315e (1) HGB.

 � Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial 
information of the entities or business activities within the Group to 
express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements and the 
Group management report. We are responsible for the direction, 
supervision, and performance of the group audit. We remain solely 
responsible for our audit opinion.

 � Evaluate consistency of the Group management report with the con-
solidated financial statements, its legal compliance, and presentation 
of the Group’s position.

 � Perform audit procedures on the prospective information presented 
by the Legal Representatives in the Group management report. Based 
on sufficient and appropriate audit evidence, we hereby in particular 
trace the significant assumptions used by the Legal Representatives 
as a basis for the prospective information and assess the appropriate 
derivation of the prospective information from these assumptions. We 
are not issuing a separate audit opinion on the prospective informa-
tion as well as the underlying assumptions. There is a significant, 
unavoidable risk that future events will deviate significantly from the 
prospective information.

We communicate with the Supervisory Board regarding, among other 
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit 
findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we 
identify during our audit.

We also provide the Supervisory Board with a statement that we have 
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, 
and communicate with them all relationships and other matters that 
may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and related 
safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the Supervisory Board, we deter-
mine those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the 
consolidated financial statements of the current period and are there-
fore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s 
report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the 
matter.




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OTHER LEGAL AND REGULATORY REQUIREMENTS

Other disclosures pursuant to Article 10 of the EU Audit 
Regulation 
We were elected as auditor at the annual general meeting held on 7 
June 2019. We were engaged by the Supervisory Board on 18 Septem-
ber 2019. We have been the Group auditor of SIMONA Aktienge-
sellschaft, Kirn, without interruption since the 2013 financial year.

We declare that the audit opinions in this auditor’s report are consistent 
with the additional report to the audit committee referred to in Article 11 
of the EU Audit Regulation (audit report).

German public auditor responsible for the engagement
The German Public Auditor responsible for the engagement is Christian 
Kwasni.
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 Other Information

RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT PURSUANT TO SECTIONS
297(2), 315(1) HGB

“To the best of our knowledge, and in accordance with the applic-
able reporting principles, the consolidated financial statements 
give a true and fair view of the assets, liabilities, financial position 
and profit or loss of the SIMONA Group, and the Group manage-
ment report, which has been combined with the management 
report of SIMONA AG, includes a fair review of the development 
and performance of the business and the position of the SIMONA 
Group, together with a description of the principal opportunities 
and risks associated with the expected development of the 
SIMONA Group.” 

Kirn, 30 March 2020
SIMONA Aktiengesellschaft
The Management Board

Matthias Schönberg Dr. Jochen Hauck Michael Schmitz
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SIMONA AG
Teichweg 16
55606 Kirn
Germany

Phone +49 (0)67 52 14-383
Fax +49 (0)67 52 14-738

ir@simona.de
www.simona.de

This document is published in 
German and as an English trans-
lation. Only the German original 
shall be deemed authoritative.
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